
           
CITY OF TEXAS CITY

REGULAR CALLED CITY COMMISSION MEETING

AGENDA

WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 16, 2024 - 5:00 P.M.
KENNETH T. NUNN COUNCIL ROOM -  CITY HALL

 1801 9th Ave. N.
Texas City, TX  77590

PLEASE NOTE: Public comments and matters from the floor are generally limited to 3 minutes in length. If you
would like to request to speak, please do so in advance of the meeting by filling out a Request To Address
Commission form. All in attendance are required to remove hats and/or sunglasses (dark glasses) during meetings
and to also silence all cell phones and electronic devices.
 

           
(1) ROLL CALL   
 

(2) INVOCATION   
 

(3) PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE   
 

(4) PROCLAMATIONS AND PRESENTATIONS   
 

(a) Service Awards    
Frederick Posada Public Works 10/05/2009 15 years
Salvador Chapa Police 10/06/2004 20 years
Jerry Solomon Sewer 10/02/1989 35 years
    
Retirement    
Dennis J. Harris Parks & Recreation 12 1/2 years  

 

(b) Certificate of Recognition to Higher Up Texas, Inc.   
 

(c) Proclaiming October as National Physical Therapy Month   
 

(5) PUBLIC COMMENTS   
 

(6) CONSENT AGENDA   
 

(a) Approve City Commission Minutes for the October 2, 2024 meeting. (City Secretary)
 

(b) Consider and take action on Resolution 2024-120, authorizing the Mayor to appoint an official fire



(b) Consider and take action on Resolution 2024-120, authorizing the Mayor to appoint an official fire
department physician and authorizing annual medical physicals for all sworn firefighters. (Fire
Department)

 

(c) Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2024-121, approving a request by the fire department
to utilize Siddons Martin Emergency Group for maintenance and repair services for fire apparatus
through an HGAC Contract. (Fire Department)

 

(d) Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2024-122, authorizing the purchase of three trucks for
the Parks Division of the Parks, Recreation and Tourism Department through Buy Board, a
purchasing cooperative. (Rec & Tour)

 

(e) Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2024-123, authorizing the purchase of
a Caterpillar 420-4ECA Backhoe for the Utilities Department through Sourcewell, a purchasing
cooperative. (Public Works)

 

(f) Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2024-124, authorizing a request by the Fire
Department to utilize Frazer LTD for maintenance and repair services for medic units through an
HGAC Contract. (Fire Department)

 

(g) Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2024-125, authorizing the purchase of one (1) Exmark
Lazer Z Diesel 43.5 HP YANMAR Mower through OMNIA PARTNERS, a Public Sector Purchasing
Cooperative, from League City Outdoor Power Equipment. (Parks, Rec & Tour)

 

(h) Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2024-126, consenting Binnacle Texas City 51, LLC and
the GCMAD 79 request of the City to annex a 19.35-acre tract being Brookwater Subdivision
Sections 1A and 1B into the D. (City Engineer)

 

(i) Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2024-127, affirming the Independent Contractor
Agreement between the City of Texas City and Douglas Kneupper, P.E. (former City Engineer) to
provide consulting services as needed in support of the Engineering & Planning Department. (City
Engineer)

 

(j) Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2024-128, approving valve repairs and upgrades to the
City's SCADA system. (Public Works - Utilities)

 

(k) Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2024-129, approving an offer to purchase
tax-foreclosed property described as Lots Six (6) and Seven (7), Texas City Second Division,
known commonly as vacant lots located at 920 2nd Avenue South, by the Texas City Economic
Development Corporation and authorizing the Mayor to execute a Trustee's Deed conveying title to
said property as further described in the attached Trustee's Deed. (Management Services)

 

(l) Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2024-130, approving the Waste Water Treatment
Plant's Annual Sludge Disposal Contract. (Public Works- Utilities)

 

(m) Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2024-131, authorizing the Mayor to extend the
agreement with Public Consultant Group to provide assistance to the Fire Department for
the FY2024 Ambulance Supplemental Pay Program participation. (Fire Department)

 

(n) Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2024-132, approving Joiner Architects to perform



(n) Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2024-132, approving Joiner Architects to perform
Architectural Design Services for an approximate 5900 sq/ft expansion of the existing Fire
Department Administration Building. (Public Works)

 

(o) Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2024-133, authorizing the purchase of a John Deere
335 P Compact Track Loader to replace existing equipment from Shoppa's Farm Supply through
CCE, a Sourcewell Program. (Public Works-Street & Bridge)

 

(p) Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2024-134, authorizing the purchase of a Develon DX
190W-7 (US50) Package Wheel Excavator to replace an existing piece of equipment from R.B.
Everett & Company through BuyBoard, a purchasing cooperative. (Public Works-Street & Bridge)

 

(q) Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2024-135, authorizing the purchase of a Ford F250
Crew Cab to replace existing equipment from Chastang Ford through BuyBoard, a purchasing
cooperative. (Public Works-Street & Bridge)

 

(r) Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2024-136, authorizing the purchase of a new Ford
F550 Flatbed with Trailer to replace existing equipment from Chastang Ford through BuyBoard, a
local purchasing cooperative. (Public Works-Street & Bridge)

 

(s) Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2024-137, authorizing the purchase of an International
Tandem Axle Dump Truck to replace existing equipment from Santex Truck Centers, LTD through
HGAC Buy, a purchasing cooperative. (Public Works-Street & Bridge)

 

(t) Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2024-138, authorizing the submission of a 2025
Catalytic Converter Grant to the Motor Vehicle Crime Prevention Authority on behalf of TCPD.
(Mayor's Office- Grant's Administration)

 

(u) Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2024-139, accepting a proposal from InVeris Training
Solutions for the Retrofit of the Texas City Police Department indoor shooting range. (Police)

 

(7) REGULAR ITEMS   
 

(a) Consider and take action on the third and final reading of Ordinance No. 2024-023 for
recommended speed zones for Loop 197 as recommended by TxDOT on the basis of an
engineering and traffic investigation. (City Engineer)

 

(b) Consider and take action on the third and final reading of Ordinance No. 2024-24 for recommended
speed zones for FM 3436 as recommended by TxDOT on the basis of an engineering and traffic
investigation. (City Enineer)

 

(c) Consider and take action on the first reading of Ordinance No. 2024-26 for recommended speed
zones for FM 646 as recommended by TxDOT on the basis of an engineering and traffic
investigation. (City Engineer)

 

(8) EXECUTIVE (CLOSED) SESSION   
 

(a) Convene for Executive (Closed) Session pursuant to the Texas Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551,   



(a) Convene for Executive (Closed) Session pursuant to the Texas Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551,
Texas Government Code to discuss the following:

§551.087. Deliberation Regarding Economic Development Negotiations: (1)

  

 

(9) RECONVENE FROM EXECUTIVE (CLOSED) SESSION   
 

(a) Consideration and possible action on Resolution No. 2024-140, to take all necessary actions
deriving from Executive Session.

  

 

(10) COMMISSIONERS' COMMENTS   
 

(11) MAYOR'S COMMENTS   
 

(12) ADJOURNMENT   
 

NOTICE OF ANY SUBJECT APPEARING ON THIS AGENDA REGARDLESS OF HOW THE MATTER IS
STATED MAY BE ACTED UPON BY THE CITY COMMISSION.
NOTICE: The City of Texas City will furnish free transportation to handicapped individuals via a 4-door sedan for
anyone wishing to attend the City Commission meetings.  Call 948-3111, City Secretary's Office before noon on
Monday preceding the meeting to make arrangements.

I, THE UNDERSIGNED AUTHORITY, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS NOTICE OF MEETING WAS POSTED
ON THE BULLETIN BOARDS AT CITY HALL, 1801 9TH AVENUE NORTH, TEXAS CITY, TEXAS, AT A PLACE
CONVENIENT AND READILY ACCESSIBLE TO THE GENERAL PUBLIC AND ON THE CITY'S WEBSITE ON
OCTOBER 11, 2024, PRIOR TO 5:00 P.M. AND REMAINED SO POSTED CONTINUOUSLY FOR AT LEAST 72
HOURS PRECEDING THE SCHEDULED TIME OF SAID MEETING.

______________________
RHOMARI LEIGH
CITY SECRETARY
  



   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (4) (a)        
Meeting Date: 10/16/2024  
October 2024 Service Awards
Submitted For: Jennifer Price, Human Resources 
Submitted By: Susan Sensat, Human Resources
Department: Human Resources

Information
ACTION REQUEST
Service Awards      
Frederick Posada Public Works 10/05/2009 15 years
Salvador Chapa Police 10/06/2004 20 years
Jerry Solomon Sewer 10/02/1989 35 years
       
Retirement      
Dennis J. Harris Parks & Recreation 12 1/2 years  

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
Service Award(s) for the following individual(s) for the month of October is based on their
years of service with the City.

RECOMMENDATION
Human Resources recommend approval of the October service awards.

Fiscal Impact



   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (6) (a)        
Meeting Date: 10/16/2024  
Submitted By: Rhomari Leigh, City Secretary
Department: City Secretary

Information
ACTION REQUEST
Approve City Commission Minutes for the October 2, 2024 meeting. (City Secretary)

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
RECOMMENDATION

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
October 2, 2024 Minutes 



REGULAR CALLED CITY COMMISSION MEETING

M I N U T E S 

WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 2, 2024 – 5:00 P.M.
KENNETH T. NUNN COUNCIL ROOM – CITY HALL

 
A Regular Called Meeting of the City Commission was held on Wednesday, OCTOBER 2, 2024, at 5:00
P.M. in the Kenneth T. Nunn Council Room in City Hall, Texas City, Texas. A quorum having been met,
the meeting was called to order at 5:00 p.m. by Mayor Dedrick D. Johnson.
 

               
1. ROLL CALL

Present: Dedrick D. Johnson, Mayor   
Thelma Bowie, Commissioner At-Large, Mayor Pro Tem   
Abel Garza, Jr. , Commissioner At-Large   
DeAndre' Knoxson, Commissioner District 1   
Keith Love, Commissioner District 2   
Chris Sharp, Commissioner District 3   
Jami Clark, Commissioner District 4   

2. INVOCATION

Led by Pastor Terry Ray from CrossPoint Community Church located 722 3rd Ave N.
 
3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Led by Commissioner District 1 DeAndre' Knoxson.

Mayor Dedrick D. Johnson presented a Proclamation declaring October Domestic Violence
Awareness Month. 

 
4. REPORTS
 

a. Aquatic Program (Parks, Rec & Tourism)

Marcell Favalora, Aquatics Coordinator, gave a PowerPoint presentation.

  

 
b. Fire Services (Fire Department)

David Zacherl, Fire Chief, gave a PowerPoint presentation.

  

 
5. PUBLIC COMMENTS

There were none.
 
6. CONSENT AGENDA



6. CONSENT AGENDA

Commissioner At-Large, Mayor Pro Tem Thelma Bowie, made a motion to approve Consent
Agenda items 6a, b, c, d, e, f, g, and h. The motion as seconded by Commissioner District 4
Jami Clark.

 
a. Approve City Commission Minutes for September 18, 2024, and September 26, 2024,

meetings. (City Secretary)
  

 
  Vote: 7 - 0 CARRIED

 
b. Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2024-112, authorizing the remounting of one (1)

medic unit modular on a new chassis from Frazer, LTD through the HGAC Cooperative
Purchasing Program. (Fire)

  

 
  Vote: 7 - 0 CARRIED

 
c. Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2024-113, authorizing the purchase of one (1)

replacement ancillary unit from Silsbee Ford through the TIPS USA Interlocal Purchasing
System. (Fire)

  

 
  Vote: 7 - 0 CARRIED

 
d. Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2024-114, authorizing the purchase of one (1)

Staff Unit for Neighborhood Improvement Services from Silsbee Ford through the TIPS USA
Interlocal Purchasing System. (Fire)

  

 
  Vote: 7 - 0 CARRIED

 
e. Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2024-115, authorizing the Mayor to execute an

agreement for specialized services with Axon Enterprise, Inc. utilizing Omnia Partners Group
Purchasing Contract to provide portable digital media recorder services to the Fire
Department. (Fire)

  

 
  Vote: 7 - 0 CARRIED

 
f. Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2024-116, authorizing the Mayor to enter into a

contract with SNF Polydyne. (Public Works)
  

 
  Vote: 7 - 0 CARRIED

 
g. Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2024-117, awarding and authorizing the Mayor

to enter into a contract for Bid No. 2024-460 Lift Stations 7 and 15 Rehabilitation Project.
(Public Works)

  

 
  Vote: 7 - 0 CARRIED

 



h. Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2024-118, authorizing the Mayor to execute a
one-year agreement between the County of Galveston and the City of Texas City for the
provision of mutual aid to the unincorporated areas of Galveston County. (Fire Department)

  

 
  Vote: 7 - 0 CARRIED

 
i. Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2024-119, approving a Development Agreement

with Shoppes at Lago Mar SWC, LLC. (City Engineer)

Kim Golden, City Engineer, spoke about the terms include, among other provisions, the
posting of a completion bond to guarantee the construction of the necessary improvements
within three years from the date of recording of the final plat and the delivery of a two-year
warranty and maintenance bond to cover the improvements upon completion.  The
agreement also provides that under no circumstances is the City of Texas City required to
issue a Building Permit or a Certificate of Occupancy until the public improvements required
by Texas City ordinances are constructed, inspected, tested, and accepted.

  

 
  Motion by Commissioner At-Large Abel Garza, Jr., Seconded by Commissioner At-Large,

Mayor Pro Tem Thelma Bowie, to approve Consent Agenda item 6i, only. 

  Vote: 7 - 0 CARRIED

 
7. REGULAR ITEMS
 

a. Consider and take action on the second reading of Ordinance No. 2024-23 for recommended
speed zones for Loop 197 as recommended by TxDOT on the basis of an engineering and
traffic investigation. (City Engineer)

Kim Golden, City Engineer, stated upon review of the engineering and traffic investigation by
an independent professional traffic operations engineer (P.T.O.E.), the City Engineer
recommends approval of the TxDOT recommended speed limits indicated for vehicles
traveling upon the named streets and highways.

Commissioner At-Large Abel Garza, Jr. asked to amend the motion to approve both Regular
Items with one motion, and the quorum agreed to the request.

  

 
  Motion by Commissioner District 4 Jami Clark, Seconded by Commissioner District 3

Chris Sharp 

  Vote: 7 - 0 CARRIED

 
b. Consider and take action on the second reading of Ordinance No. 2024-24 for recommended

speed zones for FM 3436 as recommended by TxDOT on the basis of an engineering and
traffic investigation. (City Engineer)

  

 
  Vote: 7 - 0 CARRIED

 
8. COMMISSIONERS' COMMENTS
 
9. MAYOR'S COMMENTS



9. MAYOR'S COMMENTS

An audiovisual recording of this meeting is available on the City's website and retained by
the CSO for two years after the date of the adaption of the minutes to which the meeting
corresponds.

 
10. ADJOURNMENT
 
Having no further business, Commissioner At-Large, Abel Garza, Jr. made a MOTION to ADJOURN at
5:40 p.m.; the motion was SECONDED by Commissioner District 2 Keith Love. All present voted AYE.
MOTION CARRIED.

  
 ______________________________
 DEDRICK D. JOHNSON, MAYOR

ATTEST:

_________________________________
Rhomari Leigh, City Secretary
Date Approved:



   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (6) (b)        
Meeting Date: 10/16/2024  
Fire Department Physician
Submitted For: David Zacherl, Fire Department 
Submitted By: David Zacherl, Fire Department
Department: Fire Department

Information
ACTION REQUEST
Consider and take action on Resolution 24-120 authorizing the Mayor to appoint an official fire
department physician and authorizing annual medical physicals for all sworn firefighters. 

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
The fire department regularly responds to hazardous material emergencies. The Occupational
and Health Administration requires medical surveillance and annual medical physicals of
employees engaged in hazardous materials emergency response. This request is for the
continuance of the program started in 2004 requiring all sworn personnel of the fire
department to take an annual medical physical as well as all new hires, the cost of which is
included in the fire department's annual operating budget. 

RECOMMENDATION
The Fire Chief recommends approval of the resolution and continuance of this annual program
funded in the department's annual operating budget. 

Fiscal Impact
Funds Available Y/N: Yes
Amount Requested: 125000.00
Source of Funds: FY 24/25 Fire Operating Budget
Account #: 101-202-5-4220
Fiscal Impact:

Attachments
Exhibit A 
Resolution 



October 16, 2024

Dr. Daniel Piazza
Village Medical
7111 Medical Center Dr.
Suite 200
Texas City, Texas 77591

RE:  Texas City Fire Department – Department Physician

Dear Dr. Piazza:

This letter will serve as official documentation designating you as the department’s medical
physician.

If you have any questions or need further clarification, please do not hesitate to give me a call.

Thank you!

Sincerely,

________________________________________
Dedrick D. Johnson
Mayor



RESOLUTION 2024-120

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO APPOINT DR.
DANIEL PIAZZA OF VILLAGE MEDICAL AS THE OFFICIAL FIRE
DEPARTMENT PHYSICIAN IN ACCORDANCE WITH TEXAS
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES REQUIREMENTS AND AUTHORIZING
ANNUAL EXPENSES ESTIMATED AT ONE HUNDRED AND TWENTY-
FIVE THOUSAND DOLLARS FROM THE FIRE DEPARTMENT
ANNUAL OPERATING BUDGET; AND PROVIDING THAT THIS
RESOLUTION SHALL BECOME EFFECTIVE FROM AND AFTER ITS
PASSAGE AND ADOPTION.

WHEREAS, The Fire Department desires to appoint Dr. Daniel Piazza as
the official fire department physician, and

WHEREAS, Dr. Daniel Piazza possesses the professional skills,
knowledge, and abilities that can assist with the health and safety of fire department
personnel, and

WHEREAS, The Fire Department regularly engages in emergency
hazardous materials response, and

WHEREAS, The Occupational Safety and Health Administration requires
medical surveillance and annual medical physicals of employees engaged in
hazardous materials emergency response, and

WHEREAS, Funding for this authorization is provided in the Fire
Department Annual Operating Budget for purposes of new hire and employee
annual medical physicals.

NOW, THEREFORE, BEIT RESOLVED BY THE CITY
COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF TEXAS CITY, TEXAS:

SECTION 1:  That the City Commission of the City of Texas City hereby
authorizes the Mayor to appoint Dr. Daniel Piazza as the official fire department
physician, in substantially the same form attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and made
part thereof, and

SECTION II: That the Fire Chief is authorized annual expenses estimated
at one hundred twenty-five thousand dollars from the fire department annual
operating budget for medical physicals of new hires and incumbent employees.



PASSED AND ADOPTED this 16th day of October 2024.

_______________________________
Dedrick D. Johnson, Sr., Mayor
City of Texas City, Texas

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

_____________________________                          ______________________________
Rhomari D. Leigh Kyle L. Dickson
City Secretary City Attorney



   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (6) (c)        
Meeting Date: 10/16/2024  
Siddons Martin HGAC Service Contract
Submitted For: David Zacherl, Fire Department 
Submitted By: David Zacherl, Fire Department
Department: Fire Department

Information
ACTION REQUEST
Consider and take action approving a request by the fire department to utilize Siddons Martin
Emergency Group for maintenance and repair services for fire apparatus through HGAC
Contract.
 

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
Modern fire apparatus operating systems are heavily dependent on computerized electronics
and electrical sensor systems for operation.

In the past, ten percent of the time to make a repair was figuring out what was broken and
ninety percent of the time was making the repair. Now, ninety percent of the time spent is
figuring out what is broken, and ten percent of the time is spent making the repair.

While we can still make minor repairs such as replacing bulbs, wiper blades, and door
handles in house, we do not possess the capability of diagnosing repair issues that place a
unit out of service. The City is good at engine system repair, but there are many more things
that go bad on fire apparatus that are not engine system related, and a reputable contractor is
necessary to diagnose and repair systems such as fire pumps, foam systems, and electrical
warning systems/devices.

Siddons Martin Emergency Group possess the professional skills, knowledge and abilities to
diagnose and repair fire apparatus operating systems that require advanced computer
programs with diagnostic functions specific to fire apparatus programming and has an HGAC
contract available specifically for apparatus service and repair.  
 

RECOMMENDATION
The Fire Chief recommends approval of the requisition.

Fiscal Impact
Funds Available Y/N: Yes
Amount Requested: $125,000 
Source of Funds: FY 24-25 Annual Operating Budget
Account #: 101-202-5-3400
Fiscal Impact:
Please note: This is an estimated cost based on previous expenses over a 3-year period. 



Please note: This is an estimated cost based on previous expenses over a 3-year period. 

Attachments
Exhibit A 
Resolution 



HGJICIJuy CONTRACT PRICING WORKSHEET 

II 
Contract 

FS12-23 
Date 

For MOTOR VEHICLES Only No.: Prepared: 

Due to global supply chain constraints, any delivery date contained herein is a good faith estimate as of the date of this 

order/contract. As needed, delivery updates will be provided as soon as possible. 

Buying 
Contractor: j Siddons-Martin Emergency Group 

Agency: 

Contact Prepared jJeffrey Doran 
Person: By: 

Phone: Phone: : 1-800-784-6806 

Fax: Fax: 

Email: Email: j jdoran@siddons-martin.com 

Product 

I 
I November 2024 

Description Pricing 

A. Product Item Base Unit Price Per Contractor's H-GAC Contract: I #NIA 

H. l'ubhshea upttons -ltemue below- Attach adatttonal sheet~s) II necessary. 
(Note: Published Options are "manufacturer standard options" which were submitted and priced in Contractor's proposal.) 

Description Cost Description Cost 

Subtotal From Additional Sheet(s): II 

Subtotal 8: j $0.00 

'-'· Lustomtzatton Lategory Totals- Itemue below 1 Attaco adattional sheet~s) n necessary. 
Note: Customization options are "manufacturer non-standard options" which were submitted and priced in Contractors's proposal.) 

Description Cost Description Cost 

Subtotal From Additional Sheet(s): II 

Subtotal C: l $0.00 

Check: Tota l cost ofCustomization Categories (C) cannot exceed 25% of the total of the Base 
For this transaction the percentage is: 

II 
#NIA 

Unit Price plus Published Options (A+B). 

D. Total Cost Before Any Applicable Trade-In I Other Allowances I Discounts (A+B+C) 

Quantity Ordered: II 1 II X Subtotal of A+ B + C: II #NIA II = Subtotal D: l #NIA 

E. H-GAC Order Processing Charge (Amount Per Current Policy) 2% of Total Subtotal E: l $0.00 

F. Trade-Ins I Special Discounts I Other Allowances I Freight I Installation I Miscellaneous Charges 

Description Cost Description Cost 

II Suhtot•l F: $0.00 

Delivery Date: j G. Total Purchase Price (D+E+F): II #NIA 



HGACBuy FS12-23 Solicitation 

Options Price List November 2024 

Respondent: Pierce 
267 Install Customer Provided Hand light Charger(s) $179.00 

268 Install Customer Provided Key Storage, Knox Box, in Cab $266.00 

269 Install Customer Provided Modem $820.00 

270 Install Customer Provided Thermal Camera(s), Charger Only $272.00 

271 Install Customer Provided Two-Way Radio Remote Head Cable $446.00 

272 install Customer MDT $1,523.00 

273 Install Customer Antenna $126.00 

274 Install Customer GPS $558.00 

275 install Customer radio $1,384.00 

276 install customer Knox $266.00 

277 install customer drug vault $637.00 

278 Install radio speakers $180.00 

279 Install flashlights $180.00 

280 Install Handheld chargers $269.00 

281 Install Customer 12 volt battery charger $350.00 

282 12 volt Radiobank charger $2,103.00 

283 Cab DATA Router $3,402.00 

749 Whelen Lighting and parts (Red 23 or Equal} 0% off list 

750 Havis (HS 24) 0% off list 

751 ProGard (ProGard 2024 Catalog) 0% off list 

752 Parts - 0$ off list 0% off list 

753 Major P. M. $3,457.00 

754 Aerial Maintenance $3,071.00 

755 ARFF Unit Annual Inspection $2,600.00 

756 ARFF Minor Service $3,599.00 

757 ARFF Major Service $5,041.00 

758 HRET Upgrade- Attack master 4 $37,175.00 

759 Foam System Maintenance Husky or similar (in shop) $641.00 

760 Conductivity/Refractometer Foam Testing $1,116.00 

761 CAFS Service $493.00 

762 Annual Pump Test (in shop) $617.00 

763 Quantum Step Maintenance $545.00 

764 Wheels off brake inspection - Single $434.00 

765 Wheels off brake inspection -Tandem $672.00 

766 A!C System Service $1,267.00 

767 Power steering Flush $861.00 

768 TAK4 Inspection $833.00 

769 Input Based Foam Testing Using No Foam System $2,077.00 

770 Operational Dry Chemical Testing $816.00 

771 Husky/CAFS/Foam Service $2,077.00 

772 Aerial Testing $2,357.00 

772A Maintenance Package A per year $9,960.00 

772B Maintenance Package B per year $16,346.00 

772C Maintenance Package C per year $22,387.00 

773 Labor Rate, per hour $223.00 

774 Parts - 0$ off list 0% off list 

841 Poly Console Box $3,442.00 

842 Small poly console box $2,913.00 

843 Pumper Custom Poly Mount Package $17,470.00 



844 Aerial Custom Poly Mount Package $19,848.00 

845 Rescue Custom Poly Mount Package $23,076.00 

846 Engine Tunnel Custom Poly Console $2,715.00 

847 Aluminum Custom Console $2,701.00 

848 Aerial Hardware and Adapters $5,294.00 

849 Aerial Hand tools $2,647.00 

850 Aerial Pike Poles $1,588.00 

851 Aerial SAW PACKAGE $16,941.00 

852 Pumper Saw package $12,706.00 

853 Battery powered hand tools and saws $14,823.00 

854 Pumper/Tanker Hardware and adapters $7,412.00 



RESOLUTION NO. 2024-121

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE FIRE DEPARTMENT TO
UTILIZE SIDDONS MARTIN EMERGENCY GROUP FOR
MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR SERVICES RELATED TO THE SAFE
OPERATION OF FIRE APPARATUS THROUGH THE HOUSTON-
GALVESTON AREA COUNCIL (H-GAC) BUY PROGRAM FOR THE
FIRE DEPARTMENT; AND PROVIDING THAT THIS RESOLUTION
SHALL BECOME EFFECTIVE FROM AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE AND
ADOPTION.

WHEREAS, The Fire Department desires to utilize the HGAC Contract with Siddons
Martin for maintenance and repair of fire apparatus; and

WHEREAS, CONTRACTOR possesses the professional skills, knowledge, and abilities
that can assist CITY with the maintenance and repair services related to the safe operation
of fire apparatus; and

WHEREAS, Funding for these maintenance and repair services is provided in the Fire
Department Annual Operating Budget.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION
OF THE CITY OF TEXAS CITY, TEXAS:

SECTION 1:  That the City Commission of the City of Texas City hereby authorizes the
fire department to utilize Siddons Martin Emergency Group for maintenance and repair of
fire apparatus through the Houston-Galveston Area Council (H-GAC) Buy Program
Contract No. FS12-23 in substantially the same form attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and
made part thereof.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 16th day of October 2024.

_______________________________
Dedrick D. Johnson, Sr., Mayor
City of Texas City, Texas

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

_____________________________                          ______________________________
Rhomari D. Leigh Kyle L. Dickson
City Secretary City Attorney



   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (6) (d)        
Meeting Date: 10/16/2024  
Purchase of three new trucks for the Parks Department
Submitted For: Dj Hutchinson, Public Works  Submitted By: Dj Hutchinson, Public

Works
Department: Public Works

Information
ACTION REQUEST
 Requesting Commission Approval for the Purchase of three new trucks (see below) for the
Parks Department to replace aging vehicles.  They will be purchased using Buy Board
Contract No
(724-23)
(2) 2024 Ford F250 SD, Regular Cab Long Bed Trucks for the amount of $89,974.00.
(1) 2025 Ford F150 4x4 Super Crew Bed Truck for the amount of: $46,336.00   Total Cost:
$136,310.00   Account No. 602-55020

For more detailed information on pricing and specifications of the trucks.  Please see
the attached documents.

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
The current F250 trucks are 14 years old, the F150 is 10 years old. These vehicles are
becoming problematic with increasing maintenance costs and downtime.  They are ready for
replacement.

RECOMMENDATION
It is recommended by Parks and Recreation for the Mayor and City Commission to approve
the purchase of these new vehicles.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
F250 
F150 
Resolution 



















RESOLUTION NO. 2024-122

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE PURCHASE AND DELIVERY OF
THREE (3) FORD TRUCKS THROUGH BUYBOARD CONTRACT 724-23
FOR THE PARKS DEPARTMENT; AND PROVIDING THAT THIS
RESOLUTION SHALL BECOME EFFECTIVE FROM AND AFTER ITS
PASSAGE AND ADOPTION.

WHEREAS, funds are available in the Fiscal Year 2024/2025 budget for the purchase of
three (3) Ford trucks through Buy Board Contract 724-23 from Chastang Ford for the
total price of $136,310.00; and

WHEREAS, the truck itemization is as follows:
(2) 2024 Ford F250 SD, Regular Cab Long Bed Trucks for the amount of $89,974.00.
(1) 2025 Ford F150 4x4 Super Crew Bed Truck for the amount of $46,336.00

WHEREAS, the truck will be utilized by the Parks Department.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE
CITY OF TEXAS CITY, TEXAS:

SECTION 1: That the City Commission of the City of Texas City, Texas, hereby
approves the purchase of three (3) Ford trucks through the Buy Board Contract 724-23 from
Chastang Ford for the total price of $136,310.00, as set out on the pricing summary worksheet
attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and Exhibit “B.”

SECTION 2: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its
passage and adoption.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 16th day of October 2024.

_______________________________
Dedrick D. Johnson, Sr., Mayor 
City of Texas City, Texas

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

___________________________ ____________________________
Rhomari D. Leigh Kyle L. Dickson
City Secretary City Attorney



----------------------------------------------------------------------------------
L:Resolution No. 06-132-Approve Purchase Pickup & Cab Truck
2



   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (6) (e)        
Meeting Date: 10/16/2024  
Purchase of a new Caterpillar 420-4ECA Backhoe
Submitted For: Dj Hutchinson, Public Works  Submitted By: Dj Hutchinson, Public

Works
Department: Public Works

Information
ACTION REQUEST
The Utilities Department is requesting Commission approval for the purchase of a new
Caterpillar 420-4ECA, Backhoe in the amount of:  $139,212.89 purchased through Sourcewell
Contract # 011723-CAT.COI.  Funding for this purchase is included in the budget from
Account No. 501705 55020

Please note the attachment for details on pricing and equipment specs and options.....

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
This will be an additional backhoe for the Utilities Department.  Water distribution has one that
is getting near the end of its time.  We plan to leave that machine at the water plant at Lago
Mar since it takes approximately 1 hour to drive it out there.  Most of the work is in older Texas
City and this is where the new machine will be utilized most frequently.  Leaving the older
backhoe at Lago Mar will not only save man-power and reaction time logistically, but will also
provide maintenance cost benefits from decreased engine hours and tire wear on the new
backhoe.
 

RECOMMENDATION
It is our recommendation that the Mayor and City Commission approve the purchase of this
new piece of equipment for continued timely and reliable utility service repairs for the citizens
and businesses of Texas City.
 

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Catepillar Backhoe 
Resolution 



Docusign Envelope ID: 2749DF2C-062D-4BCE-A772-5BD7FF44D623



Docusign Envelope ID: 2749DF2C-062D-4BCE-A772-5BD7FF44D623



Docusign Envelope ID: 2749DF2C-062D-4BCE-A772-5BD7FF44D623



RESOLUTION NO. 2024-123

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE PURCHASE AND DELIVERY OF A
NEW CATERPILLAR 420-4ECA BACKHOE THROUGH SOURCEWELL
CONTRACT NO. 011723-CAT.COI; AND PROVIDING THAT THIS
RESOLUTION SHALL BECOME EFFECTIVE FROM AND AFTER ITS
PASSAGE AND ADOPTION.

WHEREAS, funds are available in the Fiscal Year 2024/2025 budget for the purchase of
a new Caterpillar 420-4ECA Backhoe through Sourcewell Contract No. 011723-
CAT.COI for the total price of $139,212.89; and

WHEREAS, the backhoe will be utilized by the Utilities Department.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE
CITY OF TEXAS CITY, TEXAS:

SECTION 1: That the City Commission of the City of Texas City, Texas, hereby
approves the purchase of a new Caterpillar 420-4ECA Backhoe through Sourcewell Contract No.
011723-CAT.COI for the total price of $139,212.89, as set out on the pricing summary
worksheet attached hereto as Exhibit “A.”

SECTION 2: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its
passage and adoption.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 16th day of October 2024.

_______________________________
Dedrick D. Johnson, Sr., Mayor 
City of Texas City, Texas

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

___________________________ ____________________________
Rhomari D. Leigh Kyle L. Dickson
City Secretary City Attorney



   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (6) (f)        
Meeting Date: 10/16/2024  
Medic Unit Maintenance and Repair
Submitted For: David Zacherl, Fire Department 
Submitted By: David Zacherl, Fire Department
Department: Fire Department

Information
ACTION REQUEST
Consider and take action approving a request by the fire department to utilize Frazer LTD, for
maintenance and repair services for medic units through HGAC Contract.
 

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
Frazer LTD builds our medic units and is located in Houston, TX.

Frazer LTD, by virtue of building all our medic units, also possesses the professional skills, knowledge and
abilities to diagnose and repair our medic unit operating systems that requires advanced computer programs
with diagnostic functions specific to Frazer medic unit programming and has an HGAC contract available for the
service, parts and repair. 
 

RECOMMENDATION
The Fire Chief recommends approval of this resolution. 

Fiscal Impact
Funds Available Y/N: Yes
Amount Requested: 20,000.00
Source of Funds: FY 24/25 Operating Budget
Account #: 10120253340
Fiscal Impact:
Estimated cost based on 3-year average. 

Attachments
Exhibit A 
Resolution 



H-GAC 
Houston-Galveston Area Council 

P.O. Box 22777 ·  3555 Timmons ·  Houston, Texas 77227-2777 
Cooperative Agreement - Contract - Frazer, Ltd. - Public Services - ID: 11104  

 

Page 1 of 13 
 

 

MASTER GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 
This Master Agreement is made and entered into, by and between the Houston-Galveston Area Council  
hereinafter referred to as H-GAC having its principal place of business at 3555 Timmons Lane, Suite 120, 
Houston, Texas 77027 and Frazer, Ltd., hereinafter referred to as the Contractor, having its principal place of 
business at 7219 Rampart Street, Houston, TX 77081.  
 
WITNESSETH: 
 
WHEREAS, H-GAC hereby engages the Contractor to perform certain services in accordance with the 
specifications of the Master Agreement; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Contractor has agreed to perform such services in accordance with the specifications of the 
Master Agreement; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, H-GAC and the Contractor do hereby agree as follows: 
 
 
ARTICLE 1: LEGAL AUTHORITY 
The Contractor warrants and assures H-GAC that it possesses adequate legal authority to enter into this Master 
Agreement. The Contractor's governing body, where applicable, has authorized the signatory official(s) to enter 
into this Master Agreement and bind the Contractor to the terms of this Master Agreement and any subsequent 
amendments hereto. 
 
ARTICLE 2: APPLICABLE LAWS 
The Contractor agrees to conduct all activities under this Master Agreement in accordance with all federal laws, 
executive orders, policies, procedures, applicable rules, regulations, directives, standards, ordinances, and laws, in 
effect or promulgated during the term of this Master Agreement, including without limitation, workers’ 
compensation laws, minimum and maximum salary and wage statutes and regulations, and licensing laws and 
regulations. When required, the Contractor shall furnish H-GAC with satisfactory proof of its compliance 
therewith. 
 
ARTICLE 3: PUBLIC INFORMATION  
Except as stated below, all materials submitted to H-GAC, including any attachments, appendices, or other 
information submitted as a part of a submission or Master Agreement, are considered public information, and 
become the property of H-GAC upon submission and may be reprinted, published, or distributed in any manner by 
H-GAC according to open records laws, requirements of the US Department of Labor and the State of Texas, and 
H-GAC policies and procedures. In the event the Contractor wishes to claim portions of the response are not 
subject to the Texas Public Information Act, it shall so; however, the determination of the Texas Attorney General 
as to whether such information must be disclosed upon a public request shall be binding on the Contractor. H-GAC 
will request such a determination only if Contractor bears all costs for preparation of the submission. H-GAC is not 
responsible for the return of creative examples of work submitted. H-GAC will not be held accountable if material 
from submissions is obtained without the written consent of the contractor by parties other than H-GAC, at any 
time during the evaluation process. 
 
ARTICLE 4: INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 
The execution of this Master Agreement and the rendering of services prescribed by this Master Agreement do not 
change the independent status of H-GAC or the Contractor. No provision of this Master Agreement or act of H-
GAC in performance of the Master Agreement shall be construed as making the Contractor the agent, servant, or 
employee of H-GAC, the State of Texas, or the United States Government. Employees of the Contractor are 

DocuSign Envelope ID: AA8CD0AC-84A0-4CE1-A373-06AD1618DEB8



Page 2 of 13 

subject to the exclusive control and supervision of the Contractor. The Contractor is solely responsible for 
employee related disputes and discrepancies, including employee payrolls and any claims arising therefrom. 
 
ARTICLE 5: ANTI-COMPETITIVE BEHAVIOR  
Contractor will not collude, in any manner, or engage in any practice which may restrict or eliminate competition 
or otherwise restrain trade.  
 
ARTICLE 6: SUSPENSION AND DEBARMENT  
Debarment and Suspension (Executive Orders 12549 and 12689) – A contract award (2 CFR 180.220) must not be 
made to parties listed on the government-wide exclusions in the System for Award Management (SAM), in 
accordance with the OMB guidelines at 2 CFR 180 that implement Executive Orders 12549 (3 CFR Part 1966 
Comp. p. 189) and 12689 (3 CFR Part 1989 Comp. p. 235), “Debarment and Suspension.” SAM Exclusions 
contains the names of parties debarred, suspended, or otherwise excluded by agencies, as well as parties declared 
ineligible under statutory or regulatory authority other than Executive Order 12549.  
 
Pursuant to the Federal Rule above, Respondent certifies that neither it nor its principals are presently debarred, 
suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation by any federal 
department or agency or by the State of Texas and at all times during the term of the Contract neither it nor its 
principals will be debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from 
participation by any federal department or agency or by the State of Texas Respondent shall immediately provide 
the written notice to H-GAC if at any time the Respondent learns that this certification was erroneous when 
submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances. H-GAC may rely upon a certification of 
the Respondent that the Respondent is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from the 
covered contract, unless the H-GAC knows the certification is erroneous.  
 
ARTICLE 7: GOAL FOR CONTRACTING WITH SMALL AND MINORITY BUSINESSES, WOMEN’S 
BUSINESS ENTERPRISES, AND LABOR SURPLUS AREA FIRMS  (if subcontracts are to be let)  
H-GAC’s goal is to assure that small and minority businesses, women's business enterprises, and labor surplus area 
firms are used when possible in providing services under a contract. In accordance with federal procurements 
requirements of 2 CFR §200.321, if subcontracts are to be let, the prime contractor must take the affirmative steps 
listed below: 

1. Placing qualified small and minority businesses and women’s business enterprises on solicitation lists; 
2. Assuring that small and minority businesses and women’s business enterprises are solicited whenever 

they are potential sources; 
3. Dividing total requirements, when economically feasible, into smaller task or quantities to permit 

maximum participation by small and minority businesses, and women’s business enterprises; 
4. Establishing delivery schedules, where the requirement permits, which encourage participation by small 

and minority businesses, and women’s business enterprises; 
5. Using the services and assistance as appropriate, of such organizations as the Small Business 

Administration and the Minority Business Development Agency of the Department of Commerce. 
6.  

Nothing in this provision will be construed to require the utilization of any firm that is either unqualified or 
unavailable. The Small Business Administration (SBA) is the primary reference and database for information on 
requirements related to Federal Subcontracting https://www.sba.gov/federal-contracting/contracting-guide/prime-
subcontracting  
 
NOTE: The term DBE as used in this solicitation is understood to encompass all programs/business enterprises such 
as: Small Disadvantaged Business (SDB), Historically Underutilized Business (HUB), Minority Owned Business 
Enterprise (MBE), Women Owned Business Enterprise (WBE) and Disabled Veteran Business Enterprise (DVBE) 
or other designation as issued by a certifying agency.  
 
Contractor agrees to work with and assist HGACBuy customer in meeting any DBE targets and goals, as 
may be required by any rules, processes, or programs they might have in place.  Assistance may include 
compliance with reporting requirements, provision of documentation, consideration of Certified/Listed 
subcontractors, provision of documented evidence that an active participatory role for a DBE entity was 

DocuSign Envelope ID: AA8CD0AC-84A0-4CE1-A373-06AD1618DEB8



Page 3 of 13 

considered in a procurement transaction, etc. 
 
ARTICLE 8: SCOPE OF SERVICES 
The services to be performed by the Contractor are outlined in an Attachment to this Master Agreement. 
 
ARTICLE 9: PERFORMANCE PERIOD 
This Master Agreement shall be performed during the period which begins Oct 01 2023 and ends Sep 30 2027. All 
services under this Master Agreement must be rendered within this performance period, unless directly specified 
under a written change or extension provisioned under Article 21, which shall be fully executed by both parties to 
this Master Agreement. 
 
ARTICLE 10: PAYMENT OR FUNDING 
Payment provisions under this Master Agreement are outlined in the Special Provisions. H-GAC will not pay for 
any expenses incurred prior to the execution date of a contract, or any expenses incurred after the termination date 
of the contract. 
 
ARTICLE 11: PAYMENT FOR WORK 
The H-GAC Customer is responsible for making payment to the Contractor upon delivery and acceptance of the 
goods or completion of the services and submission of the subsequent invoice.  
 
ARTICLE 12: PAYMENT TERMS/PRE-PAYMENT/QUANTITY DISCOUNTS  
If discounts for accelerated payment, pre-payment, progress payment, or quantity discounts are offered, they must 
be clearly indicated in the Contractor’s submission prior to contract award. The applicability or acceptance of these 
terms is at the discretion of the Customer.  
 
ARTICLE 13: REPORTING REQUIREMENTS 
If the Contractor fails to submit to H-GAC in a timely and satisfactory manner any report required by this Master 
Agreement, or otherwise fails to satisfactorily render performances hereunder, H-GAC may terminate this Master 
Agreement with notice as identified in Article 29 of these General Provisions. H-GAC has final determination of 
the adequacy of performance and reporting by Contractor. Termination of this Master Agreement for failure to 
perform may affect Contractor’s ability to participate in future opportunities with H-GAC. The Contractor's failure 
to timely submit any report may also be considered cause for termination of this Master Agreement. Any additional 
reporting requirements shall be set forth in the Special Provisions of this Master Agreement. 
 
ARTICLE 14: INSURANCE 
Contractor shall maintain insurance coverage for work performed or services rendered under this Master 
Agreement as outlined and defined in the attached Special Provisions. 
 
ARTICLE 15: SUBCONTRACTS AND ASSIGNMENTS 
Except as may be set forth in the Special Provisions, the Contractor agrees not to assign, transfer, convey, sublet, 
or otherwise dispose of this Master Agreement or any right, title, obligation, or interest it may have therein to any 
third party without prior written approval of H-GAC. The Contractor acknowledges that H-GAC is not liable to 
any subcontractor or assignee of the Contractor. The Contractor shall ensure that the performance rendered under 
all subcontracts shall result in compliance with all the terms and provisions of this Master Agreement as if the 
performance rendered was rendered by the Contractor. Contractor shall give all required notices, and comply with 
all laws and regulations applicable to furnishing and performance of the work. Except where otherwise expressly 
required by applicable law or regulation, H-GAC shall not be responsible for monitoring Contractor's compliance, 
or that of Contractor’s subcontractors, with any laws or regulations. 
 
 
 
ARTICLE 16: AUDIT 
Notwithstanding any other audit requirement, H-GAC reserves the right to conduct or cause to be conducted an 
independent audit of any transaction under this Master Agreement, such audit may be performed by the H-GAC 
local government audit staff, a certified public accountant firm, or other auditors designated by H-GAC and will be 

DocuSign Envelope ID: AA8CD0AC-84A0-4CE1-A373-06AD1618DEB8



Page 4 of 13 

conducted in accordance with applicable professional standards and practices. The Contractor understands and 
agrees that the Contractor shall be liable to the H-GAC for any findings that result in monetary obligations to H-
GAC. 
 
ARTICLE 17: TAX EXEMPT STATUS 
H-GAC and Customer members are either units of government or qualified non-profit agencies, and are generally 
exempt from Federal and State sales, excise or use taxes. Respondent must not include taxes in its Response. It is 
the responsibility of Contractor to determine the applicability of any taxes to an order and act accordingly. 
Exemption certificates will be provided upon request. 
 
ARTICLE 18: EXAMINATION OF RECORDS 
The Contractor shall maintain during the course of the work complete and accurate records of all of the 
Contractor's costs and documentation of items which are chargeable to H-GAC under this Master Agreement. H-
GAC, through its staff or designated public accounting firm, the State of Texas, and United States Government, 
shall have the right at any reasonable time to inspect, copy and audit those records on or off the premises by 
authorized representatives of its own or any public accounting firm selected by H-GAC. The right of access to 
records is not limited to the required retention period, but shall last as long as the records are retained. Failure to 
provide access to records may be cause for termination of the Master Agreement. The records to be thus 
maintained and retained by the Contractor shall include (without limitation): (1) personnel and payroll records, 
including social security numbers and labor classifications, accounting for total time distribution of the 
Contractor's employees working full or part time on the work, as well as cancelled payroll checks, signed receipts 
for payroll payments in cash, or other evidence of disbursement of payroll payments; (2) invoices for purchases, 
receiving and issuing documents, and all other unit inventory records for the Contractor's stocks or capital items; 
and (3) paid invoices and cancelled checks for materials purchased and for subcontractors' and any other third 
parties' charges.   
 
Contractor agrees that H-GAC will have the right, with reasonable notice, to inspect its records pertaining to 
purchase orders processed and the accuracy of the fees payable to H-GAC. The Contractor further agrees that the 
examination of records outlined in this article shall be included in all subcontractor or third-party Master 
Agreements.  
 
ARTICLE 19: RETENTION OF RECORDS 
The Contractor and its subcontractors shall maintain all records pertinent to this Master Agreement, and all other 
financial, statistical, property, participant records, and supporting documentation for a period of no less than seven 
(7) years from the later of the date of acceptance of the final payment or until all audit findings have been resolved. 
If any litigation, claim, negotiation, audit or other action involving the records has been started before the 
expiration of the retention period, the records shall be retained until completion of the action and resolution of all 
issues which arise from it, or until the end of the seven (7) years, whichever is later, and until any outstanding 
litigation, audit, or claim has been fully resolved. 
 
ARTICLE 20: DISTRIBUTORS, VENDORS, RESELLERS 
Contractor agrees and acknowledges that any such designations of distributors, vendors, resellers or the like are for 
the convenience of the Contractor only and the awarded Contractor will remain responsible and liable for all 
obligations under the Contract and the performance of any designated distributor, vendor, reseller, etc. Contractor 
is also responsible for receiving and processing any Customer purchase order in accordance with the Contract and 
forwarding of the Purchase Order to the designated distributor, vendor, reseller, etc. to complete the sale or service. 
H-GAC reserves the right to reject any entity acting on the Contractor’s behalf or refuse to add entities after a 
contract is awarded.  
 
 
 
ARTICLE 21: CHANGE ORDERS AND AMENDMENTS 

A. Any alterations, additions, or deletions to the terms of this Master Agreement, which are required by 
changes in federal or state law or by regulations, are automatically incorporated without written 
amendment hereto, and shall become effective on the date designated by such law or by regulation. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: AA8CD0AC-84A0-4CE1-A373-06AD1618DEB8



Page 5 of 13 

 
B. To ensure the legal and effective performance of this Master Agreement, both parties agree that any 

amendment that affects the performance under this Master Agreement must be mutually agreed upon and 
that all such amendments must be in writing.  After a period of no less than 30 days subsequent to written 
notice, unless sooner implementation is required by law, such amendments shall have the effect of 
qualifying the terms of this Master Agreement and shall be binding upon the parties as if written herein. 
 

C. Customers have the right to issue a change order to any purchase orders issued to the Contractor for the 
purposes of clarification or inclusion of additional specifications, qualifications, conditions, etc. The 
change order must be in writing and agreed upon by Contractor and the Customer agency prior to issuance 
of any Change Order. A copy of the Change Order must be provided by the Contractor to, and 
acknowledged by, H-GAC.  

 
ARTICLE 22: CONTRACT ITEM CHANGES 

A. If a manufacturer discontinues a contracted item, that item will automatically be considered deleted from 
the contract with no penalty to Contractor. However, H-GAC may at its sole discretion elect to make a 
contract award to the next lowest Respondent for the item, or take any other action deemed by H-GAC, at 
its sole discretion, to be in the best interests of its Customers. 

 
B. If a manufacturer makes any kind of change in a contracted item which affects the contract price, 

Contractor must advise H-GAC of the details. H-GAC may allow or reject the change at its sole discretion. 
If the change is rejected, H-GAC will remove the item from its program and there will be no penalty to 
Contractor. However, H- GAC may at its sole discretion elect to make a contract award to the next lowest 
Respondent for the item, or take any other action deemed by H-GAC, at its sole discretion, to be in the best 
interests of its Customers. 
 

C. If a manufacturer makes any change in a contracted item which does not affect the contract price, 
Contractor shall advise H-GAC of the details. If the 'new' item is equal to or better than the originally 
contracted item, the 'new' item shall be approved as a replacement. If the change is rejected H-GAC will 
remove the item from its program and there will be no penalty to Contractor. However, H-GAC may at its 
sole discretion elect to make a contract award to the next lowest Respondent for the item or may take any 
other action deemed by H-GAC at its sole discretion, to be in the best interests of its Customers. 
 

D. In the case of specifically identified catalogs or price sheets which have been contracted as base bid items 
or as published options, routine published changes to products and pricing will be automatically 
incorporated into the contract. However, Contractor must still provide written notice and an explanation of 
the changes to products and pricing. H-GAC will respond with written approval. 

 
 

ARTICLE 23: CONTRACT PRICE ADJUSTMENTS 
Price Decreases 
If Contractor’s Direct Cost decreases at any time during the full term of this award, Contractor must immediately 
pass the decrease on to H-GAC and lower its prices by the amount of the decrease in Direct Cost. (Direct Cost 
means Contractor’s cost from the manufacturer of any item or if Contractor is the manufacturer, the cost of raw 
materials required to manufacture the item, plus costs of transportation from manufacturer to Contractor and 
Contractor to H-GAC. Contractor must notify H-GAC of price decreases in the same way as for price increases set 
out below. The price decrease shall become effective upon H-GAC’s receipt of Contractor’s notice. If Contractor 
routinely offers discounted contract pricing, H-GAC may request Contractor accept amended contract pricing 
equivalent to the routinely discounted pricing. 
 
 
Price Increase 
Contractors may request a price increase for items priced as Base Bid items and Published Options. The amount of 
any increase will not exceed actual documented increase in Contractor’s Direct Cost and will not exceed 10% of 

DocuSign Envelope ID: AA8CD0AC-84A0-4CE1-A373-06AD1618DEB8



Page 6 of 13 

the previous bid price. Considerations on the percentage limit will be given if the price increase is the result of 
increased tariff charges or other governmental actions, or other economic factors. Manufacturer price/contract 
changes involving the sale of motor vehicles will be considered and may be allowed during the entire contract 
period subject to submission and verification of the proper documentation required for a contract change as 
referenced in this section. 
 
Price Changes 
Any permanent increase or decrease in offered pricing for a base contract item or published option is considered a 
price change. Temporary increases in pricing by whatever name (e.g., ‘surcharge’, ‘adjustment’, ‘equalization 
charge’, ‘compliance charge’, ‘recovery charge’, etc.), are also considered to be price changes. 
For published catalogs and price sheets as part of an H-GAC contract, requests to amend the contract to reflect any 
new published catalog or price sheet must be submitted whenever the manufacturer publishes a new document. 
The request must include the new catalog or price sheet. All Products shall, at time of sale, be equipped as required 
under any then current applicable local, state, and federal government requirements. If, during any contract, 
changes are made to any government requirements which cause a manufacturer's costs of production to increase, 
Contractor may increase pricing to the extent of Contractor’s actual cost increase. The increase must be 
substantiated with support documentation acceptable to H-GAC prior to taking effect. Modifications to a Product 
required to comply with such requirements which become effective after the date of any sale are the responsibility 
of the Customer. 
 
Requesting Price Increase/Required Documentation 
Contractor must submit a written overview of changes requested and reasons for the request, stating the amount of 
the increase, along with an itemized list of any increased prices, showing the Contractor’s current price, revised 
price, the actual dollar difference and the percentage of the price increase by line item. Price change requests must 
be supported with substantive documentation (e.g., notices from suppliers and manufacturers of pricing changes in 
products, components, transportation, raw materials or commodities, and/or product availability, copies of invoices 
from suppliers, etc.) clearly showing that Contractor's actual costs have increased per the applicable line-item bid. 
The Producer Price Index (PPI) may be used as partial justification, subject to approval by H-GAC, but no price 
increase based solely on an increase in the PPI will be allowed. This documentation should be submitted in Excel 
format to facilitate analysis and updating of the website. The letter and documentation must be sent to Lead 
Program Coordinator, james.glover@h-gac.com. 
 
Review/Approval of Requests 
If H-GAC approves the price increase, Contractor will be notified in writing; no price increase will be effective 
until Contractor receives this notice. If H-GAC does not approve Contractor’s price increase, Contractor may 
terminate its performance upon sixty (60) days advance written notice to H-GAC, however Contractor must fulfill 
any outstanding Purchase Orders. Termination of performance is Contractor’s only remedy if H-GAC does not 
approve the price increase. H-GAC reserves the right to accept or reject any price change request. 
 
ARTICLE 24: DELIVERIES AND SHIPPING TERMS 
The Contractor agrees to make deliveries only upon receipt of authorized Customer Purchase Order acknowledged 
by H-GAC. Delivery made without such Purchase Order will be at Contractor’s risk and will leave H-GAC the 
option of canceling any contract awarded to the Contractor. The Contractor must secure and deliver any item 
within five (5) working days, or as agreed to on any corresponding customer Purchase Order. 
 
Shipping must be Freight On Board Destination to the delivery location designated on the Customer purchase 
order. The Contractor will retain title and control of all goods until delivery is completed and the Customer has 
accepted the delivery. All risk of transportation and all related charges are the responsibility of the Contractor. The 
Customer will notify the Contractor and H-GAC promptly of any damaged goods and will assist the Contractor in 
arranging for inspection. The Contractor must file all claims for visible or concealed damage. Unless otherwise 
stated in the Master Agreement, deliveries must consist only of new and unused merchandise. 
 
ARTICLE 25: RESTOCKING (EXCHANGES AND RETURNS)  
There will be no restocking charge to the Customer for return or exchange of any item purchased under the terms 
of any award. If the Customer wishes to return items purchased under an awarded contract, the Contractor agrees 

DocuSign Envelope ID: AA8CD0AC-84A0-4CE1-A373-06AD1618DEB8



Page 7 of 13 

to exchange, these items for other items, with no additional charge incurred. Items must be returned to Contractor 
within thirty (30) days from date of delivery. If there is a difference in price in the items exchanged, the Contractor 
must notify H-GAC and invoice Customer for increase price or provide the Customer with a credit or refund for 
any decrease in price per Customer’s preference. On items returned, a credit or cash refund will be issued by the 
Contractor to Customer. This return and exchange option will extend for thirty (30) days following the expiration 
of the term of the Contract. All items returned by the Customer must be unused and in the same merchantable 
condition as when received. Items that are special ordered may be returned only upon approval of the Contractor. 
 
ARTICLE 26: MANUALS 
Each product delivered under contract to any Customer must be delivered with at least one (1) copy of a safety and 
operating manual and any other technical or maintenance manual. The cost of the manual(s) must be included in 
the price for the Product offered.  
 
ARTICLE 27: OUT OF STOCK, PRODUCT RECALLS, AND DISCONTINUED PRODUCTS 
H-GAC does NOT purchase the products sold pursuant to a Solicitation or Master Agreement. Contractor is 
responsible for ensuring that notices and mailings, such as Out of Stock or Discontinued Notices, Safety Alerts, 
Safety Recall Notices, and customer surveys, are sent directly to the Customer with a copy sent to H-GAC. 
Customer will have the option of accepting any equivalent product or canceling the item from Customer’s 
Purchase Order. Contractor is not authorized to make substitutions without prior approval.  
 
ARTICLE 28: WARRANTIES, SALES, AND SERVICE 
Warranties must be the manufacturer's standard and inclusive of any other warranty requirements stated in the 
Master Agreement; any warranties offered by a dealer will be in addition to the manufacturer’s standard warranty 
and will not be a substitute for such. Pricing for any product must be inclusive of the standard warranty.  
 
Contractor is responsible for the execution and effectiveness of all product warranty requests and any claims, 
Contractor agrees to respond directly to correct warranty claims and to ensure reconciliation of warranty claims 
that have been assigned to a third party. 
 
ARTICLE 29: TERMINATION PROCEDURES 
The Contractor acknowledges that this Master Agreement may be terminated for Convenience or Default. 
H-GAC will not pay for any expenses incurred after the termination date of the contract. 
 

A. Convenience 
H-GAC may terminate this Master Agreement at any time, in whole or in part, with or without cause, 
whenever H-GAC determines that for any reason such termination is in the best interest of H-GAC, by 
providing written notice by certified mail to the Contractor. Upon receipt of notice of termination, all 
services hereunder of the Contractor and its employees and subcontractors shall cease to the extent 
specified in the notice of termination.  
 
The Contractor may cancel or terminate this Master Agreement upon submission of thirty (30) days 
written notice, presented to H-GAC via certified mail. The Contractor may not give notice of cancellation 
after it has received notice of default from H-GAC. 
 

B. Default 
H-GAC may, by written notice of default to the Contractor, terminate the whole or any part of the Master 
Agreement, in any one of the following circumstances: 
(1) If the Contractor fails to perform the services herein specified within the time specified herein or any 

extension thereof; or 
(2) If the Contractor fails to perform any of the other provisions of this Master Agreement for any reason 

whatsoever, or so fails to make progress or otherwise violates the Master Agreements that completion 
of services herein specified within the Master Agreement term is significantly endangered, and in 
either of these two instances does not cure such failure within a period of ten (10) days (or such longer 
period of time as may be authorized by H-GAC in writing) after receiving written notice by certified 
mail of default from H-GAC. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: AA8CD0AC-84A0-4CE1-A373-06AD1618DEB8



Page 8 of 13 

(3) In the event of such termination, Contractor will notify H-GAC of any outstanding Purchase Orders and 
H-GAC will consult with the End User and notify the Contractor to what extent the End User wishes the 
Contractor to complete the Purchase Order. If Contractor is unable to do so, Contractor may be subject to 
a claim for damages from H-GAC and/or the End User.    

 
ARTICLE 30: SEVERABILITY 
H-GAC and Contractor agree that should any provision of this Master Agreement be determined to be invalid or 
unenforceable, such determination shall not affect any other term of this Master Agreement, which shall continue 
in full force and effect. 
 
ARTICLE 31: FORCE MAJEURE 
To the extent that either party to this Master Agreement shall be wholly or partially prevented from the 
performance of any obligation or duty placed on such party by reason of or through strikes, stoppage of labor, riot, 
fire, flood, acts of war, insurrection, accident, order of any court, act of God, or specific cause reasonably beyond 
the party's control and not attributable to its neglect or nonfeasance, in such event, the time for the performance of 
such obligation or duty shall be suspended until such disability to perform is removed. Determination of force 
majeure shall rest solely with H-GAC. 
 
ARTICLE 32: CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
No officer, member or employee of the Contractor or Contractors subcontractor, no member of the governing body 
of the Contractor, and no other public officials of the Contractor who exercise any functions or responsibilities in 
the review or Contractor approval of this Master Agreement, shall participate in any decision relating to this 
Master Agreement which affects his or her personal interest, or shall have any personal or pecuniary interest, direct 
or indirect, in this Master Agreement. 
 

A. Conflict of Interest Questionnaire: Chapter 176 of the Texas Local Government Code requires contractors 
contracting or seeking to contract with H-GAC to file a conflict-of-interest questionnaire (CIQ) if they have 
an employment or other business relationship with an H-GAC officer or an officer’s close family member. 
The required questionnaire and instructions are located on the H-GAC website or at the Texas Ethics 
Commission website https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/forms/CIQ.pdf. H-GAC officers include its Board of 
Directors and Executive Director, who are listed on this website. Respondent must complete and file a CIQ 
with the Texas Ethics Commission if an employment or business relationship with H-GAC office or an 
officer’s close family member as defined in the law exists.  

 
B. Certificate of Interested Parties Form – Form 1295: As required by Section 2252.908 of the Texas 

Government Code. H-GAC will not enter a Contract with Contractor unless (i) the Contractor submits a 
disclosure of interested parties form to H-GAC at the time the Contractor submits the contract H-GAC, or 
(ii) the Contractor is exempt from such requirement. The required form and instructions are located at the 
Texas Ethics Commission website https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm. 
Respondents who are awarded a Contract must submit their Form 1295 with the signed Contract to H-GAC.  

 
ARTICLE 33: FEDERAL COMPLIANCE  
Contractor agrees to comply with all federal statutes relating to nondiscrimination, labor standards, and 
environmental compliance. With regards to “Rights to Inventions Made Under a Contract or Master Agreement,” 
If the Federal award meets the definition of “funding Master Agreement” under 37 CFR § 401.2 (a) and the 
recipient or subrecipient wishes to enter into a contract with a small business firm or nonprofit organization 
regarding the substitution of parties, assignment or performance of experimental, developmental, or research work 
under that “funding Master Agreement,” the recipient or subrecipient must comply with the requirements of 37 
CFR Part 401, “Rights to Inventions Made by Nonprofit Organizations and Small Business Firms Under 
Government Grants, Contracts and Cooperative Master Agreements,” and any implementing regulations issued by 
the awarding agency. Contractor agrees to be wholly compliant with the provisions of 2 CFR 200, Appendix II. 
Additionally, for work to be performed under the Master Agreement or subcontract thereof, including procurement 
of materials or leases of equipment, Contractor shall notify each potential subcontractor or supplier of the 
Contractor's federal compliance obligations. These may include, but are not limited to: (a) Title VI of the Civil 
Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 88-352) which prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color or national origin; (b) 

DocuSign Envelope ID: AA8CD0AC-84A0-4CE1-A373-06AD1618DEB8



Page 9 of 13 

Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended (20 U.S.C. §§ 1681-1683, and 1685-1686), which 
prohibits discrimination on the basis of sex; (c) the Fair Labor Standards Act of 1938 (29 USC 676 et. seq.), (d) 
Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (29 U.S.C. § 794), which prohibits discrimination on 
the basis of handicaps and the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990; (e) the Age Discrimination in Employment 
Act of 1967 (29 USC 621 et. seq.) and the Age Discrimination Act of 1974, as amended (42 U.S.C. §§ 6101-6107), 
which prohibits discrimination on the basis of age; (f) the Drug Abuse Office and Treatment Act of 1972 (P.L. 92-
255), as amended, relating to nondiscrimination on the basis of drug abuse; (g) the Comprehensive Alcohol Abuse 
and Alcoholism Prevention, Treatment and Rehabilitation Act of 1970 (P.L. 91-616), as amended, relating to the 
nondiscrimination on the basis of alcohol abuse or alcoholism; (h) §§ 523 and 527 of the Public Health Service Act 
of 1912 (42 U.S.C. 290 dd-3 and 290 ee-3), as amended, relating to confidentiality of alcohol and drug abuse 
patient records; (i) Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. § 3601 et seq.), as amended, relating to 
nondiscrimination in the sale, rental or financing of housing; (j) any other nondiscrimination provisions in any 
specific statute(s) applicable to any Federal funding for this Master Agreement; (k) the requirements of any other 
nondiscrimination statute(s) which may apply to this Master Agreement; (l) applicable provisions of the Clean Air 
Act (42 U.S.C. §7401 et seq.), the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended (33 U.S.C. §1251 et seq.), 
Section 508 of the Clean Water Act (33 U.S.C. 1368), Executive Order 11738, and the Environmental Protection 
Agency regulations at 40 CPR Part 15; (m) applicable provisions of the Davis• Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. 276a - 276a-
7), the Copeland Act (40 U.S.C. 276c), and the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 327-
332), as set forth in Department of Labor Regulations at 20 CPR 5.5a; (n) the mandatory standards and policies 
relating to energy efficiency which are contained in the state energy conservation plan issued in compliance with 
the Energy Policy and Conservation Act (P.L. 94-163). 
 
ARTICLE 34: PROHIBITION ON CONTRACTING WITH ENTITIES USING CERTAIN 
TELECOMMUNICATIONS AND VIDEO SURVEILLANCE EQUIPMENT (EFFECTIVE AUG. 13, 2020 
AND AS AMENDED OCTOBER 26, 2020) 
Pursuant to 2 CFR 200.216, Contractor shall not offer equipment, services, or system that use covered 
telecommunications equipment or services as a substantial or essential component of any system, or as critical 
technology as part of any system. Covered telecommunications equipment or services means 1) 
telecommunications equipment produced by Huawei Technologies Company or ZTE Corporation (or any 
subsidiary or affiliate of such entities); 2) for the purpose of public safety, security of government facilities, 
physical security surveillance of critical infrastructure, and other national security purposes, video surveillance and 
telecommunications equipment produced by Hytera Communications Corporation, Hangzhou Hikvision Digital 
Technology Company, or Dahua Technology Company (or any subsidiary or affiliate of such entities); 3) 
telecommunications or video surveillance services provided by such entities or using such equipment; or 4) 
telecommunications or video surveillance equipment or services produced or provided by an entity that the 
Secretary of Defense, in consultation with the Director of National Intelligence or the Director of the Federal 
Bureau of Investigation, reasonably believes to be an entity owned or controlled by, or otherwise connected to, the 
government of a covered foreign country. Respondent must comply with requirements for certifications. The 
provision at 48 C.F.R Section 52.204-26 requires that offerors review SAM prior to completing their required 
representations. This rule applies to all acquisitions, including acquisitions at or below the simplified acquisition 
threshold and to acquisitions of commercial items, including commercially available off the-shelf items. 
 
ARTICLE 35: DOMESTIC PREFERENCE 
In accordance with 2 CFR 200.322, as appropriate and to the extent consistent with law, when using federal grant 
award funds H-GAC should, to the greatest extent practicable, provide a preference for the purchase, acquisition, 
or use of goods, products, or materials produced in the United States (including but not limited to iron, aluminum, 
steel, cement, and other manufactured products). H-GAC must include this requirement in all subawards including 
all contracts and purchase orders for work or products under the federal grant award. If Contractor intends to 
qualify for Purchase Orders using federal grant money, then it shall work with H-GAC to provide all required 
certifications and other documentation needed to show compliance. 
 
ARTICLE 36: CRIMINAL PROVISIONS AND SANCTIONS 
The Contractor agrees to perform the Master Agreement in conformance with safeguards against fraud and abuse 
as set forth by the H-GAC, the State of Texas, and the acts and regulations of any related state or federal agency. 
The Contractor agrees to promptly notify H-GAC of any actual or suspected fraud, abuse, or other criminal activity 

DocuSign Envelope ID: AA8CD0AC-84A0-4CE1-A373-06AD1618DEB8



Page 10 of 13 

through the filing of a written report within twenty-four (24) hours of knowledge thereof. Contractor shall notify 
H-GAC of any accident or incident requiring medical attention arising from its activities under this Master 
Agreement within twenty-four (24) hours of such occurrence. Theft or willful damage to property on loan to the 
Contractor from H-GAC, if any, shall be reported to local law enforcement agencies and H-GAC within two (2) 
hours of discovery of any such act. 
 
The Contractor further agrees to cooperate fully with H-GAC, local law enforcement agencies, the State of Texas, 
the Federal Bureau of Investigation, and any other duly authorized investigative unit, in carrying out a full 
investigation of all such incidents. 
 
The Contractor shall notify H-GAC of the threat of lawsuit or of any actual suit filed against the Contractor 
pertaining to this Master Agreement or which would adversely affect the Contractor’s ability to perform services 
under this Master Agreement. 
 
ARTICLE 37: INDEMNIFICATION AND RECOVERY 
H-GAC’s liability under this Master Agreement, whether for breach of contract, warranty, negligence, strict 
liability, in tort or otherwise, is limited to its order processing charge. In no event will H-GAC be liable for any 
loss of use, loss of time, inconvenience, commercial loss, lost profits, or savings or other incidental, special or 
consequential damages to the full extent such use may be disclaimed by law. Contractor agrees, to the extent 
permitted by law, to defend and hold harmless H-GAC, its board members, officers, agents, officials, employees, 
and indemnities from any and all claims, costs, expenses (including reasonable attorney fees), actions, causes of 
action, judgements, and liens arising as a result of Contractor’s negligent act or omission under this Master 
Agreement. Contractor shall notify H-GAC of the threat of lawsuit or of any actual suit filed against Contractor 
relating to this Master Agreement. 
 
ARTICLE 38: LIMITATION OF CONTRACTOR’S LIABILITY 
Except as specified in any separate writing between the Contractor and an END USER, Contractor’s total liability 
under this Master Agreement, whether for breach of contract, warranty, negligence, strict liability, in tort or 
otherwise, but excluding its obligation to indemnify H-GAC, is limited to the price of the particular 
products/services sold hereunder, and Contractor agrees either to refund the purchase price or to repair or replace 
product(s) that are not as warranted. In no event will Contractor be liable for any loss of use, loss of time, 
inconvenience, commercial loss, loss of profits or savings or other incidental, special or consequential damages to 
the full extent such use may be disclaimed by law. Contractor understands and agrees that it shall be liable to repay 
and shall repay upon demand to END USER any amounts determined by H-GAC, its independent auditors, or any 
agency of State or Federal government to have been paid in violation of the terms of this Master Agreement. 
 
ARTICLE 39: TITLES NOT RESTRICTIVE 
The titles assigned to the various Articles of this Master Agreement are for convenience only. Titles shall not be 
considered restrictive of the subject matter of any Article, or part of this Master Agreement. 
 
ARTICLE 40: JOINT WORK PRODUCT 
This Master Agreement is the joint work product of H-GAC and the Contractor. This Master Agreement has been 
negotiated by H-GAC and the Contractor and their respective counsel and shall be fairly interpreted in accordance 
with its terms and, in the event of any ambiguities, no inferences shall be drawn against any party. 
 
ARTICLE 41: PROCUREMENT OF RECOVERED MATERIAL 
H-GAC and the Respondent must comply with section 6002 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act, as amended by the 
Resource Conservation and Recovery Act. The requirements of Section 6002 include: (1) procuring only items 
designated in guidelines of the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) at 40 CFR part 247 that contain the 
highest percentage of recovered materials practicable, consistent with maintaining a satisfactory level of 
competition, where the purchase price of the item exceeds $10,000 or the value of the quantity acquired during the 
preceding fiscal year exceeded $10,000; (2) procuring solid waste management services in a manner that 
maximizes energy and resource recovery; and (3) establishing an affirmative procurement program for 
procurement of recovered materials identified in the EPA guidelines. Pursuant to the Federal Rule above, as 
required by the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act of 1976 (42 U.S.C. § 6962(c)(3)(A)(i)), Respondent 

DocuSign Envelope ID: AA8CD0AC-84A0-4CE1-A373-06AD1618DEB8



Page 11 of 13 

certifies that the percentage of recovered materials content for EPA-designated items to be delivered or used in the 
performance of the Contract will be at least the amount required by the applicable contract specifications or other 
contractual requirements. 
 
ARTICLE 42: COPELAND “ANTI-KICKBACK” ACT 
Contractor shall comply with 18 U.S.C. § 874, 40 U.S.C. § 3145, and the requirements of 29 C.F.R. pt. 3 as may be 
applicable, which are incorporated by reference into the contract. The contractor or subcontractor shall insert in 
any subcontracts the clause above and such other clauses as appropriate agency instructions require, and also a 
clause requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. The prime contractor 
shall be responsible for the compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with all of these contract 
clauses. A breach of the contract clauses above may be grounds for termination of the Contract, and for debarment 
as a contractor and subcontractor as provided in 29 C.F.R. § 5.12. 
 
ARTICLE 43: DISCRIMINATION 
Respondent and any potential subcontractors shall comply with all Federal statutes relating to nondiscrimination. 
These include, but are not limited to: 
 

a) Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 88-352), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of 
race, color, or national origin; 

b) Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended (20 U.S.C. §§1681-1683, and 1685-1686), 
which prohibits discrimination on the basis of sex; 

c) Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (29 U.S.C. §794), which prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of handicaps;  

d) The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended (42 U.S.C. §§6101- 6107), which prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of age; 

e) The Drug Abuse Office and Treatment Act of 1972 (P.L. 92-255), as amended, relating to 
nondiscrimination on the basis of drug abuse;  

f) The Comprehensive Alcohol Abuse and Alcoholism Prevention, Treatment and Rehabilitation Act of 
1970 (P.L. 91-616), as amended, relating to nondiscrimination on the basis of alcohol abuse or 
alcoholism;  

g) Sections 523 and 527 of the Public Health Service Act of 1912 (42 U.S.C. §§290 dd-3 and 290 ee-3), as 
amended, relating to confidentiality of alcohol and drug abuse patient records; 

h) Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. §§3601 et seq.), as amended, relating to 
nondiscrimination in the sale, rental, or financing of housing; 

i) Any other nondiscrimination provisions in the specific statute(s) under which application for Federal 
assistance is being made; and  

j) The requirements of any other nondiscrimination statute(s) that may apply to the application. 
 

ARTICLE 44: DRUG FREE WORKPLACE 
Contractor must provide a drug-free workplace in accordance with the Drug-Free Workplace Act, as applicable. 
For the purposes of this Section, “drug-free” means a worksite at which employees are prohibited from engaging in 
the unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession, or use of a controlled substance. H-GAC may 
request a copy of this policy. 
 
ARTICLE 45: APPLICABILITY TO SUBCONTRACTORS  
Respondent agrees that all contracts it awards pursuant to the contract awarded as a result of this Master 
Agreement will be bound by the foregoing terms and conditions. 
 
ARTICLE 46: WARRANTY AND COPYRIGHT  
Submissions must include all warranty information, including items covered, items excluded, duration, and 
renewability. Submissions must include proof of licensing if using third party code for programming. 
 
ARTICLE 47: DATA HANDLING AND SECURITY 
It will always be the responsibility of the selected Contractor to manage data transfer and to secure all data 
appropriately during the project to prevent unauthorized access to all data, products, and deliverables. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: AA8CD0AC-84A0-4CE1-A373-06AD1618DEB8



Page 12 of 13 

 
ARTICLE 48: DISPUTES 
All disputes concerning questions of fact or of law arising under this Master Agreement, which are not addressed 
within the Whole Master Agreement as defined pursuant to Article 4 hereof, shall be decided by the Executive 
Director of H-GAC or his designee, who shall reduce his decision to writing and provide notice thereof to the 
Contractor. The decision of the Executive Director or his designee shall be final and conclusive unless, within 
thirty (30) days from the date of receipt of such notice, the Contractor requests a rehearing from the Executive 
Director of H-GAC. In connection with any rehearing under this Article, the Contractor shall be afforded an 
opportunity to be heard and offer evidence in support of its position. The decision of the Executive Director after 
any such rehearing shall be final and conclusive. The Contractor may, if it elects to do so, appeal the final and 
conclusive decision of the Executive Director to a court of competent jurisdiction. Pending final decision of a 
dispute hereunder, the Contractor shall proceed diligently with the performance of the Master Agreement and in 
accordance with H•GAC's final decision. 
 
ARTICLE 49: CHOICE OF LAW: VENUE 
This Master Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Texas. Venue and jurisdiction of any suit or 
cause of action arising under or in connection with the Master Agreement shall lie exclusively in Harris County, 
Texas. Disputes between END USER and Contractor are to be resolved in accordance with the law and venue rules 
of the state of purchase. Contractor shall immediately notify H-GAC of such disputes. 
 
ARTICLE 50: ORDER OF PRIORITY 
In the case of any conflict between or within this Master Agreement, the following order of priority shall be 
utilized: 1) General Provisions, 2) Special Provisions, 3) Scope of Work, and 4) Other Attachments. 
 
ARTICLE 51: WHOLE MASTER AGREEMENT 
Please note, this is an H-GAC Master Agreement template and is used for all products and services offered 
in H-GAC Cooperative Purchasing. Any redlines to this Master Agreement may not be reviewed. If this 
Master Agreement has not been signed by the Contractor within 30 calendar days, this Master Agreement 
will be automatically voided. The Master General Provisions, Master Special Provisions, and Attachments, as 
provided herein, constitute the complete Master Agreement between the parties hereto, and supersede any and all 
oral and written Master Agreements between the parties relating to matters herein. Except as otherwise provided 
herein, this Master Agreement cannot be modified without written consent of the parties. 
 
ARTICLE 52: UNIVERSAL IDENTIFIER AND SYSTEM FOR AWARD MANAGEMENT (SAM) 
In accordance with 2 CFR Title 2, Subtitle A, Chapter I, Part 25 as it applies to a Federal awarding agency's grants, 
cooperative agreements, loans, and other types of Federal financial assistance as defined in 2 CFR 25.406. 
Contractor understands and as it relates to 2 CFR 25.205(a), a Federal awarding agency may not make a Federal 
award or financial modification to an existing Federal award to an applicant or recipient until the entity has 
complied with the requirements described in 2 CFR 25.200 to provide a valid unique entity identifier and maintain 
an active SAM registration (www.SAM.gov) with current information (other than any requirement that is not 
applicable because the entity is exempted under § 25.110). 2 CFR 25.200(b) requires that registration in the SAM 
prior to submitting an application or plan; and maintain an active SAM registration with current information, 
including information on a recipient's immediate and highest level owner and subsidiaries, as well as on all 
predecessors that have been awarded a Federal contract or grant within the last three years, if applicable, at all 
times during which it has an active Federal award or an application or plan under consideration by a Federal 
awarding agency; and provide its unique entity identifier in each application or plan it submits to the Federal 
awarding agency. To remain registered in the SAM database after the initial registration, the applicant is required 
to review and update its information in the SAM database on an annual basis from the date of initial registration or 
subsequent updates to ensure it is current, accurate and complete. At the time a Federal awarding agency is ready 
to make a Federal award, if the intended recipient has not complied with an applicable requirement to provide a 
unique entity identifier or maintain an active SAM registration with current information, the Federal awarding 
agency: (1) May determine that the applicant is not qualified to receive a Federal award; and (2) May use that 
determination as a basis for making a Federal award to another applicant. 
 
ARTICLE 53: PROCUREMENT OF RECOVERED MATERIALS 

DocuSign Envelope ID: AA8CD0AC-84A0-4CE1-A373-06AD1618DEB8



Page 13 of 13 

In accordance with 2 CFR 200.323, the Houston-Galveston Area Council and the Contractor or Subrecipient must 
comply with section 6002 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act, as amended by the Resource Conservation and 
Recovery Act. The requirements of Section 6002 include: (1) procuring only items designated in guidelines of the 
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) at 40 CFR part 247 that contain the highest percentage of recovered 
materials practicable, consistent with maintaining a satisfactory level of competition, where the purchase price of 
the item exceeds $10,000 or the value of the quantity acquired during the preceding fiscal year exceeded $10,000; 
(2) procuring solid waste management services in a manner that maximizes energy and resource recovery; and (3) 
establishing an affirmative procurement program for procurement of recovered materials identified in the EPA 
guidelines. Pursuant to the Federal Rule above, as required by the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act of 
1976 (42 U.S.C. § 6962(c)(3)(A)(i)), the Contractor or Subrecipient certifies that the percentage of recovered 
materials content for EPA-designated items to be delivered or used in the performance of the Agreement will be at 
least the amount required by the applicable contract specifications or other contractual requirements. 
 
 

 
 
 
SIGNATURES: 
H-GAC and the Contractor have read, agreed, and executed the whole Master Agreement as of the date first 
written above, as accepted by: 
 
Frazer, Ltd.    
 
 
Signature  $docusign:SignHere::Customer1  
 
Name     Laura Griffin   
           
Title     CEO  
 
Date     $docusign:DateSigned::Customer1  
 

H-GAC 
 
 
Signature $docusign:SignHere::InternalSigner 
 
Name       Chuck Wemple 
 
Title         Executive Director 
 
Date   $docusign:DateSigned::InternalSigner

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: AA8CD0AC-84A0-4CE1-A373-06AD1618DEB8

10/17/2023 10/23/2023



H-GAC 
Houston-Galveston Area Council 

P.O. Box 22777 ·  3555 Timmons ·  Houston, Texas 77227-2777 
Cooperative Agreement - Contract - Frazer, Ltd. - Public Services - ID: 11104 

 
Page 1 of 8 

 

 
 

MASTER SPECIAL PROVISIONS 
 
Please note, this is an H-GAC Master Agreement template and is used for all products and services 
offered in H-GAC Cooperative Purchasing. Any redlines to this Master Agreement may not be reviewed. 
Incorporated by attachment, as part of the whole Master Agreement, H-GAC and the Contractor do, hereby 
agree to the Master Special Provisions as follows:  
 
ARTICLE 1: BIDS/PROPOSALS INCORPORATED 
In addition to the whole Master Agreement, the following documents listed in order of priority are 
incorporated into the Master Agreement by reference: Bid/Proposal Specifications and Contractor’s Response 
to the Bid/Proposal. 
 
ARTICLE 2: END USER MASTER AGREEMENTS (“EUA”) 
H-GAC acknowledges that the END USER, which is the HGACBuy customer utilizing the contract 
(CUSTOMER and END USER may be used interchangeably) may choose to enter into an End User Master 
Agreement (EUA) with the Contractor through this Master Agreement. A CUSTOMER/END USER is a state 
agency, county, municipality, special district, or other political subdivision of a state, or a qualifying non-profit 
corporation (providing one or more governmental function or service that possess legal authority to enter into 
the Contract. The term of the EUA may exceed the term of the current H-GAC Master Agreement.   
 
H-GAC’s acknowledgement is not an endorsement or approval of the End User Master Agreement’s terms and 
conditions. Contractor agrees not to offer, agree to or accept from the CUSTOMER/END USER, any terms or 
conditions that conflict with those in Contractor’s Master Agreement with H-GAC. Contractor affirms that 
termination of its Master Agreement with H-GAC for any reason shall not result in the termination of any 
underlying EUA, which shall in each instance, continue pursuant to the EUA’s stated terms and duration. 
Pursuant to the terms of this Master Agreement, termination of this Master Agreement will disallow the 
Contractor from entering into any new EUA with CUSTOMER/END USER. Applicable H-GAC order 
processing charges will be due and payable to H-GAC on any EUAs, surviving termination of this Master 
Agreement between H-GAC and Contractor. 
 
ARTICLE 3: MOST FAVORED CUSTOMER CLAUSE 
Contractor shall provide its most favorable pricing and terms to H-GAC. If at any time during this Master 
Agreement, Contractor develops a regularly followed standard procedure of entering into Master Agreements 
with other governmental customers within the State of Texas, and offers the same or substantially the same 
products/services offered to H-GAC on a basis that provides prices, warranties, benefits, and or terms more 
favorable than those provided to H-GAC, Contractor shall notify H-GAC within ten (10) business days 
thereafter, and this Master Agreement shall be deemed to be automatically retroactively amended, to the 
effective date of Contractor’s most favorable past Master Agreement with another entity. Contractor shall 
provide the same prices, warranties, benefits, or terms to H-GAC and its CUSTOMER/END USER as provided 
in its most favorable past Master Agreement. H-GAC shall have the right and option at any time to decline to 
accept any such change, in which case the amendment shall be deemed null and void. If Contractor claims that a 
more favorable price, warranty, benefit, or term that was charged or offered to another entity during the term of 
this Master Agreement, does not constitute more favorable treatment, than Contractor shall, within ten (10) 
business days, notify H-GAC in writing, setting forth the detailed reasons Contractor believes the aforesaid 

DocuSign Envelope ID: AA8CD0AC-84A0-4CE1-A373-06AD1618DEB8



 
 

Page 2 of 8 
 

offer is not in fact most favored treatment. H-GAC, after due consideration of Contractor’s written explanation, 
may decline to accept such explanation and thereupon this Master Agreement between H-GAC and Contractor 
shall be automatically amended, effective retroactively, to the effective date of the most favored Master 
Agreement, to provide the same prices, warranties, benefits, or terms to H-GAC and the CUSTOMER/END 
USER. 
 
EXCEPTION: This clause shall not be applicable to prices and price adjustments offered by a bidder, 
proposer, or contractor, which are not within bidder's/proposer’s control [example; a manufacturer's bid 
concession], or to any prices offered to the Federal Government and its agencies. 
 
ARTICLE 4: PARTY LIABILITY 
Contractor’s total liability under this Master Agreement, whether for breach of contract, warranty, negligence, 
strict liability, in tort or otherwise, is limited to the price of the particular products/services sold hereunder. 
Contractor agrees either to refund the purchase price or to repair or replace product(s) that are not as warranted. 
Contractor accepts liability to repay, and shall repay upon demand to CUSTOMER/END USER, any amounts 
determined by H-GAC, its independent auditors, or any state or federal agency, to have been paid in violation of 
the terms of this Master Agreement. 
 
ARTICLE 5: GOVERNING LAW & VENUE 
Contractor and H-GAC agree that Contractor will make every reasonable effort to resolve disputes with the 
CUSTOMER/END USER in accord with the law and venue rules of the state of purchase. Contractor shall 
immediately notify H-GAC of such disputes.  
 
ARTICLE 6: SALES AND ORDER PROCESSING CHARGE 
Contractor shall sell its products to CUSTOMER/END USER based on the pricing and terms of this Master 
Agreement.  H-GAC will invoice Contractor for the applicable order processing charge when H-GAC receives 
notification of a CUSTOMER/END USER order. Contractor shall remit to H-GAC the full amount of the 
applicable order processing charge, after delivery of any product or service and subsequent CUSTOMER/END 
USER acceptance. Payment of the Order Processing Charge shall be remitted from Contractor to H-GAC, 
within thirty (30) calendar days or ten (10) business days after receipt of a CUSTOMER/END USER’s 
payment, whichever comes first, notwithstanding Contractor’s receipt of invoice. For sales made by Contractor 
based on this Master Agreement, including sales to entities without Interlocal Master Agreements, Contractor 
shall pay the applicable order processing charges to H-GAC. Further, Contractor agrees to encourage entities 
who are not members of H-GAC’s Cooperative Purchasing Program to execute an H-GAC Interlocal Master 
Agreement. H-GAC reserves the right to take appropriate actions including, but not limited to, Master 
Agreement termination if Contractor fails to promptly remit the appropriate order processing charge to H-GAC. 
In no event shall H-GAC have any liability to Contractor for any goods or services a CUSTOMER/END USER 
procures from Contractor. At all times, Contractor shall remain liable to pay to H-GAC any order processing 
charges on any portion of the Master Agreement actually performed, and for which compensation was received 
by Contractor.  
 
ARTICLE 7: LIQUIDATED DAMAGES 
Contractor and H-GAC agree that Contractor shall cooperate with the CUSTOMER/END USER at the time a 
CUSTOMER/END USER purchase order is placed, to determine terms for any liquidated damages. 
 
 
ARTICLE 8: INSURANCE 
Unless otherwise stipulated in Section B of the Bid/Proposal Specifications, Contractor must have the 
following insurance and coverage minimums: 

DocuSign Envelope ID: AA8CD0AC-84A0-4CE1-A373-06AD1618DEB8



 
 

Page 3 of 8 
 

a. General liability insurance with a Single Occurrence limit of at least $1,000,000.00, and a General 
Aggregate limit of at least two times the Single Occurrence limit. 

b. Product liability insurance with a Single Occurrence limit of at least $1,000,000.00, and a General 
Aggregate limit of at least two times the Single Occurrence limit for all Products except Automotive Fire 
Apparatus. For Automotive Fire Apparatus, see Section B of the Bid/Proposal Specifications. 

c. Property Damage or Destruction insurance is required for coverage of End User owned equipment while 
in Contractor's possession, custody, or control. The minimum Single Occurrence limit is $500,000.00 and 
the General Aggregate limit must be at least two times the Single Occurrence limit. This insurance may be 
carried in several ways, e.g. under an Inland Marine policy, as art of Automobile coverage, or under a 
Garage Keepers policy. In any event, this coverage must be specifically and clearly listed on insurance 
certificate(s) submitted to H-GAC. 

d. Insurance coverage shall be in effect for the length of any contract made pursuant to the Bid/Proposal, and 
for any extensions thereof, plus the number of days/months required to deliver any outstanding order after 
the close of the contract period. 

e. Original Insurance Certificates must be furnished to H-GAC on request, showing Contractor as the 
insured and showing coverage and limits for the insurances listed above. 

f. If any Product(s) or Service(s) will be provided by parties other than Contractor, all such parties are 
required to carry the minimum insurance coverages specified herein, and if requested by H-GAC, a 
separate insurance certificate must be submitted for each such party. 

g. H-GAC reserves the right to contact insurance underwriters to confirm policy and certificate issuance and 
document accuracy. 

 
ARTICLE 9: PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS FOR INDIVIDUAL ORDERS  
H-GAC’s contractual requirements DO NOT include a Performance & Payment Bond (PPB); therefore, 
Contractor shall offer pricing that reflects this cost savings.  Contractor shall remain prepared to offer a PPB to 
cover any order if so requested by the CUSTOMER/END USER. Contractor shall quote a price to 
CUSTOMER/END USER for provision of any requested PPB, and agrees to furnish the PPB within ten 
business (10) days of receipt of CUSTOMER/END USER's purchase order. 
 
ARTICLE 10: ORDER PROCESSING CHARGE 
H-GAC will apply an Order Processing Charge for each sale done through the H-GAC contract, with the 
exception of orders for motor vehicles. Any pricing submitted must include this charge amount per the most 
current H-GAC schedule. For motor vehicle orders, the Processing Charge is paid by the CUSTOMER/END 
USER. Contractor will need to refer to the solicitation for the Order Processing Charge. 
 
ARTICLE 11: CHANGE OF STATUS 
Contractor shall immediately notify H-GAC, in writing, of ANY change in ownership, control, 
dealership/franchisee status, Motor Vehicle license status, or name. Contractor shall offer written guidance to 
advise H-GAC if this Master Agreement shall be affected in any way by such change. H-GAC shall have the 
right to determine whether or not such change is acceptable, and to determine what action shall be warranted, up 
to and including cancellation of Master Agreement. 
 
 
 
ARTICLE 12:  REQUIREMENTS TO APPLICABLE PHYSICAL GOODS 
In the case of physical goods (e.g. equipment, material, supplies, as opposed to services), all Products offered 
must comply with any applicable provisions of the Texas Business and Commerce Code, Title 1, Chapter 2 and 
with at least the following: 

DocuSign Envelope ID: AA8CD0AC-84A0-4CE1-A373-06AD1618DEB8



 
 

Page 4 of 8 
 

a. Be new, unused, and not refurbished. 
b. Not be a prototype as the general design, operation, and performance. This requirement is NOT meant to 

preclude the Contractor from offering new models or configurations which incorporate improvements in 
a current design or add functionality, but in which new model or configuration may be new to the 
marketplace. 

c. Include all accessories which may or may not be specifically mentioned in the Master Agreement, but 
which are normally furnished or necessary to make the Product ready for its intended use upon delivery. 
Such accessories shall be assembled, installed, and adjusted to allow continuous operation of Product at 
time of delivery. 

d. Have assemblies, sub-assemblies and component parts that are standard and interchangeable throughout 
the entire quantity of a Product as may be purchased simultaneously by any END USER/CUSTOMER. 

e. Be designed and constructed using current industry accepted engineering and safety practices, and 
materials. 

f. Be available for inspection at any time prior to or after procurement. 
 
ARTICLE 13: TEXAS MOTOR VEHICLE BOARD LICENSING 
All Contractors that deal in motor vehicles shall maintain current licenses that are required by the Texas Motor 
Vehicle Commission Code. If at any time during this Master Agreement term, any required Contractor license is 
denied, revoked, or not renewed, Contractor shall be in default of this Master Agreement, unless the Texas 
Motor Vehicle Board issues a stay or waiver. Contractor shall promptly provide copies of all current applicable 
Texas Motor Vehicle Board documentation to H-GAC upon request. 
 
ARTICLE 14: INSPECTION/TESTING 
All Products sold pursuant to this Master Agreement will be subject to inspection/testing by or at the direction 
of H-GAC and/or the ordering CUSTOMER/END USER, either at the delivery destination or the place of 
manufacture. In the event a Product fails to meet or exceed all requirements of this Master Agreement, and 
unless otherwise agreed in advance, the cost of any inspection and/or testing, will be the responsibility of the 
Contractor. 
 
ARTICLE 15: ADDITIONAL REPORTING REQUIREMENTS 
Contractor agrees to submit written quarterly reports to H-GAC detailing all transactions during the previous 
three (3) month period. Reports must include, but are not limited, to the following information: 

a. CUSTOMER/END USER Name 
b. Product/Service purchased, including Product Code if applicable 
c. Customer Purchase Order Number 
d. Purchase Order Date 
e. Product/Service dollar amount 
f. HGACBuy Order Processing Charge amount 

 
ARTICLE 16: BACKGROUND CHECKS 
Cooperative customers may request background checks on any awarded contractor’s employees who will have 
direct contact with students, or for any other reason they so choose, any may require contractor to pay the cost 
of obtaining any background information requested by the CUSTOMER/END USER.  
 
ARTICLE 17: PROHIBITION ON CONTRACTS WITH COMPANIES BOYCOTTING ISRAEL 
CERTIFICATION 
As required by Chapter 2271 of the Texas Local Government Code the Contractor must verify that it 1) does 
not boycott Israel; and 2) will not boycott Israel during the term of the Contract. Pursuant to Section 2271.001, 
Texas Government Code:  

DocuSign Envelope ID: AA8CD0AC-84A0-4CE1-A373-06AD1618DEB8



 
 

Page 5 of 8 
 

1. “Boycott Israel” means refusing to deal with, terminating business activities with, or otherwise taking 
any action that is intended to penalize, inflict economic harm on, or limit commercial relations specifically 
with Israel, or with a person or entity doing business in Israel or in an Israeli-controlled territory, but does not 
include an action made for ordinary business purposes; and  

2. “Company” means a for-profit sole proprietorship, organization, association, corporation, partnership, 
joint venture, limited partnership, limited liability partnership, or any limited liability company, including a 
wholly owned subsidiary, majority-owned subsidiary, parent company or affiliate of those entities or business 
associations that exist to make a profit. 

 
ARTICLE 18: NO EXCLUDED NATION OR TERRORIST ORGANIZATION CERTIFICATION  
As required by Chapter 2252 of the Texas Government Code the Contractor must certify that it is not a 
company engaged in active business operations with Sudan, Iran, or a foreign terrorist organization – 
specifically, any company identified on a list prepared and maintained by the Texas Comptroller under Texas 
Government Code §§806.051, 807.051, or 2252.153. (A company that the U.S.  Government affirmatively 
declares to be excluded from its federal sanctions regime relating to Sudan, Iran, or any federal sanctions 
regime relating to a foreign terrorist organization is not subject to the contract prohibition.)  
 
ARTICLE 19: PROHIBITION ON CONTRACTING WITH ENTITIES USING CERTAIN 
TELECOMMUNICATIONS AND VIDEO SURVEILLANCE EQUIPMENT (Effective Aug. 13, 2020 
and as amended October 26, 2020) 
Pursuant to 2 CFR 200.216, Contractor shall not offer equipment, services, or system that use covered 
telecommunications equipment or services as a substantial or essential component of any system, or as critical 
technology as part of any system. ‘‘Covered telecommunications equipment or services means 1) 
telecommunications equipment produced by Huawei Technologies Company or ZTE Corporation (or any 
subsidiary or affiliate of such entities); 2) for the purpose of public safety, security of government facilities, 
physical security surveillance of critical infrastructure, and other national security purposes, video  surveillance 
and telecommunications equipment produced by Hytera Communications Corporation, Hangzhou Hikvision 
Digital Technology Company, or Dahua Technology Company (or any subsidiary or affiliate of such entities); 
3) telecommunications or video surveillance services provided by such entities or using such equipment; or 4) 
telecommunications or video surveillance equipment or services produced or provided by an entity that the 
Secretary of Defense, in consultation with the Director of National Intelligence or the Director of the Federal 
Bureau of Investigation, reasonably believes to be an entity owned or controlled by, or otherwise connected to, 
the government of a covered foreign country. 
 
Contractor must comply with requirements for certifications. The provision at 48 C.F.R Section 52.204-26 
requires that Contractors review SAM prior to completing their required representations. This rule applies to all 
acquisitions, including acquisitions at or below the simplified acquisition threshold and to acquisitions of 
commercial items, including commercially available off the-shelf items. 
 
ARTICLE 20: BUY AMERICA ACT (National School Lunch Program and Breakfast Program) 
With respect to products purchased by CUSTOMER/END USER for use in the National School Lunch Program 
and/or National School Breakfast Program, Contractor shall comply with all federal procurement laws and 
regulations with respect to such programs, including the Buy American provisions set forth in 7 C.F.R. Part 
210.21(d), to the extent applicable. Contractor agrees to provide all certifications required by 
CUSTOMER/END USER regarding such programs. 
 
In the event Contractor or Contractor’s supplier(s) are unable or unwilling to certify compliance with the Buy 
American Provision, or the applicability of an exception to the Buy American provision, H-GAC 
CUSTOMER/END USER may decide not to purchase from Contractor. Additionally, H-GAC 

DocuSign Envelope ID: AA8CD0AC-84A0-4CE1-A373-06AD1618DEB8



 
 

Page 6 of 8 
 

CUSTOMER/END USER may require country of origin on all products and invoices submitted for payment by 
Contractor, and Contractor agrees to comply with any such requirement. 
 
ARTICLE 21: BUY AMERICA REQUIREMENT (Applies only to Federally Funded Highway and Transit 
Projects) 
With respect to products purchased by CUSTOMER/END USER for use in federally funded highway projects, 
Contractor shall comply with all federal procurement laws and regulations with respect to such projects, 
including the Buy American provisions set forth in 23 U.S.C. Section 313, 23 C.F.R. Section 635.410, as 
amended, and the Steel and Iron Preference provisions of Texas Transportation Code Section 223.045, to the 
extent applicable. Contractor agrees to provide all certifications required by CUSTOMER/END USER 
regarding such programs. With respect to products purchased by CUSTOMER/END USER for use in federally 
funded transit projects, Contractor shall comply with all federal procurement laws and regulations with respect 
to such projects, including the Buy American provisions set forth in 49 U.S.C. Section 5323(j)(1), 49 C.F.R. 
Sections 661.6 or 661.12, to the extent applicable. Contractor agrees to provide all certifications required by 
CUSTOMER/END USER regarding such programs. 

 
ARTICLE 22: DOMESTIC PREFERENCE 
In accordance with 2 CFR 200.322, as appropriate and to the extent consistent with law, a CUSTOMER/END 
USER using federal grant award funds should, to the greatest extent practicable, provide a preference for the 
purchase, acquisition, or use of goods, products, or materials produced in the United States (including but not 
limited to iron, aluminum, steel, cement, and other manufactured products). The CUSTOMER/END USER 
must include this requirement in all subawards including all contracts and purchase orders for work or products 
under the federal grant award. If Contractor intends to qualify for Purchase Orders using federal grant money, 
they shall work with the CUSTOMER/END USER to provide all required certifications and other 
documentation needed to show compliance.  
 
ARTICLE 23: TITLE VI REQUIREMENTS 
H-GAC in accordance with the provisions of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (78 Stat. 252, 42 U.S.C. 
§§ 2000d to 2000d-4) and the Regulations, hereby notifies all bidders that it will affirmatively ensure that any 
disadvantaged business enterprises will be afforded full and fair opportunity to submit in response to this Master 
Agreement and will not be discriminated against on the grounds of race, color, or national origin in 
consideration for an award. 
 
ARTICLE 24: EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY 
Except as otherwise provided under 41 CFR Part 60, all Contracts and CUSTOMER/END USER Purchase 
Orders that meet the definition of “federally assisted construction contract” in 41 CFR Part 60-1.3 shall be 
deemed to include the equal opportunity clause provided under 41 CFR 60-1.4(b), in accordance with Executive 
Order 11246, “Equal Employment Opportunity” (30 FR 12319, 12935, 3 CFR Part, 1964-1965 Comp., pg.339), 
as amended by Executive Order 11375, “Amending Executive Order 11246 Relating to Equal Employment 
Opportunity,” and implementing regulations at 41CFR Part 60, “Office of Federal Contract Compliance 
Programs, Equal Employment Opportunity, Department of Labor.” 

 
The equal opportunity clause provided under 41 CFR 60-1.4(b) is hereby incorporated by reference. Contractor 
agrees that such provision applies to any contract that meets the definition of “federally assisted construction 
contract” in 41 CFR Part 60-1.3 and agrees that it will comply with such provision. 
 
ARTICLE 25: CLEAN AIR AND WATER POLLUTION CONTROL ACT 
CUSTOMER/END USER Purchase Orders using federal funds must contain a provision that requires the 
Contractor to agree to comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued pursuant to the Clean 

DocuSign Envelope ID: AA8CD0AC-84A0-4CE1-A373-06AD1618DEB8



 
 

Page 7 of 8 
 

Air Act (42 U.S.C. 7401-7671q) and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act as amended (33 U.S.C. 1251-
1387). Violations must be reported to the Federal awarding agency and the Regional Office of the 
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA).  
 
Pursuant to the Federal Rule above, Contractor certifies that it is in compliance with all applicable provisions of 
the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 7401-7671q) and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act as amended (33 U.S.C. 
1251-1387) and will remain in compliance during the term of the Contract.  
 
ARTICLE 26: PREVAILING WAGE 
Contractor and any potential subcontractors have a duty to and shall pay the prevailing wage rate under the 
Davis-Bacon Act, 40 U.S.C. 276a – 276a-5, as amended, and the regulations adopted thereunder contained in 29 
C.F.R. pt. 1 and 5. 
 
ARTICLE 27: CONTRACT WORK HOURS AND SAFETY STANDARDS 
As per the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 3701-3708), where applicable, all 
CUSTOMER/END USER Purchase Orders in excess of $100,000 that involve the employment of mechanics or 
laborers must include a provision for compliance with 40 U.S.C. 3702 and 3704, as supplemented by 
Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 5). Under 40 U.S.C. 3702 of the Act, each contractor must be 
required to compute the wages of every mechanic and laborer, on the basis of a standard work week of 40 
hours. Work in excess of the standard work week is permissible provided that the worker is compensated at a 
rate of not less than one and a half times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of 40 hours in the 
work week. The requirements of 40 U.S.C. 3704 are applicable to construction work and provide that no laborer 
or mechanic must be required to work in surroundings or under working conditions which are unsanitary, 
hazardous, or dangerous. These requirements do not apply to the purchases of supplies or materials or articles 
ordinarily available on the open market, or contracts for transportation or transmission of intelligence. 
 
ARTICLE 28: PROFIT AS A SEPARATE ELEMENT OF PRICE 
For purchases using federal funds more than the current Simplified Acquisition Threshold of $250,000, requires 
negotiation of profit as a separate element of the price. See, 2 CFR 200.324(b). Contractor agrees to provide 
information and negotiate regarding profit as a separate element of the price for the purchase. Contractor also 
agrees that the total price, including profit, charged by Contractor will not exceed the awarded pricing, 
including any applicable discount, under any awarded contract. 
 
ARTICLE 29: BYRD ANTI-LOBBYING AMENDMENT 
Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment (31U.S.C. 1352) – Contractors that apply or bid for an award exceeding 
$100,000 must file the required anti-lobbying certification. Each tier must certify to the tier above that it will 
not and has not used Federal appropriated funds to pay any person or organization for influencing or attempting 
to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, officer or employee of Congress, or 
an employee of a member of Congress in connection with obtaining any Federal contract, grant or any other 
award covered by 31 U.S.C. 1352. Each tier must also disclose any lobbying with non-Federal funds that takes 
place in connection with obtaining any Federal award. Such disclosures are forwarded from tier to tier, up to the 
CUSTOMER/END USER. As applicable, Contractor agrees to file all certifications and disclosures required by, 
and otherwise comply with, the Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment (31 USC 1352). Contractor certifies that it is 
currently in compliance with all applicable provisions of the Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment (31 U.S.C. 1352) 
and will continue to be in compliance throughout the term of the Contract and further certifies that: 
 

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the Contractor, to any 
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of 
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection 

DocuSign Envelope ID: AA8CD0AC-84A0-4CE1-A373-06AD1618DEB8



 
 

Page 8 of 8 
 

with the awarding of a Federal contract, the making of a Federal Grant, the making of a Federal Loan, the 
entering into a cooperative Master Agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or 
modification of a Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative Master Agreement.  

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for 
influencing, or attempting to influence, an officer or employee of a Member of Congress in connection 
with a Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative Master Agreement, Contractor shall complete and 
submit Standard Form – LLL, “Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying”, in accordance with its 
instructions.  

3. Contractor shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award documents for all 
subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under grants, loans, and 
cooperative Master Agreements) and that all subcontractors shall certify and disclose accordingly.  

 
This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was 
made or entered into. Submission of this certificate is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction 
imposed by Section 1352, title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be 
subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure.  
 
 
ARTICLE 30: COMPLIANCE WITH EPA REGULATIONS APPLICABLE TO GRANTS, 
SUBGRANTS, COOPERATIVE MASTER AGREEMENTS, AND CONTRACTS 
Contractor certifies compliance with all applicable standards, orders, regulations, and/or requirements issued 
pursuant to the Clean Air Act of 1970, as amended (42 U.S.C. 1857(h)), Section 508 of the Clean Water Act, as 
amended (13 U.S.C. 1368), Executive Order 117389 and Environmental Protection Agency Regulation, 40 CFR 
Part 15.  
 
ARTICLE 31: COMPLIANCE WITH ENERGY POLICY AND CONSERVATION ACT 
Contractor certifies that Contractor will be in compliance with mandatory standards and policies relating to 
energy efficiency which are contained in the state energy conservation plan issued in compliance with the 
Energy Policy and Conservation Act (Pub. L. 94-163, 89 Stat. 871). 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: AA8CD0AC-84A0-4CE1-A373-06AD1618DEB8



Ambulances, EMS & Special Service Vehicles 
 Request For Proposal 
 HGACBuy/Cooperative Purchasing Program 
Project ID:  AM10-23 
Release Date: Friday, June 9, 2023 
Due Date: Thursday, August 10, 2023 12:00pm  
 Posted Friday, June 9, 2023 7:00am 
 Bid Unsealed Thursday, August 10, 2023 12:03pm 
 Pricing Unsealed Thursday, August 10, 2023 12:03pm 
All dates & times in Central Time 
 
3. Scope of Work / Specifications 
This is an indefinite quantity/indefinite delivery offerings contract. The HGACBuy Customer is responsible 
to ensure adequate competition is performed between the various contractors or contractors outside of 
HGACBuy to determine price reasonableness that might be required per any funding agency. Customer will 
need to ensure compliance with any funding agency requirements before proceeding with a purchase order 
under this contract. Please consult legal counsel regarding questions concerning compliance as a 
contractor under this solicitation. 

3.1. Overview 

H-GAC is soliciting responses for selecting qualified manufacturers, dealers, distributors, and service providers of 

Ambulances, EMS and Other Specialty Vehicles and related services to make these types of products and services 

available to Customers of the HGACBuy Cooperative Purchasing Program under blanket type contracts.  Customers 

(end users) may require selective acquisitions of equipment and/or services OR full turnkey projects necessitating 

additional services, training, and maintenance agreements. H-GAC is seeking the broadest possible selection of 

available ambulances, emergency medical response and specialty vehicles to best serve our customers by 

providing the largest selection of products/services available to meet their needs. This solicitation may include a 

request for a discount percent off price catalog, category, or manufacturer, or price list for supplies, materials, or not 

to exceed hourly rates for installation or repair. Respondents are not required to provide offerings on all categories. 

3.2. Categories 

This Solicitation is divided into ten (10) separate but related product categories (A-J). When submitting a response, 

Respondent may choose to submit a response to any of the categories or all of them. No additional weighted value 

will be assigned to a response that addresses more than one or all categories listed. All equipment must be the 

manufacturer’s new and current model and must be fully operational upon delivery to the Customer. 

Alternative Fuel Vehicles: All responses that include electric, hybrid, or other alternative fuel vehicles must include 

these vehicles in Category G. If that specific vehicle is also available with an internal combustion engine (ICE), 

please list the ICE vehicle separately in the appropriate vehicle category. Category G will only include the alternative 

fuel vehicles, regardless of vehicle function or type.  

Product categories are as follows:  

DocuSign Envelope ID: AA8CD0AC-84A0-4CE1-A373-06AD1618DEB8



1. Ambulance 

Response listings/descriptions must be organized by major sub-categories, which include Manufacturer, 

Type (I, II, or III), module configurations/dimensions, chassis (make and model), 2WD/4WD, and fuel type. 

2. Light/Medium Duty EMS Rescue Vehicle  

Response listings/descriptions must be organized by major sub-categories, which include manufacturer, 

model, type/function, chassis (make and model), dimensions, 2WD/4WD, and fuel type. 

3. Other Specialty Vehicle or Equipment  

Category includes vehicles or trailers for command, communication, tactical response, or other related 

emergency response functions. Response listings/descriptions must be organized by major sub-categories, 

which shall include manufacturer, model, type/function, chassis (make and model), axle configuration, 

dimensions, 2WD/4WD, and fuel type. 

4. EMS Vehicle Conversions 

Response listings/descriptions must be organized by major sub-categories, which include manufacturer, 

model, type/function, chassis, 2WD/4WD, and fuel type. 

5. Remount Services Only 

Pricing for this service must include the cost of removing an existing body and reinstalling it on a different 

chassis, only. This service would apply where the chassis was supplied by the end user. 

Note: Remounting Services are to be performed by an authorized dealer/remounter. Any specific 

certifications or warranties that may be requested by an end user regarding remounts is the end user’s 

responsibility and will be negotiated between the end user and the supplier/contractor when services are 

quoted. 

6. Remount on Contractor Supplied Chassis 

Pricing for these items must include the cost of the chassis plus the removal and reinstallation of the body. 

7. Electric/Alternative Fuel Ambulance/EMS/Rescue Vehicles 

Response listings must be organized by manufacturer, model, vehicle type/function, and primary 

fuel/propulsion type. 

8. Ambulance/EMS/Rescue Vehicle Service/Maintenance Plans 

Response listings must include specific details about which fees are included in costs, including current 

labor rates, and fee structures. 

9. Ambulance/EMS/Rescue Vehicle Parts and Supplies 

 Response listing must include percentage discount. 

10. Ambulance/EMS/Rescue Vehicle Options 

Response listing must include percentage discount. 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: AA8CD0AC-84A0-4CE1-A373-06AD1618DEB8



3.3. General Requirements 

All products priced and sold pursuant to this Solicitation must, as applicable: 

1. Meet all applicable requirements of federal, state and local laws and regulations. 

2. Be manufacturer's normal offering with all standard features and functions and performance levels. 

3. Be ready for turn-key operation upon delivery. 

4. Respondent must include specifications, brochures, warranty information, and any other relevant product 

information with solicitation Response.  

Note: “Unpriced/unpublished” options cannot be quoted on the Base Pricing List and may not be sold through this 

contract. 

3.4. Additional Requirements 

Licenses 

1.  Contractor must have and maintain the appropriate license(s) as required by the State of Texas, 

Department of Transportation, Division of Motor Vehicles, Motor Vehicle Commission Code [latest edition], 

or any other local, state and federal licenses required and which are applicable to the respondent’s 

operations.   

2. The prescribed licenses must include the manufacturer/respondent, and any and all dealers and their 

representatives as may be required by the Motor Vehicle Division. Contractor must ensure all emergency 

and specialty vehicles sold are in accordance with the laws of the state where the sale and acquisition are 

made. 

3. Contractor must maintain all licensing required by the State of Texas as applicable to their business 

operations during the entire contract term. If during the contract period such licensing lapses, Contractor will 

be in default and become subject to contract termination unless issued a stay or waiver.     

Manuals 

1. Contractor must supply at the time of delivery, at least two (2) sets of complete operations and service 

documentation covering the completed emergency vehicles as delivered and accepted (as per latest edition 

of KKK-A-1822F). 

2. Respondent must supply the following information with their response: Technical Specifications, Product 

Brochures, Tear Sheets, Cut Sheets, Strippers, etc. which clearly show all the standard features and 

capabilities of each listing being bid. 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: AA8CD0AC-84A0-4CE1-A373-06AD1618DEB8



Warranty 

Contractors must comply with the minimum warranty and maintenance requirements described below for any 

products or services provided under this Solicitation. 

1. Contractor must furnish with response, and for all equipment sold through this H-GAC contract, the 

manufacturer's general warranty, which must be honored by all the manufacturer's authorized service 

locations. 

2. All service/maintenance plan listings must clearly indicate the cost structure for such plans, clearly indicating 

which costs and fees are included (such as: hourly labor rates, shop fees, supply fees, environmental fees). 

3. The Contractor will handle all warranty claims and all work must be completed within ten (10) calendar days 

after receipt of equipment/vehicle by the Contractor without cost to H-GAC or the Customer. Delayed 

warranties must be available for all vehicles and equipment. Warranty start date will be effective the date 

that the completed unit is placed into service by the Customer. The Contractor must furnish a delayed 

warranty card/document for each unit delivered and/or advise the Customer of the procedures to be followed 

for obtaining the delayed start of warranty coverage. Requests for delayed warranties will not exceed six 

months after delivery. 

4. Any and all documents necessary to effect manufacturer’s warranty must be properly applied for and 

submitted by the Contractor. The Contractor will provide to H-GAC and the Customer a manufacturer’s 

warranty which will be honored by any of the manufacturer’s authorized dealers and a complete copy must 

be provided at the time of delivery. When additional warranties are available as standard, they must be 

included as a part of the response for the benefit of H-GAC and Customer.  

5. The patient compartment, all modifications to the OEM chassis by Contractor on the accepted unit, 

equipment and parts will be guaranteed for a minimum period of one (1) year against defects in design, 

materials, and workmanship. The warranty period will begin upon final acceptance of the equipment. This 

warranty will cover parts and labor expenses. 

6. On Type I & III emergency medical service MODULE the warranty period will be fifteen (15) years. 

7. This warranty will be upgraded to its original status each time the module is remounted by Contractor, or a 

Contractor authorized remount facility, not to exceed five (5) years above the original warranty. 

8. In the event any component part of equipment or materials furnished under these specifications, or its 

subsequent contract(s), becomes defective by reason of material or workmanship during said period, and 

the end user agency immediately notifies Contractor of such defect, Contractor will, at no expense to the 

End User agency or H-GAC, repair or replace equipment or component with new equipment or component. 

9. Warranty of all system equipment is the sole responsibility of the Contractor under contract, but may be 

performed by their certified, designated agent. 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: AA8CD0AC-84A0-4CE1-A373-06AD1618DEB8



3.5. Vehicle Requirements 

All equipment and vehicles must be new and be the manufacturer’s latest and current model. Each vehicle must be 

fully assembled, adjusted, serviced and ready for immediate and continuous operation upon delivery. If the 

equipment or vehicle does not meet the specification requirements upon delivery, Contractor will be responsible for 

correcting all deficiencies and making any corrections or adjustments needed to attain specification requirements. 

All equipment and vehicles must conform to applicable local, state, federal requirements and must comply to all 

applicable industry standards (examples: National Fire Protection Association (NFPA), Commission on Accreditation 

of Ambulance Services (CAAS), Federal Specification for the Star-of-Life Ambulance (KKK-A-1822F), Occupational 

Safety and Health Administration (OSHA)). 

3.6. Service / Maintenance Plans and Parts 

All service/maintenance plan listings must clearly indicate the cost structure for such plans, clearly indicating which 

costs and fees are included (ex: hourly labor rates, shop fees, supply fees, environmental fees). 

3.7. Labor Hours Definitions 

If the awarded contract contains hours for labor related services, the following definitions will apply:  

1. “Business Day” Monday through Friday 

2. “Business Hours” Standard Business Hours 8 a.m. to 5 p.m. 

3. “Regular Time” Work that occurs during standard business hours 

4. “Emergency Time” Work that occurs outside standard business hours 

3.8. Administrative Fee 

For each purchase order processed under an awarded contract, H-GAC will directly invoice the contractor an 

administrative fee (Order Processing Charge) applicable to the sale of all equipment and services submitted in 

contractor’s response. It is the contractor’s responsibility to remit the administrative fee within thirty (30) days of 

processing any customer’s purchase order, even if an invoice is not received from H-GAC. Contractor agrees that 

H-GAC will have the right, with reasonable notice, to inspect its records pertaining to purchase orders processed 

and the accuracy of the fees payable to H-GAC. For this solicitation the administrative fee is as follows:  

Administrative Fee (per Purchase Order)  

Category A – Ambulance:                                                    $1,000 per purchase order 

Category B – Light/Medium Rescue Vehicle:                      $1,000 per purchase order 

Category C – Specialty Vehicle/Equipment: 

DocuSign Envelope ID: AA8CD0AC-84A0-4CE1-A373-06AD1618DEB8



Light Rescue/Special Service                          $1,000 per purchase order 

Heavy Rescue/Special Service                        $2,000 per purchase order 

All Trailers                                                         2% per purchase order 

Category D – EMS Vehicle Conversions:                             $1,000 per purchase order 

Category E – Remount Services Only:                                 $600 per purchase order 

Category F – Remount on Contractor Supplied Chassis:     $600 per purchase order 

Category G –Electric/Alternative Fuel Vehicles                    Determined by category of vehicle 

Category H –Service/Maintenance Plans:                            2% per purchase order 

Category I - Ambulance/Vehicle Parts and Supplies            2% per purchase order 

Category J - Ambulance/EMS/Rescue Vehicle Options       No separate fee - part of vehicle 

3.9. Final Contract Deliverables 

Contractor agrees to submit written quarterly reports to H-GAC detailing all transactions during the previous three 

(3) month period. Reports must include, but are not limited, to the following information: 

• Customer Name and address 

• HGACBuy confirmation number 

• Product/Service purchased, including Product Code, if applicable 

• Customer Purchase Order Number 

• Purchase Order Date 

• Product/Service dollar amount 

• HGACBuy Order Processing Charge amount 

Reports must be provided to H-GAC in Excel or other acceptable electronic format by the 30th day of the month 

following the quarter being reported. If Contractor defaults in providing Products or Services reporting as required by 

the contract, recourse may be exercised through cancellation of the contract and other legal remedies as 

appropriate. 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: AA8CD0AC-84A0-4CE1-A373-06AD1618DEB8



Attachment A
Frazer, Ltd.

Ambulances, EMS & Special Service Vehicles
Contract No.: AM10-23

Manufacturer Product Item Description  Offered List Price HGACBuy 
Discount

Category A - Ambulance

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Ram 3500 Diesel 4x2 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           208,500.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Ram 3500 Gas 4x2 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           189,000.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Ram 3500 Diesel 4x4 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           215,750.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Ram 3500 Gas 4x4 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           206,500.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Ram 4500 Diesel 4x4 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Aluminum wheels  $           223,500.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Ram 4500 Diesel 4x2 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Aluminum wheels  $           219,250.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Ram 4500 Diesel 4x2 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           217,000.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Ram 4500 Gas 4x4 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Aluminum wheels  $           212,250.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Ram 4500 Gas 4x2 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Aluminum wheels  $           208,000.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Ram 4500 Gas 4x2 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           205,750.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Ram 4500 Diesel 4x4 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           221,500.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Ram 4500 Gas 4x4 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           210,250.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Ram 5500 Diesel 4x2 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           218,250.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Ram 5500 Diesel 4x2 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Aluminum wheels  $           220,500.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Ram 5500 Diesel 4x4 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           222,750.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Ram 5500 Diesel 4x4 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Aluminum wheels  $           224,750.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Ram 5500 Gas 4x2 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           207,000.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Ram 5500 Gas 4x2 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Aluminum wheels  $           209,250.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Ram 5500 Gas 4x4 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           211,000.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Ram 5500 Gas 4x4 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Aluminum wheels  $           213,250.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Chevy 3500 Gas 4x2 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           195,250.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Chevy 3500 Diesel 4x2 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           206,000.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Chevy 3500 Gas  4x4 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           197,750.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Chevy 3500 Diesel  4x4 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Steel  wheels  $           208,750.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Chevy 4500 MD Diesel 4x2 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Aluminum wheels  $           211,250.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Chevy 4500 MD Diesel  4x2 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Steel  wheels  $           209,500.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Chevy 4500 MD Diesel  4x4 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Aluminum  wheels  $           214,500.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Chevy 4500 MD Diesel  4x4 Reg Cab-84CA" w/ Steel wheels  $           212,750.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Ford F-350 Gas 4x4 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Aluminum wheels  $           209,000.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Ford F-350 Gas 4x4 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           208,250.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Ford F-450 Gas 4x2 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ AL wheels  $           204,750.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Ford F-450 Diesel 4x2 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ AL wheels  $           215,750.00 0%

1

DocuSign Envelope ID: AA8CD0AC-84A0-4CE1-A373-06AD1618DEB8



Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Ford F-450 Diesel 4x2 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           214,500.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Ford F-450 Diesel 4x4 Super Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           220,250.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Ford F-450 Diesel 4x2 Super Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           216,500.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Ford F-450 Diesel 4x2 Super Cab-84"CA w/ Aluminum wheels  $           217,750.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Ford F-450 Diesel 4x4 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ AL wheels  $           219,000.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Ford F-450 Diesel 4x4 Super Cab-84"CA w/ AL wheels  $           221,500.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Ford F-450 Diesel 4x4 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           217,750.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Ford F-450 Gas 4x2 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           203,500.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Ford F-450 Gas 4x4 Super Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           209,500.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Ford F-450 Gas 4x4 Super Cab-84"CA w/ Aluminum wheels  $           210,500.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Ford F-450 Gas 4x4 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ AL wheels  $           208,000.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Ford F-450 Gas 4x4 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           206,750.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Ford F-550 Diesel 4x2 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ AL wheels  $           217,000.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Ford F-550 Diesel 4x2 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           215,750.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Ford F-550 Diesel 4x4 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ AL wheels  $           220,250.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Ford F-550 Diesel 4x4 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           219,000.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Ford F-550 Gas 4x2 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ AL wheels  $           209,250.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Ford F-550 Gas 4x2 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           204,750.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Ford F-550 Gas 4x4 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ AL wheels  $           206,000.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Ford F-550 Gas 4x4 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           208,000.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Ford F-550 Diesel 4x2 Super Cab-84"CA w/ Aluminum wheels  $           217,750.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Ford F-550 Diesel 4x2 Super Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels 219,000.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Ford F-550 Gas 4x4 Super Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels 210,500.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Ford F-550 Diesel 4x4 Super Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels 221,500.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Ford F-550 Gas 4x4 Super Cab-84"CA w/ Aluminum wheels 211,750.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Ford F-550 Diesel 4x4 Super Cab-84"CA w/ Aluminum wheels 222,750.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' International CV515 Diesel  4x2  Cab-84CA w/ Aluminum wheels 232,250.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' International CV515 Diesel  4x4  Cab-84CA w/ Aluminum wheels 234,000.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12'XT Ram 3500 Diesel 4x2 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels 214,500.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12'XT Ram 3500 Gas 4x2 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels 195,000.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12'XT Ram 3500 Diesel 4x4 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels 221,750.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12'XT Ram 3500 Gas 4x4 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels 212,500.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12'XT Ram 4500 Diesel 4x4 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Aluminum wheels 229,500.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12'XT Ram 4500 Diesel 4x2 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Aluminum wheels 225,250.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12'XT Ram 4500 Diesel 4x2 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels 223,000.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12'XT Ram 4500 Gas 4x4 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Aluminum wheels 218,250.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12'XT Ram 4500 Gas 4x2 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Aluminum wheels 214,000.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12'XT Ram 4500 Gas 4x2 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels 211,750.00$           0%

2

DocuSign Envelope ID: AA8CD0AC-84A0-4CE1-A373-06AD1618DEB8



Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12'XT Ram 4500 Diesel 4x4 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels 227,500.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12'XT Ram 4500 Gas 4x4 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels 216,250.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12'XT Ram 5500 Diesel 4x2 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels 224,250.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12'XT Ram 5500 Diesel 4x2 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Aluminum wheels 226,500.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12'XT Ram 5500 Diesel 4x4 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels 228,750.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12'XT Ram 5500 Diesel 4x4 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Aluminum wheels 230,750.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12'XT Ram 5500 Gas 4x2 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels 213,000.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12'XT Ram 5500 Gas 4x2 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Aluminum wheels 215,250.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12'XT Ram 5500 Gas 4x4 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels 217,000.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12'XT Ram 5500 Gas 4x4 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Aluminum wheels 219,250.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12'XT Chevy 3500 Gas 4x2 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels 201,250.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12'XT Chevy 3500 Diesel 4x2 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels 212,000.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12'XT Chevy 3500 Gas  4x4 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels 203,750.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12'XT Chevy  3500 Diesel  4x4 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Steel  wheels 214,750.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12'XT Chevy 4500 MD Diesel 4x2 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Aluminum wheels 217,250.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12'XT Chevy  4500 MD Diesel  4x2 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Steel  wheels 215,500.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12'XT Chevy  4500 MD Diesel  4x4 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Aluminum  wheels 220,500.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12'XT Chevy 4500 MD Diesel  4x4 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels 218,750.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12'XT Ford F-350 Gas 4x4 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Aluminum wheels 215,000.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12'XT Ford F-350 Gas 4x4 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels 214,250.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12'XT Ford F-450 Gas 4x2 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ AL wheels 210,750.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12'XT Ford F-450 Diesel 4x2 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ AL wheels 221,750.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12'XT Ford F-450 Diesel 4x2 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels 220,500.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12'XT Ford F-450 Diesel 4x4 Super Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels 226,250.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12'XT Ford F-450 Diesel 4x2 Super Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels 222,500.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12'XT Ford F-450 Diesel 4x2 Super Cab-84"CA w/ Aluminum wheels 223,750.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12'XT Ford F-450 Diesel 4x4 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ AL wheels 225,000.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12'XT Ford F-450 Diesel 4x4 Super Cab-84"CA w/ AL wheels 227,500.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12'XT Ford F-450 Diesel 4x4 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels 223,750.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12'XT Ford F-450 Gas 4x2 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels 209,500.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12'XT Ford F-450 Gas 4x4 Super Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels 215,500.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12'XT Ford F-450 Gas 4x4 Super Cab-84"CA w/ Aluminum wheels 216,500.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12'XT Ford F-450 Gas 4x4 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ AL wheels 214,000.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12'XT Ford F-450 Gas 4x4 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels 212,750.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12'XT Ford F-550 Diesel 4x2 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ AL wheels 223,000.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12'XT Ford F-550 Diesel 4x2 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels 221,750.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12'XT Ford F-550 Diesel 4x4 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ AL wheels 226,250.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12'XT Ford F-550 Diesel 4x4 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels 225,000.00$           0%

3

DocuSign Envelope ID: AA8CD0AC-84A0-4CE1-A373-06AD1618DEB8



Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12'XT Ford F-550 Gas 4x2 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ AL wheels 215,250.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12'XT Ford F-550 Gas 4x2 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels 210,750.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12'XT Ford F-550 Gas 4x4 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ AL wheels 212,000.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12'XT Ford F-550 Gas 4x4 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels 214,000.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12'XT Ford F-550 Diesel 4x2 Super Cab-84"CA w/ Aluminum wheels 223,750.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12'XT Ford F-550 Diesel 4x2 Super Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels 225,000.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12'XT Ford F-550 Gas 4x4 Super Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels 216,500.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12'XT Ford F-550 Diesel 4x4 Super Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels 227,500.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12'XT Ford F-550 Gas 4x4 Super Cab-84"CA w/ Aluminum wheels 217,750.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12'XT Ford F-550 Diesel 4x4 Super Cab-84"CA w/ Aluminum wheels 228,750.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12'XT International CV515 Diesel  4x2  Cab-84CA w/ Aluminum wheels 238,250.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12'XT International CV515 Diesel  4x4  Cab-84CA w/ Aluminum wheels 240,000.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Ram 4500 Diesel 4x4 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Aluminum wheels 242,500.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Ram 4500 Diesel 4x2 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Aluminum wheels 238,250.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Ram 4500 Diesel 4x2 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Steel wheels 236,000.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Ram 4500 Gas 4x4 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Aluminum wheels 231,000.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Ram 4500 Gas 4x2 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Aluminum wheels 227,000.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Ram 4500 Gas 4x2 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Steel wheels 224,750.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Ram 4500 Diesel 4x4 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Steel wheels 240,500.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Ram 4500 Gas 4x4 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Steel wheels 228,750.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Ram 5500 Diesel 4x2 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Steel wheels 237,250.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Ram 5500 Diesel 4x2 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Aluminum wheels 239,500.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Ram 5500 Diesel 4x4 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Steel wheels 241,500.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Ram 5500 Diesel 4x4 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Aluminum wheels 243,750.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Ram 5500 Gas 4x2 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Steel wheels 226,000.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Ram 5500 Gas 4x2 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Aluminum wheels 228,250.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Ram 5500 Gas 4x4 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Steel wheels 230,000.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Ram 5500 Gas 4x4 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Aluminum wheels 232,250.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Chevy 4500 MD Diesel 4x2 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Aluminum wheels 230,500.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Chevy  4500 MD Diesel  4x2 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Steel  wheels 228,750.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Chevy  4500 MD Diesel  4x4 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Aluminum  wheels 233,750.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Chevy 4500 MD Diesel  4x2 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Steel wheels 232,000.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Ford F-350 Gas 4x4 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Aluminum wheels 227,750.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Ford F-350 Gas 4x4 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels 227,000.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Ford F-450 Diesel 4x2 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Steel wheels 233,500.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Ford F-450 Diesel 4x4 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ AL wheels 237,750.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Ford F-450 Diesel 4x4 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Steel wheels 236,750.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Ford F-450 Gas 4x2 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Steel wheels 222,500.00$           0%

4

DocuSign Envelope ID: AA8CD0AC-84A0-4CE1-A373-06AD1618DEB8



Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Ford F-450 Gas 4x4 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Steel wheels 225,750.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Ford F-450 Gas 4x4 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ AL wheels 227,000.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Ford F-450 Gas 4x2 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ AL wheels 223,750.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Ford F-550 Diesel 4x2 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ AL wheels 236,000.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Ford F-550 Diesel 4x2 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Steel wheels 234,750.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Ford F-550 Diesel 4x4 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ AL wheels 239,000.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Ford F-550 Diesel 4x4 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Steel wheels 238,000.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Ford F-550 Gas 4x2 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ AL wheels 225,000.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Ford F-550 Gas 4x2 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Steel wheels 223,750.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Ford F-550 Gas 4x4 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ AL wheels 228,000.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Ford F-550 Gas 4x4 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Steel wheels 227,000.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' International CV515 Diesel  4x2  Cab-108CA w/ Aluminum wheels 248,250.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' International CV515 Diesel  4x4  Cab-108CA w/ Aluminum wheels 252,500.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14'XT Ram 4500 Diesel 4x4 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Aluminum wheels 248,750.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14'XT Ram 4500 Diesel 4x2 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Aluminum wheels 244,500.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14'XT Ram 4500 Diesel 4x2 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Steel wheels 242,250.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14'XT Ram 4500 Gas 4x4 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Aluminum wheels 237,250.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14'XT Ram 4500 Gas 4x2 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Aluminum wheels 233,250.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14'XT Ram 4500 Gas 4x2 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Steel wheels 231,000.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14'XT Ram 4500 Diesel 4x4 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Steel wheels 246,750.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14'XT Ram 4500 Gas 4x4 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Steel wheels 235,000.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14'XT Ram 5500 Diesel 4x2 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Steel wheels 243,500.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14'XT Ram 5500 Diesel 4x2 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Aluminum wheels 245,750.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14'XT Ram 5500 Diesel 4x4 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Steel wheels 247,750.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14'XT Ram 5500 Diesel 4x4 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Aluminum wheels 250,000.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14'XT Ram 5500 Gas 4x2 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Steel wheels 234,500.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14'XT Ram 5500 Gas 4x2 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Aluminum wheels 236,250.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14'XT Ram 5500 Gas 4x4 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Steel wheels 238,500.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14'XT Ram 5500 Gas 4x4 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Aluminum wheels 232,000.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14'XT Chevy 4500 MD Diesel 4x2 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Aluminum wheels 236,750.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14'XT Chevy  4500 MD Diesel  4x2 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Steel  wheels 235,000.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14'XT Chevy  4500 MD Diesel  4x4 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Aluminum  wheels 240,000.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14'XT Chevy 4500 MD Diesel  4x2 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Steel wheels 238,250.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14'XT Ford F-350 Gas 4x4 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Aluminum wheels 234,000.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14'XT Ford F-350 Gas 4x4 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels 233,250.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14'XT Ford F-450 Diesel 4x2 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Steel wheels 239,750.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14'XT Ford F-450 Diesel 4x4 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ AL wheels 244,000.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14'XT Ford F-450 Diesel 4x4 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Steel wheels 243,000.00$           0%

5

DocuSign Envelope ID: AA8CD0AC-84A0-4CE1-A373-06AD1618DEB8



Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14'XT Ford F-450 Gas 4x2 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Steel wheels 228,750.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14'XT Ford F-450 Gas 4x4 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Steel wheels 232,000.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14'XT Ford F-450 Gas 4x4 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ AL wheels 233,250.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14'XT Ford F-450 Gas 4x2 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ AL wheels 230,000.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14'XT Ford F-550 Diesel 4x2 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ AL wheels 242,250.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14'XT Ford F-550 Diesel 4x2 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Steel wheels 241,000.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14'XT Ford F-550 Diesel 4x4 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ AL wheels 245,250.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14'XT Ford F-550 Diesel 4x4 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Steel wheels 244,250.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14'XT Ford F-550 Gas 4x2 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ AL wheels 231,250.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14'XT Ford F-550 Gas 4x2 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Steel wheels 230,000.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14'XT Ford F-550 Gas 4x4 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ AL wheels 234,250.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14'XT Ford F-550 Gas 4x4 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Steel wheels 233,250.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14'XT International CV515 Diesel  4x2  Cab-108CA w/ Aluminum wheels 254,500.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14'XT International CV515 Diesel  4x4  Cab-108CA w/ Aluminum wheels 258,750.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type III - 12' Chevy G3500 Gas 4x2 Reg Cab-80"CA w/ Steel wheels 187,000.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type III - 12' Ford E-350 Gas 4x2 Cutaway Cab-80"CA w/ Steel wheels 188,750.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type III - 12' Ford E-450 Gas 4x2 Cutaway Cab-100"CA w/ Steel wheels 189,750.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type III - 12'XT Chevy G3500 Gas 4x2 Reg Cab-80"CA w/ Steel wheels 193,250.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type III - 12'XT Ford E-350 Gas 4x2 Cutaway Cab-80"CA w/ Steel wheels 195,000.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type III - 12'XT Ford E-450 Gas 4x2 Cutaway Cab-100"CA w/ Steel wheels 196,000.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type III - 14' Chevy G4500 Gas 4x2 Reg Cab-100"CA w/ Steel wheels 206,750.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type III - 14' Ford E-350 Gas 4x2 Cutaway Cab-80"CA w/ Steel wheels 207,750.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type III - 14' Ford E-450 Gas 4x2 Cutaway Cab-100"CA w/ Steel wheels 208,750.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. MSU - 14' Mobile Stroke Unit 14' on Freightliner M2 Diesel 4x2 Crew Cab 534,500.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. MSU - 14' Mobile Stroke Unit 14' on International MV Diesel 4x2 Reg Cab 534,500.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. MSU - 15' Mobile Stroke Unit 15' on Freightliner M2 Diesel 4x2 Crew Cab 634,500.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. MSU - 15' Mobile Stroke Unit 15' on International MV Diesel 4x2 Reg Cab 634,500.00$           0%

Category B - Light/Medium EMS Rescue Vehicle

Frazer, Ltd. First Responder (UCV) - 9' Ram 3500 Diesel 4x4 Crew Cab-60"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           180,000.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. First Responder (UCV) - 9' Ram 3500 Diesel 4x2 Crew Cab-60"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           176,250.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. First Responder (UCV) - 9' Ram 3500 Gas 4x2 Crew Cab-60"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           168,750.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. First Responder (UCV) - 9' Ram 4500 Diesel 4x4 Crew Cab-60"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           186,500.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. First Responder (UCV) - 9' Ram 4500 Diesel 4x2 Crew Cab-60"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           181,250.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. First Responder (UCV) - 9' Ram 4500 Diesel 4x2 Crew Cab-60"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           183,250.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. First Responder (UCV) - 9' Ram 4500 Diesel 4x4 Crew Cab-60"CA w/ Aluminum wheels  $           188,750.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. First Responder (UCV) - 9' Ram 4500 Gas 4x2 Crew Cab-60"CA w/ Aluminum wheels  $           172,000.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. First Responder (UCV) - 9' Ram 4500 Gas 4x2 Crew Cab-60"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           170,000.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. First Responder (UCV) - 9' Ram 4500 Gas 4x4 Crew Cab-60"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           175,250.00 0%

6

DocuSign Envelope ID: AA8CD0AC-84A0-4CE1-A373-06AD1618DEB8



Frazer, Ltd. First Responder (UCV) - 9' Ram 4500 Gas 4x4 Crew Cab-60"CA w/ Aluminum wheels  $           177,500.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. First Responder (UCV) - 9' Chevy C2500 Gas 4x2 Reg Cab-60"CA w/ Aluminum wheels  $           153,750.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. First Responder (UCV) - 9' Chevy C2500 Diesel 4x2 Reg Cab-60"CA w/ Aluminum wheels  $           164,750.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. First Responder (UCV) - 9' Ford F-350 Diesel 4x4 Crew Cab-60"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           177,500.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. First Responder (UCV) - 9' Ford F-350 Diesel 4x2 Crew Cab-60"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           173,750.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. First Responder (UCV) - 9' Ford F-350 Diesel 4x4 Super Cab-60"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           175,750.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. First Responder (UCV) - 9' Ford F-450 Diesel 4x2 Crew Cab-60"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           178,750.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. First Responder (UCV) - 9' Ford F-450 Diesel 4x4 Crew Cab-60"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           182,500.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. First Responder (UCV) - 9' Ford F-450 Diesel 4x4 Super Cab-60"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           181,000.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. First Responder (UCV) - 9' Ford F-450 Gas 4x4 Crew Cab-60"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           171,750.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. First Responder (UCV) - 9' Ford F-450 Gas 4x2 Super Cab-60"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           166,000.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. First Responder (UCV) - 9' Ford F-450 Gas 4x4 Super Cab-60"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           170,000.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. First Responder (UCV) - 9' Ford F-450 Gas 4x2 Crew Cab-60"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           167,750.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. First Responder (UCV) - 
10'

Ram 3500 Diesel 4x4 Crew Cab-60"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           203,250.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. First Responder (UCV) - 
10'

Ram 3500 Diesel 4x2 Crew Cab-60"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           199,500.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. First Responder (UCV) - 
10'

Ram 3500 Gas 4x2 Crew Cab-60"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           192,000.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. First Responder (UCV) - 
10'

Ram 4500 Diesel 4x4 Crew Cab-60"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           209,750.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. First Responder (UCV) - 
10'

Ram 4500 Diesel 4x2 Crew Cab-60"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           204,500.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. First Responder (UCV) - 
10'

Ram 4500 Diesel 4x2 Crew Cab-60"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           206,500.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. First Responder (UCV) - 
10'

Ram 4500 Diesel 4x4 Crew Cab-60"CA w/ Aluminum wheels  $           212,000.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. First Responder (UCV) - 
10'

Ram 4500 Gas 4x2 Crew Cab-60"CA w/ Aluminum wheels  $           195,250.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. First Responder (UCV) - 
10'

Ram 4500 Gas 4x2 Crew Cab-60"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           193,250.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. First Responder (UCV) - 
10'

Ram 4500 Gas 4x4 Crew Cab-60"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           198,500.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. First Responder (UCV) - 
10'

Ram 4500 Gas 4x4 Crew Cab-60"CA w/ Aluminum wheels  $           200,750.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. First Responder (UCV) - 
10'

Chevy C2500 Gas 4x2 Reg Cab-60"CA w/ Aluminum wheels  $           177,000.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. First Responder (UCV) - 
10'

Chevy C2500 Diesel 4x2 Reg Cab-60"CA w/ Aluminum wheels  $           188,000.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. First Responder (UCV) - 
10'

Ford F-350 Diesel 4x4 Crew Cab-60"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           200,750.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. First Responder (UCV) - 
10'

Ford F-350 Diesel 4x2 Crew Cab-60"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           197,000.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. First Responder (UCV) - 
10'

Ford F-350 Diesel 4x4 Super Cab-60"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           199,000.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. First Responder (UCV) - 
10'

Ford F-450 Diesel 4x2 Crew Cab-60"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           202,000.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. First Responder (UCV) - 
10'

Ford F-450 Diesel 4x4 Crew Cab-60"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           205,750.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. First Responder (UCV) - 
10'

Ford F-450 Diesel 4x4 Super Cab-60"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           204,250.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. First Responder (UCV) - 
10'

Ford F-450 Gas 4x4 Crew Cab-60"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           195,000.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. First Responder (UCV) - 
10'

Ford F-450 Gas 4x2 Super Cab-60"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           189,250.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. First Responder (UCV) - 
10'

Ford F-450 Gas 4x4 Super Cab-60"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           193,250.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. First Responder (UCV) - 
10'

Ford F-450 Gas 4x2 Crew Cab-60"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           191,000.00 0%

Category C - Other Specialty Vehicle or Equipment

Frazer, Ltd. Mobile Clinic. - 18' 18' Foot Mobile Clinic Module  on International MV Diesel 4x2 Crew Cab  $           548,000.00 0%

7

DocuSign Envelope ID: AA8CD0AC-84A0-4CE1-A373-06AD1618DEB8



Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Mobile 
Training Unit

Ram 4500 Diesel 4x4 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Aluminum wheels  $           445,500.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Mobile 
Training Unit

Ram 4500 Diesel 4x2 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Aluminum wheels  $           441,250.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Mobile 
Training Unit

Ram 4500 Diesel 4x2 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           439,000.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Mobile 
Training Unit

Ram 4500 Gas 4x4 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Aluminum wheels  $           434,000.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Mobile 
Training Unit

Ram 4500 Gas 4x2 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Aluminum wheels  $           430,000.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Mobile 
Training Unit

Ram 4500 Gas 4x2 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           427,750.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Mobile 
Training Unit

Ram 4500 Diesel 4x4 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           443,500.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Mobile 
Training Unit

Ram 4500 Gas 4x4 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           431,750.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Mobile 
Training Unit

Ram 5500 Diesel 4x2 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           440,250.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Mobile 
Training Unit

Ram 5500 Diesel 4x2 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Aluminum wheels  $           442,500.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Mobile 
Training Unit

Ram 5500 Diesel 4x4 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           444,500.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Mobile 
Training Unit

Ram 5500 Diesel 4x4 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Aluminum wheels  $           446,750.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Mobile 
Training Unit

Ram 5500 Gas 4x2 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           429,000.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Mobile 
Training Unit

Ram 5500 Gas 4x2 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Aluminum wheels  $           431,250.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Mobile 
Training Unit

Ram 5500 Gas 4x4 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           433,000.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Mobile 
Training Unit

Ram 5500 Gas 4x4 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Aluminum wheels  $           435,250.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Mobile 
Training Unit

Chevy 4500 MD Diesel 4x2 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Aluminum wheels  $           433,500.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Mobile 
Training Unit

Chevy  4500 MD Diesel  4x2 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Steel  wheels  $           431,750.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Mobile 
Training Unit

Chevy  4500 MD Diesel  4x4 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Aluminum  wheels  $           436,750.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Mobile 
Training Unit

Chevy 4500 MD Diesel  4x2 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           435,000.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Mobile 
Training Unit

Ford F-450 Diesel 4x2 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           436,500.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Mobile 
Training Unit

Ford F-450 Diesel 4x4 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ AL wheels  $           440,750.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Mobile 
Training Unit

Ford F-450 Diesel 4x4 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           439,750.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Mobile 
Training Unit

Ford F-450 Gas 4x2 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           425,500.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Mobile 
Training Unit

Ford F-450 Gas 4x4 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           428,750.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Mobile 
Training Unit

Ford F-450 Gas 4x4 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ AL wheels  $           430,000.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Mobile 
Training Unit

Ford F-450 Gas 4x2 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ AL wheels  $           426,750.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Mobile 
Training Unit

Ford F-550 Diesel 4x2 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ AL wheels  $           439,000.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Mobile 
Training Unit

Ford F-550 Diesel 4x2 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           437,750.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Mobile 
Training Unit

Ford F-550 Diesel 4x4 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ AL wheels  $           442,000.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Mobile 
Training Unit

Ford F-550 Diesel 4x4 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           441,000.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Mobile 
Training Unit

Ford F-550 Gas 4x2 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ AL wheels  $           428,000.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Mobile 
Training Unit

Ford F-550 Gas 4x2 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           426,750.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Mobile 
Training Unit

Ford F-550 Gas 4x4 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ AL wheels  $           431,000.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Mobile 
Training Unit

Ford F-550 Gas 4x4 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           430,000.00 0%

8

DocuSign Envelope ID: AA8CD0AC-84A0-4CE1-A373-06AD1618DEB8



Category E - Remountv Services Only

Frazer, Ltd. 12' Remount 12' Remount on Customer Provided Chassis  $             45,000.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. 14' Remount 14' Remount on Customer Provided Chassis  $             45,000.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. First Responder (UCV) 
Remount

First Responder (UCV) Remount on Customer Provided Chassis  $             40,000.00 0%
Category F - Remount on Contractor Supplied Chassis

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Remount Ram 3500 Diesel 4x2 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           119,000.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Remount Ram 3500 Gas 4x2 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels  $             99,500.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Remount Ram 3500 Diesel 4x4 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           126,250.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Remount Ram 3500 Gas 4x4 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           117,000.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Remount Ram 4500 Diesel 4x4 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Aluminum wheels  $           134,000.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Remount Ram 4500 Diesel 4x2 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Aluminum wheels  $           129,750.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Remount Ram 4500 Diesel 4x2 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           127,500.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Remount Ram 4500 Gas 4x4 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Aluminum wheels  $           122,750.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Remount Ram 4500 Gas 4x2 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Aluminum wheels  $           118,500.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Remount Ram 4500 Gas 4x2 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           116,250.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Remount Ram 4500 Diesel 4x4 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           132,000.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Remount Ram 4500 Gas 4x4 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           120,750.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Remount Ram 5500 Diesel 4x2 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           128,750.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Remount Ram 5500 Diesel 4x2 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Aluminum wheels  $           131,000.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Remount Ram 5500 Diesel 4x4 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           133,250.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Remount Ram 5500 Diesel 4x4 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Aluminum wheels  $           135,250.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Remount Ram 5500 Gas 4x2 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           117,500.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Remount Ram 5500 Gas 4x2 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Aluminum wheels  $           119,750.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Remount Ram 5500 Gas 4x4 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           121,500.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Remount Ram 5500 Gas 4x4 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Aluminum wheels  $           123,750.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Remount Chevy 3500 Gas 4x2 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           105,750.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Remount Chevy 3500 Diesel 4x2 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           116,500.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Remount Chevy 3500 Gas  4x4 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           108,250.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Remount Chevy  3500 Diesel  4x4 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Steel  wheels  $           119,250.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Remount Chevy 4500 MD Diesel 4x2 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Aluminum wheels  $           121,750.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Remount Chevy  4500 MD Diesel  4x2 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Steel  wheels  $           120,000.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Remount Chevy  4500 MD Diesel  4x4 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Aluminum  wheels  $           125,000.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Remount Chevy 4500 MD Diesel  4x4 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           123,250.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Remount Ford F-350 Gas 4x4 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Aluminum wheels  $           119,500.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Remount Ford F-350 Gas 4x4 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           118,750.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Remount Ford F-450 Gas 4x2 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ AL wheels  $           115,250.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Remount Ford F-450 Diesel 4x2 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ AL wheels  $           126,250.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Remount Ford F-450 Diesel 4x2 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           125,000.00 0%

9

DocuSign Envelope ID: AA8CD0AC-84A0-4CE1-A373-06AD1618DEB8



Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Remount Ford F-450 Diesel 4x4 Super Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           130,750.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Remount Ford F-450 Diesel 4x2 Super Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           127,000.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Remount Ford F-450 Diesel 4x2 Super Cab-84"CA w/ Aluminum wheels  $           128,250.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Remount Ford F-450 Diesel 4x4 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ AL wheels  $           129,500.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Remount Ford F-450 Diesel 4x4 Super Cab-84"CA w/ AL wheels  $           132,000.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Remount Ford F-450 Diesel 4x4 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           128,250.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Remount Ford F-450 Gas 4x2 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           114,000.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Remount Ford F-450 Gas 4x4 Super Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           120,000.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Remount Ford F-450 Gas 4x4 Super Cab-84"CA w/ Aluminum wheels  $           121,000.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Remount Ford F-450 Gas 4x4 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ AL wheels  $           118,500.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Remount Ford F-450 Gas 4x4 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           117,250.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Remount Ford F-550 Diesel 4x2 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ AL wheels  $           127,500.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Remount Ford F-550 Diesel 4x2 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           126,250.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Remount Ford F-550 Diesel 4x4 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ AL wheels  $           130,750.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Remount Ford F-550 Diesel 4x4 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           129,500.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Remount Ford F-550 Gas 4x2 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ AL wheels  $           119,750.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Remount Ford F-550 Gas 4x2 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           115,250.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Remount Ford F-550 Gas 4x4 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ AL wheels  $           116,500.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Remount Ford F-550 Gas 4x4 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           118,500.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Remount Ford F-550 Diesel 4x2 Super Cab-84"CA w/ Aluminum wheels  $           128,250.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Remount Ford F-550 Diesel 4x2 Super Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           129,500.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Remount Ford F-550 Gas 4x4 Super Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           121,000.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Remount Ford F-550 Diesel 4x4 Super Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels  $           132,000.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Remount Ford F-550 Gas 4x4 Super Cab-84"CA w/ Aluminum wheels  $           122,250.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Remount Ford F-550 Diesel 4x4 Super Cab-84"CA w/ Aluminum wheels  $           133,250.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Remount International CV515 Diesel  4x2  Cab-84CA w/ Aluminum wheels  $           142,750.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 12' Remount International CV515 Diesel  4x4  Cab-84CA w/ Aluminum wheels  $           144,500.00 0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Remount Ram 4500 Diesel 4x4 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Aluminum wheels 134,250.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Remount Ram 4500 Diesel 4x2 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Aluminum wheels 130,000.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Remount Ram 4500 Diesel 4x2 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Steel wheels 127,750.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Remount Ram 4500 Gas 4x4 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Aluminum wheels 122,750.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Remount Ram 4500 Gas 4x2 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Aluminum wheels 118,750.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Remount Ram 4500 Gas 4x2 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Steel wheels 116,500.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Remount Ram 4500 Diesel 4x4 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Steel wheels 132,250.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Remount Ram 4500 Gas 4x4 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Steel wheels 120,500.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Remount Ram 5500 Diesel 4x2 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Steel wheels 129,000.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Remount Ram 5500 Diesel 4x2 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Aluminum wheels 131,250.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Remount Ram 5500 Diesel 4x4 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Steel wheels 133,250.00$           0%

10

DocuSign Envelope ID: AA8CD0AC-84A0-4CE1-A373-06AD1618DEB8



Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Remount Ram 5500 Diesel 4x4 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Aluminum wheels 135,500.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Remount Ram 5500 Gas 4x2 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Steel wheels 117,750.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Remount Ram 5500 Gas 4x2 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Aluminum wheels 120,000.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Remount Ram 5500 Gas 4x4 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Steel wheels 121,750.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Remount Ram 5500 Gas 4x4 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Aluminum wheels 124,000.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Remount Chevy 4500 MD Diesel 4x2 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Aluminum wheels 122,250.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Remount Chevy  4500 MD Diesel  4x2 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Steel  wheels 120,500.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Remount Chevy  4500 MD Diesel  4x4 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Aluminum  wheels 125,500.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Remount Chevy 4500 MD Diesel  4x2 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Steel wheels 123,750.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Remount Ford F-350 Gas 4x4 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Aluminum wheels 119,500.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Remount Ford F-350 Gas 4x4 Reg Cab-84"CA w/ Steel wheels 118,750.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Remount Ford F-450 Diesel 4x2 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Steel wheels 125,250.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Remount Ford F-450 Diesel 4x4 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ AL wheels 129,500.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Remount Ford F-450 Diesel 4x4 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Steel wheels 128,500.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Remount Ford F-450 Gas 4x2 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Steel wheels 114,250.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Remount Ford F-450 Gas 4x4 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Steel wheels 117,500.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Remount Ford F-450 Gas 4x4 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ AL wheels 118,750.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Remount Ford F-450 Gas 4x2 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ AL wheels 115,500.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Remount Ford F-550 Diesel 4x2 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ AL wheels 127,750.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Remount Ford F-550 Diesel 4x2 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Steel wheels 126,500.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Remount Ford F-550 Diesel 4x4 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ AL wheels 130,750.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Remount Ford F-550 Diesel 4x4 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Steel wheels 129,750.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Remount Ford F-550 Gas 4x2 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ AL wheels 116,750.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Remount Ford F-550 Gas 4x2 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Steel wheels 115,500.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Remount Ford F-550 Gas 4x4 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ AL wheels 119,750.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Remount Ford F-550 Gas 4x4 Reg Cab-108"CA w/ Steel wheels 118,750.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Remount International CV515 Diesel  4x2  Cab-108CA w/ Aluminum wheels 140,000.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type I - 14' Remount International CV515 Diesel  4x4  Cab-108CA w/ Aluminum wheels 144,250.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type III - 12' Remount  Chevy G3500 Gas 4x2 Reg Cab-80"CA w/ Steel wheels 93,750.00$             0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type III - 12' Remount Ford E-350 Gas 4x2 Cutaway Cab-80"CA w/ Steel wheels 95,500.00$             0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type III - 14' Remount  Chevy G4500 Gas 4x2 Reg Cab-100"CA w/ Steel wheels 94,500.00$             0%

Frazer, Ltd. Type III - 14' Remount  Ford E-450 Gas 4x2 Cutaway Cab-100"CA w/ Steel wheels 96,500.00$             0%

Frazer, Ltd. First Responder (UCV) 
Remount

Ram 3500 Diesel 4x4 Crew Cab-60"CA w/ Steel wheels 124,750.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. First Responder (UCV) 
Remount

Ram 3500 Diesel 4x2 Crew Cab-60"CA w/ Steel wheels 121,000.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. First Responder (UCV) 
Remount

Ram 3500 Gas 4x2 Crew Cab-60"CA w/ Steel wheels 113,500.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. First Responder (UCV) 
Remount

Ram 4500 Diesel 4x4 Crew Cab-60"CA w/ Steel wheels 131,250.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. First Responder (UCV) 
Remount

Ram 4500 Diesel 4x2 Crew Cab-60"CA w/ Steel wheels 126,000.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. First Responder (UCV) 
Remount

Ram 4500 Diesel 4x2 Crew Cab-60"CA w/ Steel wheels 128,000.00$           0%

11

DocuSign Envelope ID: AA8CD0AC-84A0-4CE1-A373-06AD1618DEB8



Frazer, Ltd. First Responder (UCV) 
Remount

Ram 4500 Diesel 4x4 Crew Cab-60"CA w/ Aluminum wheels 133,500.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. First Responder (UCV) 
Remount

Ram 4500 Gas 4x2 Crew Cab-60"CA w/ Aluminum wheels 116,750.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. First Responder (UCV) 
Remount

Ram 4500 Gas 4x2 Crew Cab-60"CA w/ Steel wheels 114,750.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. First Responder (UCV) 
Remount

Ram 4500 Gas 4x4 Crew Cab-60"CA w/ Steel wheels 120,000.00$           0%

Frazer, Ltd. First Responder (UCV) 
Remount

Ram 4500 Gas 4x4 Crew Cab-60"CA w/ Aluminum wheels 122,250.00$           0%

Category H - Ambulance/EMS/Rescue Vehicle Service/Maintenance Plans

Frazer, Ltd Labor Labor (Hourly Rate)  $                 145.00 0%

12

DocuSign Envelope ID: AA8CD0AC-84A0-4CE1-A373-06AD1618DEB8



Certificate Of Completion
Envelope Id: AA8CD0AC84A04CE1A37306AD1618DEB8 Status: Completed
Subject: Cooperative Agreement - Contract - Frazer, Ltd. - Public Services - ID: 11104
Source Envelope: 
Document Pages: 39 Signatures: 2 Envelope Originator: 
Certificate Pages: 2 Initials: 0 Houston-Galveston Area Council
AutoNav: Enabled
EnvelopeId Stamping: Enabled
Time Zone: (UTC-06:00) Central Time (US & Canada)

3555 Timmons Lane, Suite 120
Houston, TX  77027
contracts@h-gac.com
IP Address: 12.11.127.21   

Record Tracking
Status: Original
             10/16/2023 8:02:19 AM

Holder: Houston-Galveston Area Council
             contracts@h-gac.com

Location: DocuSign

Signer Events Signature Timestamp
Laura Griffin
sales@frazerbilt.com
CEO
Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None) Signature Adoption: Drawn on Device

Using IP Address: 108.79.235.153

Sent: 10/16/2023 8:02:55 AM
Resent: 10/16/2023 8:03:29 AM
Viewed: 10/16/2023 9:36:34 AM 
Signed: 10/17/2023 9:08:17 AM

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Not Offered via DocuSign

Charles Wemple
charles.wemple@h-gac.com
Executive Director
Houston-Galveston Area Council
Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Signature Adoption: Uploaded Signature Image
Using IP Address: 174.203.73.140
Signed using mobile

Sent: 10/17/2023 9:08:19 AM
Viewed: 10/23/2023 5:02:08 PM 
Signed: 10/23/2023 5:02:19 PM

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Not Offered via DocuSign

In Person Signer Events Signature Timestamp

Editor Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Agent Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Intermediary Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Certified Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Carbon Copy Events Status Timestamp

Witness Events Signature Timestamp

Notary Events Signature Timestamp

Envelope Summary Events Status Timestamps
Envelope Sent Hashed/Encrypted 10/16/2023 8:02:55 AM
Certified Delivered Security Checked 10/23/2023 5:02:08 PM
Signing Complete Security Checked 10/23/2023 5:02:19 PM



Envelope Summary Events Status Timestamps
Completed Security Checked 10/23/2023 5:02:19 PM

Payment Events Status Timestamps



RESOLUTION NO. 2024-124

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE FIRE DEPARTMENT TO
UTILIZE FRAZER, LTD. FOR MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR SERVICES
RELATED TO THE SAFE OPERATION OF MEDIC UNITS THROUGH
THE HOUSTON-GALVESTON AREA COUNCIL (H-GAC) BUY
PROGRAM FOR THE FIRE DEPARTMENT; AND PROVIDING THAT
THIS RESOLUTION SHALL BECOME EFFECTIVE FROM AND AFTER
ITS PASSAGE AND ADOPTION.

WHEREAS, The Fire Department desires to utilize the HGAC Contract with
Frazer, LTD for maintenance, parts, and repair of medic units, and

WHEREAS, CONTRACTOR possesses the professional skills, knowledge, and
abilities that can assist CITY with the maintenance, parts, and repair services related to the
safe operation of medic units, and

WHEREAS, Funding for these maintenance, parts, and repair services is provided
in the Fire Department Annual Operating Budget.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION
OF THE CITY OF TEXAS CITY, TEXAS:

SECTION 1:  That the City Commission of the City of Texas City hereby
authorizes the fire department to utilize Frazer, LTD for maintenance, parts, and repair of
medic units through the Houston-Galveston Area Council (H-GAC) Buy Program Contract
No. AM10-23 in substantially the same form attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and made part
thereof.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 16th day of October 2024.

____________________________
Dedrick D. Johnson, Mayor
City of Texas City, Texas

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

___________________________ ____________________________
Rhomari D. Leigh  Kyle L. Dickson
City Secretary City Attorney



   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (6) (g)        
Meeting Date: 10/16/2024  
purchase of Exmark Lazer Z Diesel 43.5 HP YANMAR Mower
Submitted For: Nicole Best, Recreation and Tourism 
Submitted By: Rhomari Leigh, City Secretary
Department: City Secretary

Information
ACTION REQUEST
Approval of the purchase of one Exmark Lazer Z Diesel 43.5 HP YANMAR Mower through
OMNIA PARTNERS Public Sector Purchasing Cooperative Contract# 20469 from League
City Outdoor Power Equipment.

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
The Parks, Recreation and Tourism Department is requesting the purchase of an Exmark
Lazer Z Diesel 43.5 HP YANMAR Mower ($66,794.00). This equipment is to replace the 2017
TORO GM 4000 Mower unit. Funds are available from FY 2024-25 Capital Equipment Fund
Recreation & Tourism.  A contract pricing worksheet is attached as well as Mower specs and
warranty for your review.

RECOMMENDATION
It is recommended by the Director of Parks, Recreation, and Tourism to accept League City
Outdoor Power Equipment OMNIA PARTNERS (Contract# 20469) in the amount of
$66,794.00.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
attachment 
Resolution 























RESOLUTION NO. 2024-125

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE PURCHASE AND DELIVERY OF
AN EXMARK LAZER Z DIESEL 43.5 HP YANMAR MOWER
THROUGH OMNIA PARTNERS PUBLIC SECTOR PURCHASING
COOPERATIVE CONTRACT NO. 20469 FROM LEAGUE CITY
OUTDOOR POWER EQUIPMENT; AND PROVIDING THAT THIS
RESOLUTION SHALL BECOME EFFECTIVE FROM AND AFTER ITS
PASSAGE AND ADOPTION.

WHEREAS, funds are available in the Fiscal Year 2024/2025 budget for the purchase of
an Exmark Lazer Z Diesel 43.5 HP YANMAR Mower through OMNIA PARTNERS
Public Sector Purchasing Cooperative Contract No. 20469 from League City Outdoor
Power Equipment; and

WHEREAS, the mower will be utilized by the Parks Department.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE
CITY OF TEXAS CITY, TEXAS:

SECTION 1: That the City Commission of the City of Texas City, Texas, hereby
approves the purchase of an Exmark Lazer Z Diesel 43.5 HP YANMAR Mower through
OMNIA PARTNERS Public Sector Purchasing Cooperative Contract No. 20469 from League
City Outdoor Power Equipment for the total price of $66,794.00, as set out on the pricing
summary worksheet attached hereto as Exhibit “A.”

SECTION 2: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its
passage and adoption.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 16th day of October 2024.

_______________________________
Dedrick D. Johnson, Sr., Mayor 
City of Texas City, Texas

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

___________________________ ____________________________
Rhomari D. Leigh Kyle L. Dickson
City Secretary City Attorney



   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (6) (h)        
Meeting Date: 10/16/2024  
Binnacle Texas City 51, LLC and Galveston County Municipal Utility District 79 requests to Petition
for Consent to Annex 19.35 acres of land from the District and Binnacle Texas City 51 LLC
("Binnacle 51")/Brookwater Section 1, together with the Certificate of Authority of Binnacle 51.
Submitted For: Kim Golden, Transportation and Planning 
Submitted By: Veronica Carreon, Transportation and Planning
Department: Transportation and Planning

Information
ACTION REQUEST
Binnacle Texas City 51, LLC and the GCMAD 79 request the consent of the City to
annexation of a 19.35 acre tract being Brookwater Subdivision Sections 1A and 1B into the
District. 

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
Brookwater Subdivision Sections 1A and 1B are part of a master-planned residential
development that will ultimately contain approximately 201 residential lots and a commercial
area on S.H.3. The Planned Urban Development (PUD) preliminary rezoning, Master Plan
and Development Agreement were approved by the City Commission on November 17, 2021.
The developer has 12 months from the date of approval to begin implementing an approved
Master Plan. Developer obtained approval of the Section 1 preliminary plat on May 16, 2022,
and an extension of said approval on March 18, 2024, until May 16, 2024. Developer then
chose to change the previous Section 1 into Sections 1A and 1B. The developer received
approval of the Preliminary Plats for Sections 1A and 1B on July 22, 2024. The Planning
Board approved the Final Plats for Sections 1A and 1B on October 7, 2024, subject to
developer obtaining a drainage easement to connect the drainage outfall to the GCDD#2
Ditch 6 drainage canal.  Staff have been advised the developer has negotiated approved
terms for the drainage easement which is in the process of being signed and recorded.  

The master-planned project as approved will be on 50-acres of undeveloped land that is on
the east side of FM 2004, between Mainland City Centre and GCDD 2’s Ditch 6 channel.  The
project will include a combination of 50’, 60’, and 70’ wide lots. The variety of lot sizes will be
balanced and mixed within each section. The city’s vision and long-range plan suggests that a
variety of housing products be developed to serve the needs of the community and attract
new families to the city. Generally, lot sizes and the inclusion of amenities have a beneficial
effect on the types of homes being developed.

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommend consent to annexation of Sections 1A & 1B into the GCMUD 79.  

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Binnancle 51 - Petition for Consent to Annex Land into MUD 79 
Binnacle 51 - Certificate of Authority 



Binnacle 51 - Survey Map 
Resolution 

























RESOLUTION NO. 2024-126

A RESOLUTION OF CONSENT TO THE ANNEXATION OF CERTAIN
LAND COMPRISING THE BROOKWATER SUBDIVISION INTO
GALVESTON COUNTY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 79
SECTIONS 1A AND 1B UPON CERTAIN CONDITIONS AND FURTHER
PROVIDING THEREWITH; AND PROVIDING THAT THIS
RESOLUTION SHALL BECOME EFFECTIVE FROM AND AFTER ITS
PASSAGE AND ADOPTION.

WHEREAS, Binnacle Texas City 51, LLC and Galveston County Municipal Utility
District No. 79 request the consent of the City to the annexation of a 19.35-acre tract
being Brookwater Subdivision Sections 1A and 1B into the District; and

WHEREAS, the master-planned project, as approved, will be on 50 acres of
undeveloped land that is on the east side of FM 2004, between Mainland City Centre and GCDD
2’s Ditch 6 channel.  The project will include a combination of 50’, 60’, and 70’ wide lots. The
variety of lot sizes will be balanced and mixed within each section; and

WHEREAS, the City’s vision and long-range plan suggest that a variety of housing
products be developed to serve the community's needs and attract new families to the City.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE
CITY OF TEXAS CITY, TEXAS:

SECTION 1: That the Petition for Consent to Annexation of Sections 1A & 1B into the
Galveston County Municipal Utility District No. 79 filed jointly by said Galveston County
Municipal Utility District No. 79 and Binnacle Texas City 51, LLC, together with all exhibits
thereto is hereby incorporated herein by reference.

SECTION 2: Annexation of Sections 1A & 1B into the Galveston County Municipal
Utility District No. 79.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 16th day of October 2024.

                                                       
Dedrick D. Johnson, Sr., Mayor
City of Texas City, Texas



ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

                                                  _______________________________
Rhomari D. Leigh Kyle L. Dickson
City Secretary City Attorney



   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (6) (i)        
Meeting Date: 10/16/2024  
Consider and take action to affirm the Agreement for Professional Engineering Services between
the City of Texas City and Douglas Kneupper, P.E.
Submitted For: Kim Golden, Transportation and Planning 
Submitted By: Veronica Carreon, Transportation and Planning
Department: Transportation and Planning

Information
ACTION REQUEST
Consider and take action to affirm the Independent Contractor Agreement between the City of
Texas City and Douglas Kneupper, P.E. (former City Engineer) to provide consulting services
as needed in support of the Engineering & Planning Department.

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
The Independent Contractor Agreement between the City of Texas City and Doug Kneupper,
P.E., authorized on June 3, 2021, is perpetual but requires annual authorization to satisfy the
requirements of the purchasing policy.   The consulting services provided by Mr. Kneupper
support the routine operations of the Engineering & Planning department with plan reviews,
project coordination and general consultation.  

RECOMMENDATION
City Engineer recommends approval of the agreement.  

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Kneupper.Doug-Independent Contractor Agreement 2021-0603 
Resolution 











RESOLUTION NO.  2024
-127

A RESOLUTION AFFIRMING AN INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR
AGREEMENT WITH DOUGLAS KNEUPPER FOR PROFESSIONAL
CONSULTING SERVICES; AND PROVIDING THAT THIS
RESOLUTION SHALL BECOME EFFECTIVE FROM AND AFTER ITS
PASSAGE AND ADOPTION.

WHEREAS, to provide professional services commensurate with those
professional services to the City during his employment prior to the Effective Date; and

WHEREAS, consultant shall have the same access as a regular employee of the
City (laptop, emails, etc.) and will be reimbursed any mileage at the current IRS rate.
Consultant shall serve at the direction of the Mayor. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION
OF THE CITY OF TEXAS CITY, TEXAS:

SECTION 1:  That the City Commission of the City of Texas City hereby affirms
the Agreement with Douglas Kneupper attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and made part
thereof.

SECTION 2: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after
its passage and adoption.

   PASSED AND ADOPTED this 16th day of October 2024.

_______________________________
Dedrick D. Johnson, Sr., Mayor
City of Texas City, Texas

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

_____________________________                          ______________________________
Rhomari D. Leigh Kyle L. Dickson
City Secretary City Attorney



   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (6) (j)        
Meeting Date: 10/16/2024  
Utilities Department - SCADA System Repairs and Upgrades
Submitted For: Dj Hutchinson, Public Works  Submitted By: Dj Hutchinson, Public

Works
Department: Public Works

Information
ACTION REQUEST
The Utilities Department is requesting approval from the City Commission for valve repairs
and upgrades to the City's SCADA (Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition) system at the
following water plants:

HEIGHTS WATER PLANT- Installation of two new 6" MOV's (Motor Operated Valves)
and required appurtenances.   $28,220.00
32ND STREET WATER PLANT- Installation of two new 6" MOV's and required
appurtenances.   $25,200.00
9TH STREET / 9TH AVE. WATER PLANT- Installation of one 8" MOV's and required
appurtenances.  $18,060.00
GODARD PARK WATER PLANT- Installation of  new transducer on the GST.   $3500.00
ORCHID WATER PLANT- Installation of two new transducers on the Distribution and
GST pipelines.   $10,000.00 

Total Cost of Repairs and Upgrades-  $85,000.00
K2 Services Contract #092-2021
Funding is to come from Utilities Account No, 501705 55020

*** For a more detailed description of cost estimates, please see attachment 

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
Existing valves are pneumatically operated and have become problematic.  Replacing the
pneumatic valves with electrically operated valves will increase reliability of the water system
and reduce maintenance costs.
  
  

RECOMMENDATION
It is the recommendation of the Utilities Department that the Mayor and City Commission
approve this request to enhance the reliability of the City's water system.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
K2 Service Estimates for SCADA Upgrades 
Resolution 















RESOLUTION NO. 2024-128

A RESOLUTION APPROVING VALVE REPAIRS AND UPGRADES TO
THE CITY'S SUPERVISORY CONTROL AND DATA ACQUISITION
SYSTEM (SCADA) AT VARIOUS WATER PLANT LOCATIONS; AND
PROVIDING THAT THIS RESOLUTION SHALL BECOME EFFECTIVE
FROM AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE AND ADOPTION.

WHEREAS, existing valves at various water plants are pneumatically operated and have
become problematic; and

WHEREAS, replacing the pneumatic valves with electrically operated valves will
increase the reliability of the water system and reduce maintenance costs; and

WHEREAS, funds are available in the City’s 2024-2025 Fiscal Year Budget.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE
CITY OF TEXAS CITY, TEXAS:

SECTION 1: That the City Commission of the City of Texas City, Texas, hereby
approves valve repairs and upgrades to the City’s SCADA system for the total price of
$85,000.00, as set out on the cost estimates attached hereto as Exhibit “A”.

SECTION 2: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its
passage and adoption.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 16th day of October 2024.

_______________________________
Dedrick D. Johnson, Sr., Mayor 
City of Texas City, Texas

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

___________________________ ____________________________
Rhomari D. Leigh Kyle L. Dickson
City Secretary City Attorney



   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (6) (k)        
Meeting Date: 10/16/2024  
Sale of Property In Trust (PIT) to the Texas City Economic Development Corporation
Submitted For: Jon Branson, Management Services 
Submitted By: Jon Branson, Management Services
Department: Management Services

Information
ACTION REQUEST
Consideration and possible action regarding the approval of an offer to purchase
tax-foreclosed property described as Lots Six (6) and Seven (7), Texas City Second Division,
known commonly as vacant lots located at 920 2 nd Ave South, by the Texas City Economic
Development Corporation for the sum of $17,187.50 and authorizing the Mayor to execute a
Trustee’s Deed conveying title to said property further as further described in the attached
Trustee's Deed.  

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
The Texas City Property In Trust Committee met on Tuesday, September 24, 2024, and
unanimously approved the sale of the property to the Texas City Economic Development
Corporation.  The total sale cost of the property is $17,187.50.  The sale proceeds of this
property will be distributed to various taxing entities as shown in the attached Resale of
Property Proceeds Distribution Form.  

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends approving an offer to purchase tax-foreclosed property described as Lots
Six (6) and Seven (7), Texas City Second Division, known commonly as vacant lots located at
920 2nd Avenue South, by the Texas City Economic Development Corporation for the sum of
$17,187.50 and authorize the Mayor to execute a Trustee's Deed conveying title to said
property as further described in the attached Trustee's Deed.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Trustee's Deed 
Distribution Worksheet 
Resolution 



NOTICE OF CONFIDENTIALITY RIGHTS: IF YOU ARE A NATURAL PERSON, YOU MAY
REMOVE OR STRIKE ANY OR ALL OF THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION FROM ANY
INSTRUMENT THAT TRANSFERS AN INTEREST IN REAL PROPERTY BEFORE IT IS FILED
FOR RECORD IN THE PUBLIC RECORDS: YOUR SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBER OR YOUR
DRIVER'S LICENSE NUMBER.

TRUSTEE'S DEED

THE STATE OF TEXAS §
§ KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

COUNTY OF GALVESTON §

WHEREAS, by Order of Sale, issued by the Galveston County District Court, 212TH Judicial District
in Cause Numbered 18-TX-0515, styled "County of Galveston, et al. vs. Viola Johnson, et al" the Sheriff of
Galveston County, on 4th of March, A.D., 2019, seized and levied upon the right, title and interest the
defendants had in the premises hereinafter described; and

WHEREAS, the Sheriff on the first Tuesday of April, A.D., 2019 (the same being the 6th day of said
month), sold and conveyed the premises to City of Texas City, as Trustee for itself and for County of
Galveston, College of the Mainland and Texas City Independent School District for the sum of  Five
Thousand Six Hundred Thirty and 00/100 Dollars ($5,630.00), it being the highest bidder therefore; and

WHEREAS, the GRANTEE named herein desires to purchase this property for the sum of Seventeen
Thousand  One Hundred Eighty-seven and 50/100 Dollars ($17,187.50);

WHEREAS, this sale is authorized pursuant to V.T.C.A., Tax Code §34.05(b);
WHEREAS this sale is authorized pursuant to an Interlocal Agreement between City of Texas City,

County of Galveston, College of the Mainland and Texas City Independent School District as permitted
under Texas Government Code §791.011; and

WHEREAS the Interlocal Agreement between City of Texas City, County of Galveston,  College of
the Mainland and  Texas City Independent School District  provides that the Mayor or Presiding Officer of
the City of Texas City will execute Trustee’s Deeds on behalf of all taxing entities made a party to the Interlocal
Agreement pursuant to offers approved by the Resale Committee under the Interlocal Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the sum of Seventeen Thousand  One Hundred Eighty-
seven and 50/100 Dollars ($17,187.50) paid by the GRANTEE named below, the receipt and sufficiency of
which is acknowledged, City of Texas City, County of Galveston, College of the Mainland and Texas City
Independent School District  ("GRANTOR"), have GRANTED, SOLD and CONVEYED, and by these
presents does GRANT, SELL and CONVEY to Texas City Economic Development Corporation, of 1801
9th Avenue North, Texas City, TX  77590 ("GRANTEE"), the following described real property, to wit:

LOTS SIX (6) AND SEVEN (7) TEXAS CITY SECOND DIVISION, GALVESTON
COUNTY, TEXAS, SAID PROPERTY BEING MORE PARTICULARLY
DESCRIBED IN THE INSTRUMENT RECORDED IN VOLUME 761, PAGE 667 IN
THE OFFICIAL DEED RECORDS OF GALVESTON COUNTY, TEXAS.



GRANTOR excludes and excepts from this conveyance any warranties, express or implied, on the
property, including, without limitation, any warranties arising by common law or Section 5.023 of the Texas
Property Code.

GRANTOR conveys the property:
a) "as is", "with all faults" and without any warranty as to condition or environmental hazard,

b) subject to all restrictions, easements, rights-of-way leases, oil, gas and mineral leases, royalties,
mineral conveyances, and mineral reservations of record, if any, in the office of the County Clerk
of said County,

c) subject to any right of redemption; and

d) subject to rights of parties in possession.

GRANTOR disclaims any warranty, guaranty or representation, oral or written, on:
a) the nature and condition of the property or other items conveyed hereunder, including, without

limitation, the water, soil and geology,

b) the suitability of the property conveyed hereunder for any and all activities and uses which
GRANTEE may elect to conduct thereon,

c) the existence of any environmental hazards or conditions thereon (including but not limited to
the presence of asbestos or other hazardous materials),

d) compliance with applicable environmental laws, rules or regulations; and

e) the compliance of the property with any laws, ordinances, or regulations of any governmental
entity or body.

By acceptance of this deed, GRANTEE acknowledges and agrees:

a) that GRANTOR acquired the property through foreclosure of a tax lien as Trustee and as such
has little, if any, knowledge of the physical or economic characteristics of the property,

b) GRANTEE has inspected the property and are relying solely on their own investigation of the
same and not on any information provided or to be provided by on behalf of GRANTOR,

c) that any information provided with respect to the property was obtained from a variety of
sources,

d) GRANTOR (1) has not made any independent investigation or verification of such information;
and (2) does not make any representations as to the accuracy or completeness of such
information; and

e) that if there are any improvements on the property, GRANTOR shall not be responsible for or
liable to GRANTEE for any construction defects, errors, omissions, of any other conditions
affecting the property.



GRANTEE or anyone claiming by, through or under GRANTEE, hereby fully releases GRANTOR,
its employees, officers, directors, representatives, attorneys and agents from any and all claims that it may now
have or hereafter acquire against GRANTOR, its respective employees, officers, directors, representatives,
attorneys and agents for any cost, loss, liability, damage, expense, demand, action or cause of action arising
from or related to the conveyance of the premises herein as well as any construction defects, errors, omissions,
or other conditions affecting the property and other items conveyed hereunder.  GRANTEE further
acknowledges and agrees that this release shall be given full force and effect according to each of its express
terms and provisions, including, but not limited to, those relating to unknown and suspected claims, damages
and causes of action.  This covenant releasing GRANTOR shall be a covenant running with the property and
shall be binding upon GRANTEE, their heirs, successors, beneficiaries and assigns.  GRANTOR hereby
assigns without recourse or representation of any nature to GRANTEE, effective upon the execution and
delivery hereof, any and all claims that GRANTOR may have for any such errors, omissions or defects in the
property an other items conveyed hereunder.  As a material covenant and condition of this conveyance,
GRANTEE agrees that in the event of any such construction defects, errors, omissions or on account of any
other conditions affecting the property, GRANTEE shall look solely to GRANTOR's predecessors or to such
contractors and consultants as may have contracted for work in connection with the property and other items
conveyed hereunder for any redress or relief.  Upon the assignment by GRANTOR of its claims, GRANTEE
releases GRANTOR of all right, express or implied, GRANTEE may have against GRANTOR arising our of
or resulting from any errors, omissions or defects in the property and other items conveyed hereunder.
GRANTEE further understands that some of GRANTOR's predecessors in interest may be or become
insolvent, bankrupt, judgment-proof or otherwise incapable of responding in damages, and GRANTEE may
have no remedy against such predecessors, contractors or consultants.

GRANTEE hereby further agrees on behalf of himself and his heirs, successors, beneficiaries and
assigns to indemnify, protect, defend, save and hold harmless GRANTOR and GRANTOR's elected and
appointed officials, employees, officers, directors, representatives, attorneys and agents from and against any
and all debts, duties, obligations, liabilities, suits, claims, demands, cause of action, damages, losses, costs and
expenses (including, without limitation, attorneys' fees and expenses and court costs) in any way relating to,
connected with or arising out of the property and other items conveyed hereunder or the ownership, leasing,
use, operation, maintenance and management thereof from and after the date hereof, including, without
limitation, the cost of any removal of hazardous substances or contaminants from the property and other items
conveyed hereunder.

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the above-described premises together with all and singular the rights and
appurtenances thereto in any wise belonging unto GRANTEE, their heirs, and assigns, forever.



Taxes for the current year, if any, are to be paid by GRANTEE.

EXECUTED this the             day of                                    , 2024.

CITY OF TEXAS CITY, TRUSTEE

By:____________________________________________
Hon. Dedrick Johnson
MAYOR OF CITY OF TEXAS CITY

STATE OF TEXAS §
§

COUNTY OF GALVESTON §

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, on this day personally appeared  DEDRICK JOHNSON, as
Mayor  for City of Texas City, known to me to be the person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing
instrument, and acknowledged to me that he executed the same for the purposes and consideration therein
expressed.

GIVEN under my hand and seal of office this the              day of                            , 2024.

                                                                
NOTARY PUBLIC, in and for the State of Texas

                                                                
Printed or Typed Name of Notary



RESALE OF PROPERTY
PROCEEDS DISTRIBUTION FORM

Cause Number 18-TX-0515 on the docket of the 212th District Court
   GALVESTON COUNTY, ET AL. VS. VIOLA JOHNSON

Property Account Number: 225437  (7030-0230-0006-000

Legal Description:  LOTS SIX (6) AND SEVEN (7) TEXAS CITY SECOND DIVISION, GALVESTON
COUNTY, TEXAS, SAID PROPERTY BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED IN THE
INSTRUMENT RECORDED IN VOLUME 761, PAGE 667 IN THE OFFICIAL DEED RECORDS OF
GALVESTON COUNTY, TEXAS.

Property Sold at Sheriff’s Sale Conducted on April 2, 2019 for $5,630.00

Proceeds Distribution
 Original Amt  Actual

Payment of Costs Pursuant to Texas Property Tax Code §34.02   Due At Sale  Disbursement
   (1) Advertising:
to “Galveston County Sheriff’s Dept.” (publication costs)  $       122.37  $          123.37
    (2) Reimbursement - Costs, Fees
to “Galveston County Clerk” (recording fee #2019022696)  $          30.00  $           30.00
   (3) Attorney Ad Litem Fees       
to "Jeffrey Kilgore" 164 Bora Bora, Galveston  77554  $       700.00  $          700.00
   (4) Court Costs       
to "Galveston County District Clerk"  $       563.00  $          563.00
   (5) Title Search Fees
to "Estate of Lyn Wingert"  $       250.00  $          250.00
   $    1,665.37  $       1,665.37
 
Taxing Entity Distribution    Taxes Due at  Resale

   Original Sale  Share/(Loss)
to "COUNTY OF GALVESTON"     $    1,028.34  $      3,414.87
to "TEXAS CITY INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT"   $    2,501.40  $      8,381.95
to "CITY OF TEXAS CITY"     $        733.73  $      2,483.54
to "COLLEGE OF THE MAINLAND"     $        397.19  $      1,241.77

Subtotal  $    4,660.66  $    15,522.13
CAD VALUE:  Land $10,940
                           Imp.  $000.00  Grand Total  $     6,326.03  $    17,187.50



RESALE OF PROPERTY
PROCEEDS DISTRIBUTION FORM

Cause Number 18-TX-0515 on the docket of the 212th District Court
   GALVESTON COUNTY, ET AL. VS. VIOLA JOHNSON

Property Account Number: 225437  (7030-0230-0006-000

Legal Description:  LOTS SIX (6) AND SEVEN (7) TEXAS CITY SECOND DIVISION, GALVESTON
COUNTY, TEXAS, SAID PROPERTY BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED IN THE
INSTRUMENT RECORDED IN VOLUME 761, PAGE 667 IN THE OFFICIAL DEED RECORDS OF
GALVESTON COUNTY, TEXAS.

Property Sold at Sheriff’s Sale Conducted on April 2, 2019 for $5,630.00

Proceeds Distribution
 Original Amt  Actual

Payment of Costs Pursuant to Texas Property Tax Code §34.02   Due At Sale  Disbursement
   (1) Advertising:
to “Galveston County Sheriff’s Dept.” (publication costs)  $       122.37  $          123.37
    (2) Reimbursement - Costs, Fees
to “Galveston County Clerk” (recording fee #2019022696)  $          30.00  $           30.00
   (3) Attorney Ad Litem Fees       
to "Jeffrey Kilgore" 164 Bora Bora, Galveston 77554  $       700.00  $          700.00
   (4) Court Costs       
to "Galveston County District Clerk"  $       563.00  $          563.00
   (5) Title Search Fees
to "Estate of Lyn Wingert"  $       250.00  $          250.00
   $    1,665.37  $       1,665.37
 
Taxing Entity Distribution    Taxes Due at  Resale

   Original Sale  Share/(Loss)
to "COUNTY OF GALVESTON"     $    1,028.34  $      3,414.87
to "TEXAS CITY INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT"   $    2,501.40  $      8,381.95
to "CITY OF TEXAS CITY"     $        733.73  $      2,483.54
to "COLLEGE OF THE MAINLAND"     $        397.19  $      1,241.77

Subtotal  $    4,660.66  $    15,522.13
CAD VALUE:  Land $ 10,940
                           Imp.  $   0.00  Grand Total  $     6,326.03  $    17,187.50



RESOLUTION NO. 2024-129

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN OFFER TO PURCHASE TAX-
FORECLOSED PROPERTY DESCRIBED AS LOTS SIX (6) AND SEVEN
(7), TEXAS CITY SECOND DIVISION, KNOWN COMMONLY AS
VACANT LOTS LOCATED AT 920 2ND AVE SOUTH, BY THE TEXAS
CITY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION; AND
PROVIDING THAT THIS RESOLUTION SHALL BECOME EFFECTIVE
FROM AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE AND ADOPTION.

WHEREAS, staff recommends approving an offer to purchase tax-foreclosed property
described as Lots Six (6) and Seven (7), Texas City Second Division, known commonly
as vacant lots located at 920 2nd Avenue South, by the Texas City Economic
Development Corporation for the sum of $17,187.50; and

WHEREAS, the Mayor requests permission to execute a Trustee's Deed conveying title
to said property as further described in the attached Trustee's Deed.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE
CITY OF TEXAS CITY, TEXAS:

SECTION 1: That the City Commission of the City of Texas City, Texas, hereby
approves the purchase of tax-foreclosed property described as Lots Six (6) and Seven (7), Texas
City Second Division, known commonly as vacant lots located at 920 2nd Avenue South, by the
Texas City Economic Development Corporation for the sum of $17,187.50.

SECTION 2: The Mayor will execute a Trustee's Deed conveying title to said property
as further described in the attached Trustee's Deed.

SECTION 3: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its
passage and adoption.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 16th day of October 2024.

_______________________________
Dedrick D. Johnson, Sr., Mayor 
City of Texas City, Texas

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

___________________________ ____________________________
Rhomari D. Leigh Kyle L. Dickson



City Secretary City Attorney



   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (6) (l)        
Meeting Date: 10/16/2024  
Waste Water Treatment Plant Annual Sludge Disposal Contract
Submitted For: Dj Hutchinson, Public Works  Submitted By: Dj Hutchinson, Public

Works
Department: Public Works

Information
ACTION REQUEST
The Utilities Department is seeking approval for the Waste Water Treatment Plant's Annual
Sludge Disposal Contract.

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
Five bids for BID# 2024-15, SLUDGE DISPOSAL FROM WATER TREATMENT PLANT
ANNUAL CONTRACT were received and opened publicly at 10:00am on Wednesday,
October 9th, 2024.  Out of the five bids received, two were rejected and listed as NO BID. 
(See Attached Bid Tab) 

Republic Services of Houston, Texas is the preferred vendor of choice, however they are
$3.00 higher for each load.  The Waster Water Treatment Plant utilizes Account No. 501703 53460
for sludge disposal, with $450K in the account for the budget year of 2025.  See attached
recommendation to use Republic Service of Houston for the City's needs.
 

RECOMMENDATION
It is the recommendation of the Public Works Department for the Mayor and City Commission
to approve the bid from Republic Services of Houston for Sludge Disposal for fiscal year 2025.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Bid Tab 
Recommendation 



BID TABULATION 
 

Bid # 2024-015 
Sludge Disposal From Waste Water 

Treatment Plant Annual Contract 
 

Bid Opening: Wednesday, October 09, 2024 at 10:00 a.m. 
 

VENDOR UNIT PRICE 
720 

 20 yard roll-off 

UNIT PRICE 
600 

 20 yard roll-off 

UNIT PRICE 
540 

 20 yard roll-off 
Republic Services 
Houston, Texas 

$950.00 $950.00 $950.00 

Sprint Waste of Texas No Bid No Bid No Bid 

Waste Water Transport Services 
(Houston, TX) 

$947.00 $947.00 $947.00 

Magna Flow Environmental 
 

No Bid No Bid No Bid 

AMMCO Solutions Group 
(Does not include roll off boxes 

$1,286.55 $1,286.55 $1,286.55 

 



 

 

 

 
 
 

MEMO 
 

 
TO:  Mike McKinley, Purchasing Coordinator    
    
FROM: Calvin D. Bremer, WWT Superintendent  
    
CC:   Corbin Ballast, Director of Utilities 
  
DATE:  October 9, 2024 
 
RE:  Sludge Disposal Contract     

 
   

Mike, we have had a long-standing relationship with Republic Services. Due to the very low  

Cost difference in cost per load between Republic & Wastewater transport, $3.00 per load  

Approximately $2,00.00 per year I recommend awarding the contract to Republic Services 

at this time. The city has received great service from Republic Services over the past years. 



   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (6) (m)        
Meeting Date: 10/16/2024  
Public Consultant Group (PCG) Contract Extension
Submitted For: David Zacherl, Fire Department 
Submitted By: David Zacherl, Fire Department
Department: Fire Department

Information
ACTION REQUEST
Consider and take action on Resolution 24-131, authorizing the Mayor to extend the
agreement with Public Consultant Group to provide assistance to the fire department for
the FY2024 Ambulance Supplemental Pay Program participation.

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
The Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) allows states to establish alternative
payment methodologies (Supplemental Payments) for certain classes of providers pursuant to
42 CFR 447.321, section 1902(a)(30) of the Social Security Act. This alternative payment
program is known as the Ambulance Supplemental Pay Program (ASPP). The City has
participated in the ASPP program since 2016 and has received approximately two million
dollars in return.

During this time period, the City has contracted with Public Consultant Group (PCG) to
provide assistance with developing, analyzing and submitting the necessary cost report to
secure the supplemental CMS payments. 

The original three-year agreement permitted two additional one-year extensions. This request
is for the second and final extension under the terms of the original agreement.   
           

 

RECOMMENDATION
The Fire Chief recommends continued participation in the ASPP and maintaining the
agreement for assistance with Public Consultant Group (PCG). 

Fiscal Impact
Funds Available Y/N: Yes
Amount Requested: 15% of recovery
Source of Funds: Ambulance Supplemental Pay Program
Account #:
Fiscal Impact:
By agreement, PCG receives 15% of the amount recovered from CMS each year. This



By agreement, PCG receives 15% of the amount recovered from CMS each year. This
monies is distributed from the EMS Collections Account upon receipt of the ASPP check and
an invoice from PCG. 

Attachments
Exhibit A 
Resolution 



AMENDMENT NO. 2
TO THE

SERVICES AGREEMENT

This Amendment No. 2 (the “Amendment”) to the Services Agreement entered by and
between City of Texas City (“Client”) and Public Consulting Group, Inc., successor in interest to
Public Consulting Group LLC (“PCG”), as of October 21, 2020 (the “Agreement”), is made
effective as of _____________, 2024 (“Effective Date”).

WHEREAS, the parties wish to amend the Agreement pursuant to Section 17 for the
purpose of extending the cost report cycle;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing, the promises and mutual
covenants contained herein, and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and
adequacy of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereby agree as follows:

1. The parties agree that pursuant to the second paragraph of Attachment B under
“Supplemental Payment Services,” the Agreement is extended for one (1) additional 12
month period.  PCG will provide Supplemental Payment Services for a further cost
reporting period for Federal Fiscal Year 2024 (October 1, 2023- September 30, 2024).
PCG will provide these services through the completion and issuance of payment from
the State of Texas to CLIENT for the Federal Fiscal Year 2024 cost report, estimated to
occur on or before September 30, 2025, and may be extended one (1) additional 12
month period.

2. Conflict in Terms.  Except as amended and/or modified by this Amendment, the
Agreement is hereby ratified and confirmed and all other terms of the Agreement shall
remain in full force and effect, unaltered and unchanged by this Amendment.  Whether or
not specifically amended by this Amendment, all of the terms and provisions of the
Agreement are hereby amended to the extent necessary to give effect to the purpose and
intent of this Amendment.

3. Severability.  If any provision in this Amendment is found by a court of competent
jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable, the remaining provisions in this Amendment
shall continue in full force and effect.

4. Waiver.  The failure of a party to enforce a provision of this Amendment shall not
constitute a waiver with respect to that provision or any other provision of this
Amendment.

5. Counterparts.  This Amendment may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of
which shall be deemed an original and all of which counterparts together shall constitute
the same instrument which may be sufficiently evidenced by one counterpart.

6. Entire Agreement; Non-Reliance.  The Agreement, as amended by this Amendment and
by any other prior Amendments still in force, constitutes the entire understanding and
agreement of the Parties with respect to the subject matter hereof, and supersedes any and



2

all prior agreements, understandings or representations with respect thereto.  Neither
Party is relying upon any agreement or representation by the other Party except as set
forth in the Agreement, as amended by this Amendment.

7. Applicable Law, Jurisdiction, and Venue.  This Amendment is to be construed,
interpreted, and enforced under and in accordance with the same governing law as set
forth in the Agreement, without regard to choice of law provisions.  The parties consent
to personal jurisdiction in that state’s or district’s courts and waive any objection to
venue.

8. Voluntary Act/Authorship: Each party acknowledges that they been provided with the
opportunity to consult with and be represented by independent counsel in negotiating this
Amendment.  Each party represents that they have read and understand this Amendment
and that they are freely and voluntarily entering into this Amendment in exchange for the
consideration described herein.  This Amendment shall not be construed in favor of or
against either party by reason of authorship

9. Authority. Each individual signing below on behalf of a party hereby represents and
warrants that they have full power and authority to enter into this Amendment on behalf
of such party.  Each party to this Amendment hereby represents and warrants that it has
full power and authority to enter into this Amendment, that the execution, delivery, and
performance of this Amendment has been fully authorized and approved, and that no
further approvals or consents are required to bind such party.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement by the signatures of their
respective authorized representatives.

PUBLIC CONSULTING GROUP LLC    CITY OF TEXAS CITY

____________________________________ ____________________________________
By: By: Dedrick D. Johnson
Title: Title: Mayor
Date: Date:



RESOLUTION NO. 2024-131

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXTEND THE
AGREEMENT WITH PUBLIC CONSULTING GROUP, INC. FOR
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES RELATED TO THE ADMINISTRATION OF
THE FEDERAL GOVERNMENT AMBULANCE SUPPLEMENTAL PAY
PROGRAM DESIGNED TO PROVIDE ADDITIONAL REVENUE TO THE
FIRE DEPARTMENT EMS PROGRAM; PROVIDING THAT THIS
RESOLUTION SHALL BECOME EFFECTIVE FROM AND AFTER ITS
PASSAGE AND ADOPTION.

WHEREAS, The Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) allows states to
establish alternative payment methodologies (Supplemental Payments) for certain classes
of providers pursuant to 42 CFR 447.321, section 1902(a)(30) of the Social Security Act,
and

WHEREAS, the alternative payment methodologies would supplement current Medicaid
payments received by CITY, and would be based on cost reimbursement for Medicaid-
eligible costs, and

WHEREAS, CONTRACTOR possesses professional skills that can assist CITY in
analyzing and reporting costs to secure supplemental CMS payments, and

WHEREAS, CITY previously engaged CONTRACTOR as an independent contractor to
perform certain professional services in connection with this initiative in October, 2020,
and

WHEREAS, the agreement permits two extensions of one year each by mutual consent of
the Party’s following the initial three year agreement, and

WHEREAS, this is the second extension requested.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE
CITY OF TEXAS CITY, TEXAS:

SECTION 1:  That the City Commission of the City of Texas City hereby authorizes the
Mayor to extend the Agreement with Public Consulting Group, Inc. in substantially the
same form attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and made part thereof.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 16th day of October, 2024.

_______________________________
Dedrick D Johnson, Mayor
City of Texas City, Texas



ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

___________________________ ____________________________
Rhomari D. Leigh  Kyle L Dickson
City Secretary City Attorney



   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (6) (n)        
Meeting Date: 10/16/2024  
Architectural Design Service for Expansion of the TCFD Administration Office
Submitted For: Dj Hutchinson, Public Works  Submitted By: Dj Hutchinson, Public

Works
Department: Public Works

Information
ACTION REQUEST
The Public Works Department and TCFD are requesting approval for Joiner Architects to
perform design services for an approximate 5900 sq/ft expansion of the existing Fire
Department Administration Building located at 1725 25th St. N.  The fee for their service from
conception, design, construction, and completion would be $239,700.00 and funded through
the Fire Department Account No.602-202-55010

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
Due to the rapid growth of the City of Texas City, the need for more City services has made it
necessary to expand the existing Fire Administration building to accommodate the needs of a
growing Fire/EMS workforce, and neighborhood improvement services. The plan is to add on
to the existing administration building and basically double its size for offices, storage,
training/conference rooms, restrooms, service closets, etc.  The architecture will harmonize
the other existing structures on-site.

RECOMMENDATION
Having had the pleasure of working with Joiner Architects over the past three years on the
construction of the Fire Training Facility and the newly commissioned Fire Station 4 at Lago
Mar, the departments that were involved would like to ask the Mayor and City Commission to
approve using their services for this new addition as we feel they are well suited to give us a
nice and functional space. 

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Exhibit A 
Resolution 









RESOLUTION NO. 2024-132

A RESOLUTION APPROVING JOINER ARCHITECTS TO PERFORM
ARCHITECTURAL DESIGN SERVICES FOR AN APPROXIMATE 5,900
SQUARE FEET EXPANSION OF THE EXISTING FIRE DEPARTMENT
ADMINISTRATION BUILDING; AND PROVIDING THAT THIS
RESOLUTION SHALL BECOME EFFECTIVE FROM AND AFTER ITS
PASSAGE AND ADOPTION.
 
WHEREAS, due to the rapid growth of the City of Texas City, the need for more City

services has made it necessary to expand the existing Fire Administration building to
accommodate the needs of a growing Fire/EMS workforce and Neighborhood Improvement
Services; and

WHEREAS, the plan is to add to the existing administration building and basically
double its size for offices, storage, training/conference rooms, restrooms, and service closets. 
The architecture will harmonize the other existing structures on-site.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE
CITY OF TEXAS CITY, TEXAS:

SECTION 1: That the City Commission of the City of Texas City, Texas, approves
Joiner Architects to perform Architectural Design Services for an approximate 5,900 square feet
expansion of the existing Fire Department Administration Building located at 1725 25th St.
North.

SECTION 2: That the Mayor is hereby authorized to enter into a contract with Joiner
Architects as noted in Exhibit “A” attached hereto and made a part hereof for all intents and
purposes.

SECTION 3: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its
passage and adoption.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 16th day of October 2024.

____________________________
Dedrick D. Johnson, Sr., Mayor
City of Texas City, Texas

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

________________________ _________________________
Rhomari D. Leigh Kyle L. Dickson
City Secretary City Attorney



   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (6) (o)        
Meeting Date: 10/16/2024  
Purchase of a John Deere 335 P Compact Track Loader
Submitted For: Mike McKinley, Public Works  Submitted By: Rhomari Leigh, City

Secretary
Department: Public Works

Information
ACTION REQUEST
Recommend approval of the purchase of a John Deere 335 P Compact Track Loader. 

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
The Streets and Bridge department has an existing Bobcat T870 Bobcat with over 1,366
hours of operation and is in need of replacement.  SHOPPA's Farm Supply through the CCE
Sourcewell Cooperative Purchasing Program Contract #011723-J DC) a John Deere 335 P
Compact Track Loader that is recommended to replace the old worn out Bobcat at a total cost
not to exceed $110,000. 

Funding for this piece of equipment is available in the FY 24/25 budget in Account
# 602-301-5510 Capital Misc., Equipment.  

The existing equipment has aged and led to increased breakdowns, higher maintenance
costs, and reduced productivity. 

 

RECOMMENDATION
It is the recommendation of the Public Works Director to approve the purchase of the John
Deere 335 P Compact Track Loader.  

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Exhibit A 
Resolution 









RESOLUTION NO. 2024-133

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE PURCHASE AND DELIVERY OF A
JOHN DEERE 335 P COMPACT TRACK LOADER THROUGH
SOURCEWELL CONTRACT NO. 011723-J DC; AND PROVIDING THAT
THIS RESOLUTION SHALL BECOME EFFECTIVE FROM AND AFTER
ITS PASSAGE AND ADOPTION.

WHEREAS, funds are available in the Fiscal Year 2024/2025 budget for the purchase of
a John Deere 335 P compact track loader through Sourcewell Contract No. 011723-J DC
for an amount not to exceed $110,000.00; and

WHEREAS, the track loader will be utilized by the Public Works Department.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE
CITY OF TEXAS CITY, TEXAS:

SECTION 1: That the City Commission of the City of Texas City, Texas, hereby
approves the purchase of a John Deere 335 P compact track loader through Sourcewell Contract
No. 011723-J DC for amount not to exceed $110,000.00, as set out on the pricing summary
worksheet attached hereto as Exhibit “A”

SECTION 2: That this John Deere 335 P compact track loader is to be utilized by the
Public Works Department.

SECTION 3: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its
passage and adoption.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 16th day of October 2024.

_______________________________
Dedrick D. Johnson, Sr., Mayor 
City of Texas City, Texas

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

___________________________ ____________________________
Rhomari D. Leigh Kyle L. Dickson
City Secretary City Attorney



   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (6) (p)        
Meeting Date: 10/16/2024  
Consider Approval of US50 Package Wheel Excavator
Submitted For: Dj Hutchinson, Public Works  Submitted By: Rhomari Leigh, City

Secretary
Department: Public Works

Information
ACTION REQUEST
Consider approval of the purchase of a US50 Package Wheel Excavator.

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
The existing Gradall 3300 has aged out and is in need of replacement.  The Gradall has over
4,746 hours of use.  The recommended purchase is from R.B. Everett & Company via Buy
Board 685-22. For a Develon DX 190W-7 (US50) Package Wheel Excavator in an amount not
to exceed $300,000.  

Funds for the purchase are in the FY 24/25 budget in account 602-301-5510 Capital Misc.,
Equipment.

The existing equipment has aged and led to increased breakdowns, higher maintenance
costs, and reduced productivity. Funds are available in the FY25 Budget.

RECOMMENDATION
It is the recommendation of the Public Works Director to approve the purchase of a Package
Wheel Excavator.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Exhibit A 
Resolution 







RESOLUTION NO. 2024-134

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE PURCHASE AND DELIVERY OF A
DEVELON DX 190W-7 (US50) PACKAGE WHEEL EXCAVATOR
THROUGH BUYBOARD 685-22; AND PROVIDING THAT THIS
RESOLUTION SHALL BECOME EFFECTIVE FROM AND AFTER ITS
PASSAGE AND ADOPTION.

WHEREAS, funds are available in the Fiscal Year 2024/2025 budget for the purchase of
a Develon DX 190W-7 (US50) Package Wheel Excavator from R.B. Everett & Company
through BuyBoard 685-22, for an amount not to exceed $300,000.00; and

WHEREAS, the Develon DX 190W-7 (US50) Package Wheel Excavator will be utilized
by the Public Works – Street and Bridge Department.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE
CITY OF TEXAS CITY, TEXAS:

SECTION 1: That the City Commission of the City of Texas City, Texas, hereby
approves the purchase of a Develon DX 190W-7 (US50) Package Wheel Excavator from R.B.
Everett & Company through BuyBoard 685-22 for an amount not to exceed $300,000.00, as set
out on the pricing summary worksheet attached hereto as Exhibit “A”

SECTION 2: That this Develon DX 190W-7 (US50) Package Wheel Excavator is to be
utilized by the Public Works – Street and Bridge Department.

SECTION 3: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its
passage and adoption.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 16th day of October 2024.

_______________________________
Dedrick D. Johnson, Sr., Mayor 
City of Texas City, Texas

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

___________________________ ____________________________
Rhomari D. Leigh Kyle L. Dickson
City Secretary City Attorney



----------------------------------------------------------------------------------
L:Resolution No. 06-132-Approve Purchase Pickup & Cab Truck
2



   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (6) (q)        
Meeting Date: 10/16/2024  
Purchase of a Ford F250 Crew Cab 
Submitted For: Jack Haralson, Public Works  Submitted By: Rhomari Leigh, City

Secretary
Department: City Secretary

Information
ACTION REQUEST
Consider approval of the purchase of a Ford F250 Crew Cab Truck

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
It is recommended to replace an existing Ford 250 with 121,181 miles with a new replacement
Ford F250.  The existing equipment has aged and led to increased breakdowns, higher
maintenance costs, and reduced productivity. Funds are available in the FY 24/25 budget in
account # 602-301-55020 Capital Operating Equipment & Vehicles.  

The recommended purchase is from Chastang Ford via Buy Board 724-23.  “2024 F-250 4X2
SD CREW CAB 6.75’ BOX 160”WB SRW XL” (W2A) in the amount of $50,377.

RECOMMENDATION
It is the recommendation of the Public Works Director to approve the purchase the
F-250 Crew Cab Truck.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Exhibit A 
Resolution 













RESOLUTION NO. 2024-125

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE PURCHASE AND DELIVERY OF
AN EXMARK LAZER Z DIESEL 43.5 HP YANMAR MOWER
THROUGH OMNIA PARTNERS PUBLIC SECTOR PURCHASING
COOPERATIVE CONTRACT NO. 20469 FROM LEAGUE CITY
OUTDOOR POWER EQUIPMENT; AND PROVIDING THAT THIS
RESOLUTION SHALL BECOME EFFECTIVE FROM AND AFTER ITS
PASSAGE AND ADOPTION.

WHEREAS, funds are available in the Fiscal Year 2024/2025 budget for the purchase of
an Exmark Lazer Z Diesel 43.5 HP YANMAR Mower through OMNIA PARTNERS
Public Sector Purchasing Cooperative Contract No. 20469 from League City Outdoor
Power Equipment; and

WHEREAS, the mower will be utilized by the Parks Department.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE
CITY OF TEXAS CITY, TEXAS:

SECTION 1: That the City Commission of the City of Texas City, Texas, hereby
approves the purchase of an Exmark Lazer Z Diesel 43.5 HP YANMAR Mower through
OMNIA PARTNERS Public Sector Purchasing Cooperative Contract No. 20469 from League
City Outdoor Power Equipment for the total price of $66,794.00, as set out on the pricing
summary worksheet attached hereto as Exhibit “A.”

SECTION 2: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its
passage and adoption.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 16th day of October 2024.

_______________________________
Dedrick D. Johnson, Sr., Mayor 
City of Texas City, Texas

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

___________________________ ____________________________
Rhomari D. Leigh Kyle L. Dickson
City Secretary City Attorney



   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (6) (r)        
Meeting Date: 10/16/2024  
FORD F550 FLATBED WITH TRAILER
Submitted For: Jack Haralson, Public Works  Submitted By: Rhomari Leigh, City

Secretary
Department: Public Works

Information
ACTION REQUEST
Approving the purchase of a new Ford F550 Flatbed with Trailer.  

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
Due to fire damage, a Ford F550 Flatbed with Trailer is needed for an estimated
$75,000.00. Funds are available in the FY25 Budget.
(1084) Chastang Ford (Buy Board 724-23) “2024 F-550 4X2 REGULAR CAB 145” WB DRW
XL (F5G) in an amount not to exceed $90,000.00.

Account: 602-301-55020 Capital Operating Equipment & Vehicles.

RECOMMENDATION
It is the recommendation of the Public Works Director to approve the purchase mentioned
above.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Exhibit A 
Resolution 















RESOLUTION NO. 2024-136

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE PURCHASE AND DELIVERY OF A
2024 FORD F550 FLATBED TRUCK WITH TRAILER THROUGH
BUYBOARD NO. 724-23; AND PROVIDING THAT THIS RESOLUTION
SHALL BECOME EFFECTIVE FROM AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE AND
ADOPTION.

WHEREAS, funds are available in the Fiscal Year 2024/2025 budget for the purchase of
a 2024 Ford F550 Flatbed Truck with Trailer from Chastang Ford through BuyBoard No.
724-23 for an amount not to exceed $90,000.00; and

WHEREAS, the 2024 Ford F550 Flatbed Truck with Trailer will be utilized by the
Public Works Department.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE
CITY OF TEXAS CITY, TEXAS:

SECTION 1: That the City Commission of the City of Texas City, Texas, hereby
approves the purchase of a 2024 Ford F550 Flatbed Truck with Trailer from Chastang Ford
through BuyBoard No. 724-23 for an amount not to exceed $90,000.00, as set out on the pricing
summary worksheet attached hereto as Exhibit “A”.

SECTION 2: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its
passage and adoption.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 16th day of October 2024.

_______________________________
Dedrick D. Johnson, Sr., Mayor 
City of Texas City, Texas

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

___________________________ ____________________________
Rhomari D. Leigh Kyle L. Dickson
City Secretary City Attorney



   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (6) (s)        
Meeting Date: 10/16/2024  
INTERNATIONAL TANDEM AXLE DUMP TRUCK REPLACEMENT
Submitted For: Jack Haralson, Public Works  Submitted By: Rhomari Leigh, City

Secretary
Department: Public Works

Information
ACTION REQUEST
Approving the purchase of International Tandem Axle Dump Truck Replacement. 

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
International Tandem Axle Dump Truck is being requested because the existing equipment
has aged and led to increased breakdowns, higher maintenance costs, and reduced
productivity. Funds are available in the FY25 Budget.

(2197) Santex Truck Centers, LTD (HGAC Contract HT06-20) “2026 HV607,
CONVENTIONAL CAB, 6X4, 14 YARD DUMP TRUCK:  Account: 602-301-55020 Captial
Operating Equip & Vehicles

RECOMMENDATION
It is the recommendation of the Public Works Director to purchase an International Tandem
Axle Dump Turck in an amount not to exceed $150,000.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Exhibit A 
Resolution 







RESOLUTION NO. 2024-137

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE PURCHASE AND DELIVERY OF
INTERNATIONAL TANDEM AXLE DUMP TRUCK THROUGH HGAC
CONTRACT HT06-20 2026 HV607; AND PROVIDING THAT THIS
RESOLUTION SHALL BECOME EFFECTIVE FROM AND AFTER ITS
PASSAGE AND ADOPTION.

WHEREAS, funds are available in the Fiscal Year 2024/2025 budget for the purchase of
an International Tandem Axle Dump Truck from Santex Truck Centers, LTD through
HGAC Contract HT06-20 2026 HV607 for the total price not to exceed $150,000.00; and

WHEREAS, the truck will be utilized by the Public Works Department.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE
CITY OF TEXAS CITY, TEXAS:

SECTION 1: That the City Commission of the City of Texas City, Texas, hereby
approves the purchase of International Tandem Axle Dump Truck from Santex Truck Centers,
LTD through HGAC Contract HT06-20 2026 HV607 for the total price not to exceed $150,000.,
as set out on the pricing summary worksheet attached hereto as Exhibit “A”.

SECTION 2: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its
passage and adoption.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 16th day of October 2024.

_______________________________
Dedrick D. Johnson, Sr., Mayor 
City of Texas City, Texas

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

___________________________ ____________________________
Rhomari D. Leigh Kyle L. Dickson
City Secretary City Attorney



   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (6) (t)        
Meeting Date: 10/16/2024  
Request to approve and submit 2025 Catalytic Converter Grant 
Submitted For: Titilayo Smith, Community Development/ Grant Admin 
Submitted By: Patricia Mata, Community Development/ Grant Admin
Department: Community Development/ Grant Admin

Information
ACTION REQUEST
Request for approval to submit the 2025 Catalytic Converter Grant to the Motor Vehicle Crime
Prevention Authority on behalf of TCPD. 

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
Texas City Police Department applied and was awarded the SB 224 Catalytic Converter
Grant for overtime. 

RECOMMENDATION
It is the recommendation of the Director of Community Development & Grant Administration to
approve the resolution and submission of the 2025 Catalytic Converter Grant. 

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
MVCPA 2025 Resolution 
Resolution 



2025 City of Texas City Resolution

SB225 Catalytic Converter Grant Program

WHEREAS, under the provisions of the Texas Transportation Code Chapter 1006 and
Texas Administrative Code Title 43; Part 3; Chapter 57, entities are eligible to receive
grants from the Motor Vehicle Crime Prevention Authority to provide financial support to
law enforcement agencies for economic automobile theft enforcement teams and to combat
motor vehicle burglary in the jurisdiction; and

WHEREAS, this grant program will assist this jurisdiction to combat catalytic converter theft;
and

WHEREAS, City of Texas City has agreed that in the event of loss or misuse of the grant funds,
City of Texas City assures that the grant funds will be returned in full to the Motor Vehicle Crime
Prevention Authority.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED and ordered that Titilayo Smith, Director of
Community Development & Grants Administration, is designated as the Authorized Official to
apply for, accept, decline, modify, or cancel the grant application for the Motor Vehicle Crime
Prevention Authority Grant Program and all other necessary documents to accept said grant; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that Landis Cravens, Chief of Police, is designated as the
Program Director and Cynthia Rushing, Chief Financial Officer, is designated as the Financial
Officer for this grant.

Adopted this ______day of ________________, 2025.



RESOLUTION NO. 2024-138

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE SUBMISSION OF AN
APPLICATION FOR THE 2025 CATALYTIC CONVERTER GRANT TO
THE MOTOR VEHICLE CRIME PREVENTION AUTHORITY ON
BEHALF OF TEXAS CITY POLICE DEPARTMENT (TCPD); AND
PROVIDING THAT THIS RESOLUTION SHALL BECOME EFFECTIVE
FROM AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE AND ADOPTION.

WHEREAS, it is requested to apply for the 2025 Catalytic Converter Grant to the Motor
Vehicle Crime Prevention Authority on behalf of TCPD; and

WHEREAS, it is the recommendation of the Director of Community Development &
Grant Administration to approve the resolution and submission of the 2025 Catalytic
Converter Grant. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF
THE CITY OF TEXAS CITY, TEXAS:

SECTION 1: That the City Commission of the City of Texas City, Texas, hereby
approves the submission of a grant application for the 2025 Catalytic Converter Grant to the
Motor Vehicle Crime Prevention Authority on behalf of TCPD

SECTION 2: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its
passage and adoption.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 16th day of October 2024.

_____________________________
Dedrick D. Johnson, Mayor
City of Texas City, Texas

ATTEST:          APPROVED AS TO FORM:

                                                     _____________________________
Rhomari D. Leigh Kyle L. Dickson
City Secretary City Attorney





   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (6) (u)        
Meeting Date: 10/16/2024  
Retrofit of Texas City Police Department indoor shooting range
Submitted For: Clay Pope, Police Department  Submitted By: Clay Pope, Police

Department
Department: Police Department

Information
ACTION REQUEST
Consider and take action on the approval of the retrofit of the Texas City Police Department's
indoor shooting range.  The cost of the retrofit is $317,450.

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
The indoor shooting range at the Texas City Police Department is original to the building
(1998) and has become obsolete and inoperable.  The shooting range is in need of a retrofit,
so several companies were consulted to bid on the project in compliance with the city's
purchasing policy. Inveris Training Solutions was selected by the Firearms Proficiency Officer
and the Chief of Police as the best option for this undertaking.

RECOMMENDATION
The Chief and Command Staff recommend this project, which was budgeted for in the FY
24-25' budget.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Action Target quote 
Inveris Quote 
Savage Range quote 
Resolution 















































RESOLUTION NO. 2024-139

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING A PROPOSAL FROM
INVERIS TRAINING SOLUTIONS FOR THE RETROFITTING OF
THE TEXAS CITY POLICE DEPARTMENT INDOOR SHOOTING
RANGE; AND PROVIDING THAT THIS RESOLUTION SHALL
BECOME EFFECTIVE FROM AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE AND
ADOPTION.

WHEREAS, the indoor shooting range at the Texas City Police Department is original to
the building (1998) and has become obsolete and inoperable; and

WHEREAS, the shooting range is in need of a retrofit. Several companies submitted
proposals for the project in compliance with the city's purchasing policy. Inveris Training
Solutions was selected by the Firearms Proficiency Officer and the Chief of Police as the best
option for this undertaking.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE
CITY OF TEXAS CITY, TEXAS:

SECTION 1: That the City Commission of the City of Texas City, Texas, hereby
approves the retrofitting of the Texas City Police Department's indoor shooting range for the
total price of $317,450.00, as set out on the quote attached hereto as Exhibit “A”.

SECTION 2: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its
passage and adoption.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 16th day of October 2024.

_______________________________
Dedrick D. Johnson, Sr., Mayor 
City of Texas City, Texas

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

___________________________ ____________________________
Rhomari D. Leigh Kyle L. Dickson
City Secretary City Attorney



   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (7) (a)        
Meeting Date: 10/16/2024  
Third Reading - Consider and take action on Ordinance No. 2024-023 for recommended speed
zones for Loop 197 as recommended by TxDOT on the basis of an engineering and traffic
investigation
Submitted For: Kim Golden, Transportation and Planning 
Submitted By: Veronica Carreon, Transportation and Planning
Department: Transportation and Planning

Information
ACTION REQUEST
Consider and take action on Ordinance No. 2024-023 for recommended speed zones for Loop
197 as recommended by TxDOT on the basis of an engineering and traffic investigation

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
On the basis of an engineering and traffic investigation, TxDOT recommends the following
speed limits be fixed by ordinance for vehicles traveling on the named streets and highways,
towit:

(1) Along LOOP 197 from the 200 feet north of 19th Avenue North to the 4th Avenue South a
distance of approximately 1.637 miles, the speed limit shall be 30 miles per hour.
(2) Along LOOP 197 from the 4th Avenue South to the 3437 feet south of FM 519 a distance
of approximately 2.178 miles, the speed limit shall be 40 miles per hour.
(3) Along LOOP 197 from the 3437 feet south of FM 519 to the 2312 feet north of Galveston,
Houston and Henderson Railroad a distance approximately 0.952 mile, the speed limit shall
be 55 miles per hour.
(4) Along LOOP 197 from the 2312 feet north of Galveston, Houston and Henderson (GHH)
Railroad to the GHH Railroad a distance of approximately 0.428 mile, the speed limit shall be
50 miles per hour.  

RECOMMENDATION
Upon review of the engineering and traffic investigation by an independent professional traffic
operations engineer (P.T.O.E.), the City Engineer recommends approval of the TxDOT
recommended speed limits indicated for vehicles traveling upon the named streets and
highways.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Request for Speed Zone Ordinance - Loop 197 
Ordinance 2024-23 













ORDINANCE NO. 2024-23

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF TEXAS CITY,
TEXAS, ALTERING THE PRIMA FACIE SPEED LIMITS ESTABLISHED FOR
VEHICLES UNDER THE PROVISIONS OF SECTIONS 545.356 AND 545.353 OF THE
TEXAS TRANSPORTATION CODE, ON CERTAIN STREETS AND HIGHWAYS OR
PARTS THEREOF WITHIN THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF TEXAS
CITY, AS SET OUT IN THIS ORDINANCE, TO WIT: SPEED ZONES FOR LOOP 197
AS RECOMMENDED BY TXDOT ON THE BASIS OF AN ENGINEERING AND
TRAFFIC INVESTIGATION; PROVIDING A PENALTY NOT TO EXCEED $200.00
FOR THE VIOLATION OF THIS ORDINANCE; PROVIDING A REPEALER CLAUSE,
A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, Section 545.356, Texas Transportation Code, provides that whenever the
governing body of the City shall determine, upon the basis of an engineering and traffic
investigation, that any prima facie speed therein set forth is greater or less than is reasonable or
safe under the conditions found to exist at any intersection or other place or upon any part of a
street or highway within the City, taking into consideration the width and condition of the
pavement and other circumstances on such portion of said street or highway, as well as the usual
traffic thereon, said governing body may determine and declare a reasonable and safe prima facie
speed limit thereat or thereon by the passage of an Ordinance, which shall be effective when
appropriate signs giving notice thereof are erected at such intersection or other place or part of
the street or highway; and

WHEREAS, the Texas Department of Transportation conducted a speed zone study and
recommends speed limits to be altered along Loop 197 as outlined on Exhibit “A”, Aerial Map,
attached hereto and made a part hereof for all intents and purposes; and,

WHEREAS, the City Commission of the City of Texas City agrees it is in the best
interest of the citizens of Texas City to determine and declare such designated areas as suggested
by the Texas Department of Transportation as outlined in Exhibit A.

          NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE
CITY OF TEXAS CITY, TEXAS:

SECTION 1:  Upon the basis of the Texas Department of Transportation speed zone
study made as authorized by the provisions of section 545.356 of the Texas Transportation Code,
the following prima facie speed limits hereafter indicated for vehicles are hereby determined and
declared to be reasonable and safe; and such speed limits are hereby fixed at the rate of speed
indicated for vehicles traveling upon the named streets and highways, or parts thereof, described
as follows:

(1)   Along LOOP 197 from the 200 feet north of 19th Avenue North to the 4th
Avenue South a distance of approximately 1.637 miles, the speed limit shall be
30 miles per hour.



2

(2)  Along LOOP 197 from the 4th Avenue South to the 3437 feet south of FM 519, a
distance of approximately 2.178 miles, the speed limit shall be 40 miles per hour.

(3) Along LOOP 197 from the 3437 feet south of FM 519 to the 2312 feet north of
Galveston, Houston, and Henderson Railroad, a distance of approximately 0.952
miles, the speed limit shall be 55 miles per hour.

(4) Along LOOP 197 from the 2312 feet north of Galveston, Houston, and
Henderson (GHH) Railroad to the GHH Railroad, a distance of approximately 0.428
miles, the speed limit shall be 50 miles per hour.  

SECTION 2: Any person violating any of the provisions of this ordinance shall be
deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and, upon conviction thereof, shall be fined in a sum not more
than Two Hundred Dollars ($200.00).

SECTION 3: That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of
this Ordinance are hereby repealed.  In the event any section, clause, sentence, paragraph, or part
of this Ordinance shall be for any reason adjudged by any court of competent jurisdiction to be
invalid, such invalidity shall not affect, invalidate, or impair the remainder of this Ordinance.

SECTION 4: That this Ordinance shall be read on three (3) separate days and shall
become effective upon its final reading, passage, and adoption.

SECTION 5: That this Ordinance shall be finally passed upon the date of its
introduction and shall become effective from and after its passage and adoption and publication
by caption only in the official newspaper of the City.

PASSED ON FIRST READING this 18th day of September 2024.

________________________
Dedrick D. Johnson, Mayor
City of Texas City, Texas

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

_______________________ _______________________
Rhomari D. Leigh Kyle L. Dickson
City Secretary City Attorney



3

PASSED ON SECOND READING this 2nd day of October 2024.

________________________
Dedrick D. Johnson, Mayor
City of Texas City, Texas

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

_______________________ _______________________
Rhomari D. Leigh Kyle L. Dickson
City Secretary City Attorney

PASSED AND FINALLY ADOPTED this 16th day of October 2024.

________________________
Dedrick D. Johnson, Mayor
City of Texas City, Texas

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

_____________________ ______________________
Rhomari D. Leigh Kyle L. Dickson
City Secretary City Attorney



   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (7) (b)        
Meeting Date: 10/16/2024  
Third Reading - Consider and take action on Ordinance No. 2024-24 for recommended speed
zones for FM 3436 as recommended by TxDOT on the basis of an engineering and traffic
investigation.
Submitted For: Kim Golden, Transportation and Planning 
Submitted By: Veronica Carreon, Transportation and Planning
Department: Transportation and Planning

Information
ACTION REQUEST
Consider and take action on Ordinance No. 2024-24 for recommended speed zones for FM
3436 as recommended by TxDOT on the basis of an engineering and traffic investigation.

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
On the basis of an engineering and traffic investigation, TxDOT recommends the following
speed limits be fixed by ordinance for vehicles traveling on the named streets and highways,
towit:

(1) Along FM 3436 from the North City Limit of the City of Texas City to the Centerline of FM
517, a distance of approximately 1.597 miles, the speed limit shall be 55 miles per hour. 
(2) Along FM 3436 a school zone, from a point 3775 feet north of Morelock Lane to the point
2085 feet north of Morelock Lane, a distance of approximately 0.320 miles, the speed limit
shall be 35 miles per hour when flashing.  

RECOMMENDATION
Upon review of the engineering and traffic investigation by an independent professional traffic
operations engineer (P.T.O.E) the City Engineer recommends approval of the TxDOT
recommended speed limits indicated for vehicles traveling upon the named streets and
highways.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Request for Speed Zone Ordinance - FM 3436 

















   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (7) (c)        
Meeting Date: 10/16/2024  
Consider and take action on the first reading of Ordinance No. 2024-XX for recommended speed
zones for FM 646 as recommended by TxDOT on the basis of an engineering and traffic
investigation.
Submitted For: Kim Golden, Transportation and Planning 
Submitted By: Veronica Carreon, Transportation and Planning
Department: Transportation and Planning

Information
ACTION REQUEST
Consider and take action on the first reading of Ordinance No. 2024-26 for recommended
speed zones for FM 646 as recommended by TxDOT on the basis of an engineering and
traffic investigation. (City Engineer)

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
On the basis of an engineering and traffic investigation, TxDOT recommends the following
speed limits be fixed by ordinance for vehicles travelingon teh named streets and highways,
towit:

Along FM 646 from the west City limit of the City of Texas City to the east City limit of the City
of Texas City, a distance of approximately 1.294 miles, the speed limit shall be 50 mph.  

RECOMMENDATION
Upon review of the engineering and traffic investigation by an independent professional traffic
operations engineer (P.T.O.E.) the City Engineer recommends approval of the TxDOT
recommended speed limits indicated for vehicles traveling upon the named streets and
highways.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
FM 646 Speed Concurrence Letter 
Ordinance 















ORDINANCE NO. 2024-26

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF TEXAS CITY,
TEXAS, ALTERING THE PRIMA FACIE SPEED LIMITS ESTABLISHED FOR
VEHICLES UNDER THE PROVISIONS OF SECTIONS 545.356 AND 545.353 OF THE
TEXAS TRANSPORTATION CODE, ON CERTAIN STREETS AND HIGHWAYS OR
PARTS THEREOF WITHIN THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF TEXAS
CITY, AS SET OUT IN THIS ORDINANCE, TO WIT: SPEED ZONES FOR FM 646 AS
RECOMMENDED BY TXDOT ON THE BASIS OF AN ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC
INVESTIGATION; PROVIDING A PENALTY NOT TO EXCEED $1000.00 FOR THE
VIOLATION OF THIS ORDINANCE; PROVIDING A REPEALER CLAUSE, A
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, Section 545.356, Texas Transportation Code, provides that whenever the
governing body of the City shall determine, upon the basis of an engineering and traffic
investigation, that any prima facie speed therein set forth is greater or less than is reasonable or
safe under the conditions found to exist at any intersection or other place or upon any part of a
street or highway within the City, taking into consideration the width and condition of the
pavement and other circumstances on such portion of said street or highway, as well as the usual
traffic thereon, said governing body may determine and declare a reasonable and safe prima facie
speed limit thereat or thereon by the passage of an Ordinance, which shall be effective when
appropriate signs giving notice thereof are erected at such intersection or other place or part of
the street or highway; and

WHEREAS, the Texas Department of Transportation conducted a speed zone study and
recommends speed limits to be altered along FM 646 from the west City limit of the City of
Texas City to the east City limit of the City of Texas City, a distance of approximately 1.294
miles; and,

WHEREAS, the City Commission of the City of Texas City agrees it is in the best
interest of the citizens of Texas City to determine and declare such designated areas as suggested
by the Texas Department of Transportation as outlined in “Exhibit A”.

          NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE
CITY OF TEXAS CITY, TEXAS:

SECTION 1:  Upon the basis of the Texas Department of Transportation speed zone
study made as authorized by the provisions of section 545.356 of the Texas Transportation Code,
the following prima facie speed limits hereafter indicated for vehicles are hereby determined and
declared to be reasonable and safe; and such speed limits are hereby fixed at the rate of speed
indicated for vehicles traveling upon the named streets and highways, or parts thereof, described
as follows:

(1)   Along FM 646 from the west City limit of the City of Texas City to the east
City limit of the City of Texas City, a distance of approximately 1.294 miles, the
speed limit shall be 50 mph.



2

SECTION 2: Any person violating any of the provisions of this ordinance shall be
deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction thereof shall be fined in a sum not more
than One Thousands Dollars ($1000.00).

SECTION 3: That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of
this Ordinance are hereby repealed.  In the event any section, clause, sentence, paragraph, or part
of this Ordinance shall be for any reason adjudged by any court of competent jurisdiction to be
invalid, such invalidity shall not affect, invalidate, or impair the remainder of this Ordinance.

SECTION 4: That this Ordinance shall be read on three (3) separate days and shall
become effective upon its final reading, passage, and adoption.

SECTION 5: That this Ordinance shall be finally passed upon the date of its
introduction and shall become effective from and after its passage and adoption and publication
by caption only in the official newspaper of the City.

PASSED ON FIRST READING this 16th day of October 2024.

________________________
Dedrick D. Johnson, Mayor
City of Texas City, Texas

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

_____________________ ______________________
Rhomari D. Leigh Kyle L. Dickson
City Secretary City Attorney



3

PASSED ON SECOND READING this 6th day of November 2024.

________________________
Dedrick D. Johnson, Mayor
City of Texas City, Texas

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

_____________________ ______________________
Rhomari D. Leigh Kyle L. Dickson
City Secretary City Attorney

PASSED AND FINALLY ADOPTED this 20th day of November 2024.

________________________
Dedrick D. Johnson, Mayor
City of Texas City, Texas

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

_____________________ ______________________
Rhomari D. Leigh Kyle L. Dickson
City Secretary City Attorney


	Agenda
	4.a.__October 2024 Service Awards
	6.a._7464
	       ATT_October 2, 2024 Minutes
	6.b.__Fire Department Physician
	       ATT_Exhibit A
	       ATT_Resolution
	6.c.__Siddons Martin HGAC Service Contract
	       ATT_Exhibit A
	       ATT_Resolution
	6.d.__Purchase of three new trucks for the Parks Department
	       ATT_F250
	       ATT_F150
	       ATT_Resolution
	6.e.__ Purchase of a new Caterpillar 420-4ECA Backhoe
	       ATT_Catepillar Backhoe
	       ATT_Resolution
	6.f.__Medic Unit Maintenance and Repair
	       ATT_Exhibit A
	       ATT_Resolution
	6.g.__ purchase of Exmark Lazer Z Diesel 43.5 HP YANMAR Mower
	       ATT_attachment
	       ATT_Resolution
	6.h.__Binnacle Texas City 51, LLC and Galveston County Municipal Utility District 79 requests to Petition for Consent to Annex 19.35 acres of land from the District and Binnacle Texas City 51 LLC ("Binnacle 51")/Brookwater Section 1, together with the Certificate of Authority of Binnacle 51.
	       ATT_Binnancle 51 - Petition for Consent to Annex Land into MUD 79
	       ATT_Binnacle 51 - Certificate of Authority
	       ATT_Binnacle 51 - Survey Map
	       ATT_Resolution
	6.i.__Consider and take action to affirm the Agreement for Professional Engineering Services between the City of Texas City and Douglas Kneupper, P.E.
	       ATT_Kneupper.Doug-Independent Contractor Agreement 2021-0603
	       ATT_Resolution
	6.j.__Utilities Department - SCADA System Repairs and Upgrades
	       ATT_K2 Service Estimates for SCADA Upgrades
	       ATT_Resolution
	6.k.__Authorize Sale of Property in Trust Property
	       ATT_Trustee's Deed
	       ATT_Distribution Worksheet
	       ATT_Resolution
	6.l.__Waste Water Treatment Plant Annual Sludge Disposal Contract
	       ATT_Bid Tab
	UNIT PRICE
	540
	600
	720
	 20 yard roll-off
	 20 yard roll-off
	UNIT PRICE

	 20 yard roll-off
	UNIT PRICE


	       ATT_Recommendation
	6.m.__Public Consultant Group (PCG) Contract Extension
	       ATT_Exhibit A
	       ATT_Resolution
	6.n.__Architectural Design Service for Expansion of the TCFD Administration Office
	       ATT_Exhibit A
	       ATT_Resolution
	6.o.__Purchase of 335 P Compact Track Loader
	       ATT_Exhibit A
	       ATT_Resolution
	6.p.__Purchase US50 Package Wheel Excavator
	       ATT_Exhibit A
	       ATT_Resolution
	6.q.__Purchase of a Ford F250 Crew Cab 
	       ATT_Exhibit A
	       ATT_Resolution
	6.r.__FORD F550 FLATBED WITH TRAILER
	       ATT_Exhibit A
	       ATT_Resolution
	6.s.__INTERNATIONAL TANDEM AXLE DUMP TRUCK REPLACEMENT
	       ATT_Exhibit A
	       ATT_Resolution
	6.t.__Request to approve and submit 2025 Catalytic Converter Grant 
	       ATT_MVCPA 2025 Resolution
	       ATT_Resolution
	6.u.__Retrofit of Texas City Police Department indoor shooting range
	       ATT_Action Target quote
	       ATT_Inveris Quote
	       ATT_Savage Range quote
	       ATT_Resolution
	7.a.__Third Reading - Consider and take action on Ordinance No. 2024-023 for recommended speed zones for Loop 197 as recommended by TxDOT on the basis of an engineering and traffic investigation
	       ATT_Request for Speed Zone Ordinance - Loop 197
	       ATT_Ordinance 2024-23
	7.b.__Third Reading - Consider and take action on Ordinance No. 2024-24 for recommended speed zones for FM 3436 as recommended by TxDOT on the basis of an engineering and traffic investigation.
	       ATT_Request for Speed Zone Ordinance - FM 3436
	7.c.__Consider and take action on the first reading of Ordinance No. 2024-XX for recommended speed zones for FM 646 as recommended by TxDOT on the basis of an engineering and traffic investigation.
	       ATT_FM 646 Speed Concurrence Letter
	       ATT_Ordinance

		2024-10-02T07:27:38-0700
	Digitally verifiable PDF exported from www.docusign.com




